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Support social progress

As part of a RiverSmart project, school-
children in New York State learn hands-on
about local water quality. Through one

of its Sharing Solutions sponsoring initia-
tives, Swiss Re has enabled this US
awareness building campaign, which
shows communities what they can do

to protect their rivers and watersheds.
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Executive statement

A commitment to act responsibly is firmly embedded in Swiss Re's
Corporate Philosophy and includes adopting a broad, long-term
business outlook. Sustainability — preserving social and ecological
capital while producing economic value added — has therefore
become ever more important.

If unchecked, the depletion of natural resources and growing social
instability will eventually have consequences for all businesses.

For a reinsurer, however, addressing some of the present unsustain-
able development patterns assumes added significance: where
resources are overused and social cohesion is under threat, society
will experience new kinds of risk. That is why proactively analysing
and understanding any such risk, in order to develop methods of
mitigating it, is a strategic task for Swiss Re.

Therefore, part of our corporate responsibility lies in actively con-
tributing to the gradual transformation towards a sustainable soci-
ety. We have already moved some way along this road and can
clearly see the long-term strategic benefits of this commitment to
sustainability, nevertheless its actual implementation into our
daily business is a challenging process.

For this reason, we are cooperating with other, like-minded compa-
nies in the financial sector to share experiences and define best
practices. At last year’'s UN World Summit on Sustainable Develop-
ment in Johannesburg, we published a CEOs” and Chairmen'’s
statement together with ten partner companies, which aims to clar-
ify the role which the industry can play in the transition towards
sustainable development: it is best described as that of a facilitator
and a driver.

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002




To ensure our efforts make a real and tangible contribution to the
cause of sustainability, we are also engaged in an ongoing dia-
logue with various stakeholders. On the basis of this exchange, we
have singled out two issues as being of high priority for our busi-
ness: climate change and water. They form part of our 7op Topics
programme, a formal process that is designed to capture relevant,
issue-specific knowledge across the company. in the present Sus-
tainability Report we seek to demonstrate how both the climate
change and the water issue affect our whole business.

In recognition of the conflicts that often exist between the long-term
strategic sense a commitment to sustainable development makes
and immediate business pressures, we also describe the “business
case for sustainability” with concrete examples to show how ad-
hering to sustainability principles can have a direct positive impact
on our business.

In sum, we know from first-hand experience that implementing
sustainability in daily business is an ongoing challenge and process.
But we are convinced that it will bring long-term rewards. We have
therefore taken care to translate our Corporate Philosophy into

clear and binding principles, which form part of our corporate ove-
nance and compliance framework. Formally integrating the sus-
tainability perspective in our business is further expanding our ex-
pertise in dealing authoritatively with risk — and this, after all, is our
core competency.

SN K

John R.Coomber Bruno Porro

Chief Executive Officer Chief Risk Officer,
Chairman of the Steering Committee
Sustainability

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002



Corporate governance and sustainability

Sustainability means the preservation of
ecological and social capital, which, along
with Swiss Re's own economic capital,
provide the basis for the firm's very exis-
tence as a corporation. Taking a broad.
long-term business perspective, Swiss Re
strives to balance economic, social and
ecological value creation.

Group Code of Conduct embedded the sustainability principle
and Sustamabﬁﬂﬁy Mission in its corporate governance. This formally
Statement links short-term and long-term value
creation and ensures the ongoing applica-
Through the definition of a Sustainability tion of sustainability to management
Mission Statement and its inclusion in processes, business decisions and com-

the Group Code of Conduct, Swiss Re has munications: [CSR 1]

Timescale Stakeholders

L ECEEE LY EEEE P LE LR LYY

B
£ : Corporate Governance @ - Shareholders
: : :
< : P . :
£ H ) : :
B . Financial : Suppliers
H :
H Resources :
H :
: : Clients
H H
: :
H H
| : Employees
o H H H
8 .
z 2/ Corporate Philosophy \j =
z i . H
: /: :\\ :
E o s Code of Conduct : s
: .
I HUMBN  Secenssssansssasensenssansennaasd  Natural  E
= Resources Resources &  Communities
Et g . . : ‘o
gl s ‘ Corporate Sustainabitity E
=] o - a
5 ¢ Vlanagement g NGOs
B H
" ©0coOBNOCCCGROENECNGCNNOEGEANONONERDONOREEIN000D00000000D000E00aBETER

Supplementary information at www.swissre com/sustainabilityreport: Presentation by Prof. Peter Forstmaser, Chairman of the Board

“Endeavouring to create long-term value,
Swiss Re is committed to the principle of
sustainability. Accordingly, we generate
economic wealth which maintains eco-
logical and social impacts at a level that
enables future generations to meet their
own needs.”

Supplememtary information at www.swissre.com/
sustainabilityreport:
Full text of Sustainability Mission Statement

' SPI-Finance performance indicator on corporate social
responsibility philosophy (see Glossary)

Swiss Re Sustainability Repart 2002




Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

Sustainability management

Management set-up

As stated in the Sustainability Mission
Statement, Swiss Re’s employees are ex-
pected 10 "take collective respaonsibility for
sustainable development”. The manage-
ment set-up reflects this philosophy while,
at the same time, providing clear leader-
ship, coordination and accountability.

An integrated organisation

The most important elements of Swiss
Re's sustainability management are the di-
visional executive teams, the Sustainability
Management Officers and the Steering
Committee Sustainability. The divisional
executive teams constitute the top tier

of management in each of the divisions
and have strategic responsibility. Each ex-
ecutive team nominates a Sustainability
Management Officer, who represents the
division on the Steering Committee
Sustainability, the main supervisory body
at Group level. Under the guidance of their
respective Sustainability Management
Officers, the project teams of the business
groups and the Corporate Centre are charg-
ed with implementation. The unit known
as Group Sustainability Management in the
Corporate Centre is responsible for pro-
cess management at Group level and the
coaching of the divisional initiatives. To-
gether these elements form an integrated
organisation, which is responsible for
defining sustainability-relevant business
processes, shaping strategy, the reviewing
and reporting process and exchanging
know-how. [CSR 2?]

Relevant processes and

minimum criteria

From the inception of Swiss Re’s original
environmental management programme
in 1998, care has been taken to establish
which business processes are really rele-
vant from an environmental and, increas-
ingly now, social point of view. Certain
processes were assigned a priority status
and a set of minimum criteria was then
developed for each of them. The pro-
cesses judged to be relevant for the whole
Group are: strategic planning, reporting,
controlling. internal and external commu-
nication, training, knowledge manage-
ment and internal environmental manage-
ment. The minimum criteria for these, and
for the division-specific processes (such
as marketing, client services, product de-
velopment, underwriting, risk analysis and
claims handling) ensure a basic quality
standard throughout the Group. They also
create transparency because they deter-
mine the structure of reporting.

2 SPI-Finance performance indicator on corporate social
responsibility arganisation (see Glossary)



Sustainability management

(continued)

Strategic action plans

Each of the divisional executive teams is
responsible for developing the specific
sustainability management set-up that
best suits the division’s market needs and
priorities. Building on the minimal criteria
set by the Group. the executive team is
then responsible for developing its own
strategy for continuous improvement.

For this purpose, it draws up annual action
plans, setting clear objectives and
targets. Strategic leadership is provided
by the division’s Sustainability Manage-
ment Officer.

Reviewing and reporting

As the bodies that define divisional sus-
tainability strategy, the executive teams are
also responsible for reviewing and report-
ing. Led by its Sustainability Management
Officer, each division carries out an annual
review of its progress, sets new targets
and reports to the Steering Committee
Sustainability, which assesses and evalu-
ates the divisions’ reports and makes cor-
responding proposals.

Sharing know-how and best practices
One important feature of Swiss Re’s de-
centralised sustainability management is
that it enables a variety of strategies and
approaches to be tried out, supporting
the search for best practices. To facilitate
this vital exchange of know-how and
experiences, a virtual platform, the Team
Room Sustainability, has been set up,
which can be accessed by the sustain-
ability management team members.

It records all relevant information concern-
ing the implemen-tation of the Group's
sustainability initiative.

Outlook

Presently, ten teams with more than 60
active members are involved in integrating
sustainable development principles into
the daily business activities of their re-
spective lines. Next steps will include:

o To further develop the business case
for sustainability in alliance with differ-
ent initiatives or institutes such as the
World Business Council for Sustainable
Development (WBCSD), /MD's Corpo-
rate Sustainability Management (IMD-
CSMY} and The Sustainability Forum
Zurich (TSF).

o To consider integrating sustain-
ability-relevant goals into the divisions’
balanced scorecards.

o To roll out the new Group Code
of Conduct.

Supplementary information at www.swissre.comy/
sustainabilityreport: Review of implementation

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002




Reinsurance

Swiss Re's sustainability management im-
pacts the reinsurance business in two
ways: by contributing to risk management
and underwriting policies and to the de-
velopment of new products. Accordingly,
this section of the Sustainability Report

is divided into two main parts: best prac-
tices and innovation.

Best practices

Two crucial preconditions for successful
risk management and underwriting are
knowledge and guidance. Personal and
professional training (see "Stakeholder
relations” section), formal Group-wide
knowledge expert networks and a set of
binding guidelines and procedures, such
as the Group Code of Conduct and the
Reinsurance Guidelines, all contribute to
Swiss Re's long-established expertise.

Knowiedge

a) Non-life business

The principal vehicle to generate and
spread knowledge on best environmental
underwriting. risk management, claims
handling and product development prac-
tices is the formal Environmental Risk &
Underwriting Knowledge Network. In
2002. the following activities supported
this purpose:

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

o After successful information work-
shops in Armonk, Paris and Zurich in
2001, a regional launch event was
held in Munich in early spring 2002
jointly with Swiss Re's Catastrophic
Perils Network.

o InSeptember 2002, Swiss Re’s fourth
worldwide Environmental Underwriting
Workshop addressed such issues as
recent regulatory developments, the in-
surability of ecological damage and the
definition of environmental loss.

o Freguent use was made of the “ask the
network” function, which answers
guestions related to emerging environ-
mental risk issues. Most of the ques-
tions submitted dealt with legislation
and insurance solutions.

Today the network’'s members represent
all non-life reinsurance divisions. They
comment on topic-relevant developments
and set the strategic focus of the net-
work’s research and services. Legislative
developments in Europe, such as the
proposal for a new EU Directive on Envi-
ronmental Liability, were of particular
interest in 2002.

b} Life and health business

Swiss Re introduced internet-based train-
ing for its life and health clients, reducing
the need for staff to travel to deliver “basic
level” training. Current projects include
critical iliness (covering definitions, risk
management and claims) and an intro-
duction to life underwriting. The modules
were widely used by clients in English-
speaking countries, and plans exist to de-
velop versions in other languages.

The business case for
sustainability: reinsurance

Directors’ and Officers’ (D&0) insurance
protects board members and senior
management against professional liabili-
ty. As the probability of legal obligations
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
rises, there is a risk that a company’s
failure to address compliance could cre-
ate personal liability for its directors

and officers. The shareholder value of a
non-compliant company is likely to drop.
and shareholders might directly sue
board members and senior executives.
Swiss Re's Greenhouse Gas Risk
Solutions unit and D&O underwriting
(both of the Financial Services Business
Group) were quick to identify this new
kind of risk and have jointly developed
a questionnaire to evaluate companies’
pelicies on climate change. The feed-
back helps underwriters to assess the
quality of a risk. In the case of a bad risk,
Swiss Re wil! first try to sensitise the re-
spective client to the potential GHG
exposure. But if necessary precautions
or measures are not taken, an exclusion
could ultimately be introduced to address
that particular case.



Reinsurance

(continued)

Guidance

Swiss Re’s environmental risk underwrit-

ers apply standardised risk assessment

procedures as set out in the underwriting
guidelines [INS 13]. The Environmental

Liability Department (ELD) in the US. for

example, which manages the Group's

largest environmental insurance portfolio,
uses the following market specific guide-
lines:

o Referrals/commercial general ligbility:
risks are evaluated with the help of
public databases containing complete
records of materials used, quantities,

ments are considered for support. Their
staff must have science, engineering or
environmental backgrounds and their
risk assessment processes must match
the criteria described above. Loss his-
tories are analysed, and large losses
and their frequencies are reported and
reviewed to discern trends.

Greenhouse Gas Risk Solutions (GHGRS)

Top Topic: climate change

Innovation

One of Swiss Re's primary goals in imple-
menting sustainability is to identify market
opportunities and develop new products
10 mitigate environmental and social risks.
The following examples describe such ini-
tiatives.

The brief of the GHGRS unit, established in April 2001, is to assess risks and generate op-
portunities emanating from national or international emission reduction regulations, such
as the UK Emissions Trading Scheme {operational as of April 2002), the £U Emissions
Trading Scheme (expected to come into force in 2005) and the Kyoto Protocof (ratification

hazards associated with the materials,
accidents and releases, permits, and

discharges and excesses. The unit also
has a subscription to an environmental

risk management database in case
further, more specific information is
needed.

o Facultative business and special ac-

expected for 2003, first commitment period 2008-2012).

In response to these developments, an increasing number of companies are actively reduc-
ing their emission levels. The following insurance-specific business opportunities have
been generated and are being developed further:

ceptances: risks are submitted by the o GHGRS is developing a prototype poocling solution for clients, ie a guarantee based
primary underwriter, together with the upon the physical success of an offset project as well as a clearing solution that will as-
underwriter's own assessment of risks sist in the "over-the-counter” trading activity that constitutes the emissions trading

and mitigating factors and an environ- market today. The guarantee will cover non-delivery due to specifically named hazards
mental risk assessment made by an en- or triggering events unigue to each individual transaction.

vironmental consultant. All materials o The unit is also working with a prominent wind-turbine manufacturer to develop an in-
used, transmitting channels (air, water, surance solution that would extend the warranty on its products.

soil) and exposed organisms are evalu- o The Emissions Market Development Group (EMDG), a joint venture Swiss Re is involved

ated. The company’'s management, op-
erational and loss history, and exposure
to outside influences are all assessed.
Treaty business: only clients with dedi-
cated environmental consulting depart-

a

in, completed its market study and decided to continue the project in the form of a pilot
portfolio consisting of nine GHG emission reduction sellers. Following the recent Euro-
pean Union decision to implement a GHG trading system, EMDG has decided to pursue
the goal of having its common carbon credit unit accepted under the EU scheme.

3 SPI-Finance performance indicator on underwriting policy
(see Glossary)
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Innovation initiative in Europe

In Europe. an initiative was launched to
encourage employees to think up innova-
tive ideas for integrating sustainability into
Swiss Re's business. A number of promis-
ing ideas were generated, which are be-
ing followed up with the aim of develop-
ing them into value-adding solutions.

Life and health (L&H)

o Evidence-based ratings: Swiss Re's
ongoing research will enable experts
to ensure that the cost of insurance is
assessed as objectively as possible
for all individuals, by using the latest
medical evidence. Swiss Re's aim is to
build up a globally consistent reference
framework for these decisions. Evi-
dence-based ratings can be expected
to improve the industry’s position with
regard to anti-discrimination legislation
in various countries.

a Rehabilitation: Swiss Re supported a
cooperative project between the British
government and the insurance industry
to motivate more disabled people to
return to work. It hosted a multi-disci-
plinary conference on vocational reha-
bilitation, summarised the conference
findings and initiated discussions with
the government. [INS 44]

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

Outlecok

Building upon Swiss Re's competence in
providing risk transfer solutions that con-
tribute to the mitigation of environmental
and greenhouse-gas-related exposures

and the achieved external awareness, next

steps will include:

o To promote more widespread opera-
tional use of the Environmental Risk &
Underwriting Knowledge Network.

o To follow up on product and service
innovation initiatives in non-life and
life and health business.

o To research the impact of environmen-
tal changes (such as climate change)
on morbidity and mortality.

4 SPI-Finance performance indicator on insurances with high
social benefit {see Glossary)



Support social progress

RiverSmart: a Sharing Solutions initiative
to protect water quality

As part of Swiss Re’s Sharing Solutions initia-

tive, River Network, a leading US conservation
organisation, launched a national public edu-
cation campaign called RiverSmart. It helps
raise awareness of the many things communi-
ties can do to help protect rivers and drinking
water quality.




Until recently, US pollution control focused primarily on point sources -
sewage pipes and industrial outflows. Yet the leading cause of water
poflution in America is non-point source: chemical and waste runoff
from lawns, roads and parking lots in urban areas, or fields and feedlots

in rural areas.

River Network is a national organisation helping more than 4 000 grass-
roots conservation groups protect their local rivers and watersheds.
One project focuses on the Manor Kill stream in the Catskill Mountains,
source of 90% of New York City’s unfiitered drinking water. Schoolchil-
dren learn hands-on about water guality, sampling the stream’s chemi-

cal, physical and biological characteristics.

Swiss Re has identified water quality and availability as a growing con-
cern for society. By enabling RiverSmart, it helps people understand that
they too can make a difference, preventing pollution in their own homes

and backyards.



Asset management

Asset management is a core function of the
reinsurance business, a fact which is clearly
reflected in Swiss Re’s core competencies.
In fine with the Sustainability Mission State-
ment, efforts to implement sustainability
have been extended to asset management.
As early as 19986, Swiss Re's Asset Man-
agement Division started to build up an eco-
portfolio. This includes direct investments
in small pioneering companies, as well as
indirect investments through funds or in-
vestment companies with an environmen-
tal or sustainability focus.

In addition to equity investments, sus-
tainability considerations play an important
role in Swiss Re's real estate assets.

Swiss Re's portfolio of direct investments
in the sustainability field is largely made
up of private equity, but it also includes
some investments in small publicly traded
companies which meet a set of sustain-
ability criteria. At the end of 2002, direct
investments amounted to a cost value of
CHF 40.2 million. German-based So/ar-
Fabrik AG was the only new investment
made in 2002 In terms of industry com-
position, the portfolio is divided into five
main segments.

Breekdown of porifoiio by industry

Investment total

{in CHF millions})
Industry Number {at cost price) % of portfolio
Solar energy e o 4 o8 288
Recycling and weste disposal - 2 50 124
Integrated raw material production LR 1 SN
Production of biodegradable products 2 v 8.7 240
Pest management (organic) 1 7.7 18.2
Total 10 40.2 100.0

Top Topic: climate change

Four of the portfolio’s companies, ac-
counting for more than a quarter of its to-
tal value (at cost price), are involved in
solar energy. Since man-made climate
change is mainly caused by the burning
of fossil fuels, renewable forms of energy
will be indispensable in abating it. Solar
energy is one of the cleanest forms of
power and, although at present it is still
too expensive, it holds huge commercial
promise in the long run.

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002




MINERGIE® standard in
construction®

MINERGIE® is a Swiss quality label
awarded by the cantons of Zurich and
Berne to new, as well as refurbished,
buildings that meet a set of strict require-
ments concerning all-round comfort
and energy consumption. In the revised
Energy Mission Statement issued in
March 2001, Swiss Re made a commit-
ment to conform with the MINERGIE®
standard wherever technically and eco-
nomically feasible.

Top Topic: climate change

The MINERGIE® concept combines
energy efficiency, the use of renewable
energy and high levels of comfort and
economy. These characteristics are made
possible by good thermal insulation,

an impermeabile building envelope and
controlled air renewal. Compared with
buildings that merely comply with the
current Swiss regulations, MINERGIE®-
certified buildings consume about 60%
less energy. By minimising the amount
of energy consumed in its buildings,
Swiss Re makes a direct contribution to
reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
Furthermore, construction costs may be
only 10% higher than for buildings mest-
ing conventional requirements.

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

During 2002, three large-scale residen-
tial and office building projects received
the MINERGIE® label and, at the end of
the year, the MINERGIE®-certified energy
reference area owned by Swiss Re to-
talled 135 116 m?, up from 92 325 m2in
the previous year. Swiss Re is thus the
leader in Switzerland and, in recognition
of its efforts, was awarded the Specia/
Prize for Good Building 1995-20017 by
the City of Zurich in January 2002. This
serves as proof that high architectural
guality and sustainable building need not
be mutually exclusive.

Outlook

The main focus will be on further sup-
porting the management of Swiss Re's
eco-portfolio. Next steps will include:

o To make assessments (ratings) on
companies’ sustainability perform-
ances easily available and accessible
for equity portfolio managers.

0 Toidentify and tap relevant internal and
external sustainability expert networks
contributing to the consolidation of the
eco-portfolio.

The business case for
sustainability:
asset management

Private equity or venture capital invest-
ments provide funds for small, innovative
start-up companies. Swiss Re regards
technologies and products that make a
positive contribution to value creation
while preserving natural resources as in-
novations with large market potential,
and therefore invests directly in such
sustainability pioneers. A sizeable pro-
portion of the start-ups can be expected
to fail, but the profits generated by suc-
cess stories are usually enough to out-
weigh these losses. Even in the difficult
year 2002, a second company of the
portfolio successfully completed its initial
public offering: Precious Woods AG. a
Swiss-based company engaged in sus-
tainable forestry in Central and South
America. lts shares have been traded on
the SWX Swiss Exchange since 18 March
2002 and, at the end of the year, were
quoted at CHF 2.50 above their initial
price of CHF 60, thereby clearly outper-
forming the market.

5 www.minergie.ch



Internal environmental management

Swiss Re causes environmental impacts
in its daily business operations. Although
these are on a much smaller scale than
those of an industrial company, the prin-
ciple of sustainability requires that eco-
nomic value be created while preserving
ecological capital. Through its internal en-
vironmental management (IEM}, Swiss Re
has made a clear commitment to mini-
mising these impacts. The overall goals
are directly based on the Sustainability
Mission Statement and include:

o The continual improvement of internal
environmental performance through
the efficient use of natural resources.

o Regular monitoring and documenta-
tion of compliance with environmental
requlations.

o Reduction of operating expenses through
the efficient use of resources and the
regular revision of work processes.

o Encouraging global cooperation and
exchange of know-how.

Organisation and imple-
mentation

The IEM Group strategy defines how these
goals are to be achieved. It focuses on the
most important environmental aspects of
Swiss Re’s internal operations: energy,
business travel, supplier management and
procurement and, finally, waste disposal
and recycling. Implementation follows the
philosophy of “worldwide but locally
driven”: the overall strategic objectives are
defined by the IEM Centre of Competence
in Zurich, but the quantitative goals and

targets are set individually in the local IEM
strategies, taking into account the varying
social and legal environments, real estate
situations and local climate conditions.

To encourage local initiative and respon-
sibility, IEM’s organisation was decen-
tralised in 2002 regional implementation
of IEM strategy is now coordinated by
“IEM Centres” at Armonk, Hong Kong,
London and Rome. Together with the Cen-
tre of Competence in Zurich they consti-
tute the Core Team that guides the further
implementation of best practices.

CO; emissions, Swiss Re Group

Top Topic: climate change

Both energy use and business travel, two
of the four principal areas addressed by
Swiss Re's internal environmental man-
agement, are directly related to climate
change. To cut greenhouse gas emissions
per employee, especially CO,, is one of
the overriding goals for both areas. CO,
output is regularly monitored at Group
level (see table below), but, in line with
the IEM philosophy, concrete targets are
set by the business locations.

kg/employee Sharein% kg/employee Share in % Data
C0O; emissions 2001 2002 quality’
Power? 2835 446 2440 43.7  medium
Heating ol (extralight) . 91 A 74 03 medium
Natural gas 665 105 647 11.6 medium
Business travel 2761 435 2422 434 medium
Total 63562 100.0 5583 100.0

T Scale for data quality: low — medium — good - very good

2 Swiss power mix for London and Zurich, UCPTE power mix for all other business locations

Comment:

o The considerable reduction in overall CO, emissions per head caused through power
consumption (minus 13.9%) was achieved because Swiss Re in London switched to

renewable energy.

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002




Core issues 2002

Sharing knowledge

The perception of environmental and so-

cial aspects varies among the various

locations of Swiss Re’s large IEM network.

Sharing knowledge and best practices

is therefore the key challenge in keeping

this worldwide initiative going. It was

addressed with the following measures:

o /EM knowledge network: this network
on Swiss Re's intranet was launched in
autumn 2001. By the end of 2002,
it was being used by more than 90 [EM
experts, All relevant environmental
aspects are covered with case studies,
internal documents and indicators.

o Building bridges between Swiss Re's
business locations: |EM Zurich regu-
larly held multipoint videoconference
meetings with the various business
locations to pass on advice and share
experiences. At the fourth /EM Group
Workshop in October 2002, partici-
pants from 12 Swiss Re business loca-
tions discussed the current state of
implementation, the sharing of experi-
ences and IEM's decentralisation.

o Publication on internal environmental
management.in May 2002, IEM
Zurich published the internal publica-
tion Ecological Sustainability at
Swiss Re — practiced on a daily basis®.
It puts the spotlight on four principal
IEM topics at Swiss Re — buildings, en-
ergy, purchasing and business travel —
and describes the main problems and
challenges and efforts made to deal
with them.

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

Supplier managemeant
A second issue preoccupying IEM in

2002 was supplier management. Plans to

facilitate and harmonise local supplier

management are under way: the purchas-

ing guideline developed by IEM Zurich to

regulate internal procurement processes is
to be adapted for use at Group level, while

a new Group Policy for Supplier Relations
will set general standards for Swiss Re’s
suppliers. [SUP 1, SUP 27]

Awards for good internal
environmental management

Some of the locations were presented

with awards for their efforts in implement-

ing IEM.

The Facilities Management Team at
Swiss Re House in London won the fol-
lowing awards:
o Corporation of London Clean
City Award Chairman’s Cup — Premier
Award (January 2002)
o Corporation of London Liveable
City Award (February 2002)
a Swiss Re Sustainability Award
(August 2002)
o Corporation of London Clean
City Award — Special Commendation
Platinum Award (December 2002)

The Armonk location was honoured

in May 2002 by the US Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) as a leading
member of the Commuter Choice Leader-
ship Initiative®. This is a voluntary pro-
gramme for US employers offering their
employees commuter benefits that meet
the national standard of excellence.
Swiss Re was deemed to offer a variety of
commuting options that make a real
contribution to easing congestion and
improving air quality.

Qutlook

By the end of 2002, IEM had been set
up at the 18 largest Swiss Re business lo-
cations worldwide®. These locations
represent more than 91% of Swiss Re's
workforce, around 6% more than in the
previous year. Next steps will include:

o To broaden communications:

provide support for IEM locally and at
Group level, eg by involving experts
from communications to emphasise
the benefits of IEM.

o To explore public-private partnerships:

cooperating with governmental or
other public-sector initiatives focusing
on the efficient use of natural resources.

¢ The publication is available at www.swissre.com,

7 SPI-Finance indicators on screening of major suppliers and
on supplier satisfaction {see Glossary}

& www.commuterchoice.gov

S 1EM locations 2002: Amstelveen, Armonk, Bangalore,
Calabasas {US). Hong Kong, Johannesburg, London, Madrid.
Manchester (US), Mexico City, Munich, New York, Paris,
Rome, Singapore, Sydney. Toronto P&C, Toronto L&H, Zurich




Stakeholder relations

Swiss Re's stakeholders are all groups of
people and institutions with whom it en-
ters into a relationship on the basis of its
business and its commitment to corporate
responsibility. They include its workforce,
shareholders, clients, local communities,
NGOs and various institutions with whom
Swiss Re cooperates in supporting social
progress and driving forward sustain-
ability. This section of the Sustainability
Report focuses on Swiss Re’s relationship
with its workforce and with various “civil
society” stakeholders. [CSR 6'°]

Internal stakeholders:
workforce

Swiss Re’s employees are the company’s
most valuable asset. Itis their commit-
ment, know-how and integrity that sustain
the Group’s performance. In today’s com-
petitive and constantly changing markets,
this is increasingly demanding and can at
times be stressful. Swiss Re is therefore
fully committed to providing its employees
with a working environment and the
personal and professional development
opportunities that allow them to cope with
these demands and find satisfaction in
their work.

Working environment

Swiss Re has introduced a range of pro-
gressive working conditions in recent
years, such as teleworking, flexible annual
working hours, part-time work, job-shar-
ing. flexible pension schemes, retirement
preparation seminars, unpaid leave for
parenthood and training. These are com-
plemented by features such as new and
renovated company buildings that
conform to the best environmental and
comfort standards (such as MINERGIE®),
ergonomically designed workplaces

and a healthy diet at its staff restaurants.
Swiss Re also addresses “soft issues” such
as addiction prevention and provides
in-house counselling (in Zurich), work-life
balance training courses and stress semi-
nars. In addition, Diversity Management in
Zurich helps to find day-care places, and
twice a year organises a week of activities
for employees’ children during the official
school holidays.

In March 2002, Swiss Re's holistic com-
mitment to health promotion was recog-
nised when it came first in the large cor-
porations category of the Zurich Award
for In-house Health Promotion.

Personal and professional
development

Swiss Re's development culture is based
on a partnership between the company
and the individual. The company actively
encourages employees to develop skills
and capabilities linked to its core values

and business strategy, and provides the
requisite opportunities through on-the-job
training, in-house training programmes or
external courses.

In 2002, more than 42 000 training days
were provided by the company, meaning
that, on average, each employee spent
five days on personal and professional de-
velopment.

Swiss Re's personal and professional de-
velopment landscape covers six major
training categories. Within four of these,
specialised training courses are offered
for sustainability aspects.

Group training programmes: these mainly
deal with strategic issues and include the
Senior Managers'. Senior Frofessionals’
and Professionals’ programmes and the
core modules for the /nternational Gradu-
ate Programme. In 2002, 356 employ-
ees, or 4% of the total headcount, partici-
pated in one of these programmes. Of
those, more than 50 took part in special
sessions focusing on sustainability issues.

'© SPI-Finance performance indicator on stakeholder dialogue
(see Glossary)
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People management/leadership devel-
opment. this type of training aims to equip
Swiss Re’s managers with the leadership.
social and multicultural skills required

for managing the challenging team projects
that are the norm today. In 2002, more
than 1 100 employees participated in
training of this nature.

Technical training: this category com-
prises a wide variety of training initiatives
designed to provide a sound basis of
professional knowledge. In 2002, more
than 350 technical training courses were
held. They included the following courses
on sustainability management:

o Basic Environmental Risk & Under-
writing and Advanced Environmental
Risk & Underwriting courses offered
in London and Zurich. Based on the
good feedback received, efforts are
being made to further raise awareness
for these courses.

o SONART workshops, where 35 inter-
nal experts were trained in methods of
systematically screening notions which
can be associated with emerging soci-
etal, environmental, economic and
technological risks.

o Within Americas Division alone, more
than 80 casualty and property un-
derwriters participated in training on
environmental exposures.

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

Business competence training: this type

of training is intended to help staff improve
the skills required to carry out core func-
tions such as marketing and client relation-
ships, interpersonal and team communi-
cations and languages. It also includes the
Welcome on Board course for new em-
ployees in Zurich, in which more than 300
participants learned about Swiss Re's
commitment to sustainability.

Allin all, more than 500 employees, or
6% of the total headcount, took partin
training on sustainability-related issues
during 2002. An additional 200 employ-
ees took part in a series of seminars and
presentations on emerging environmental
and social risks and cpportunities.

Compensation
Swiss Re's compensation philosophy is to
reward individual performance in a fair
and transparent way and to encourage its
employees to become shareholders by
the following means; [INT 5'2]
o Equity compensation in Swiss Re —
Swiss Re bonus shares
Employees can choose to receive their
bonus in cash or shares (or a mix).
This choeice is rewarded by uplifting the
amount taken in shares by 25%.
The holding period for the shares is
four years.
a Swiss Re stock options
The Swiss Re stock option plan is a
long-term incentive that allows key
people to participate in its future. Swiss
Re awards stock options to those key
employees whose performance and
leadership assessment indicate strong

future performance at higher levels
throughout the organisation. The vest-
ing period of the options is four years,
the exercise period six years.

O Swiss Re Employee Participation
Plan (EPP)
Employees are able to save up to 10%
of their annual base salary (up to a
maximum of CHF 20 000). to acquire
Swiss Re shares on preferential terms.
Enrolment in the EPP is on an annual
basis. All permanent Swiss Re em-
ployees (both full- and part-time) are
eligible to participate in the EPP. In
2002, 63% of all eligible employees
participated.

External stakeholders

Publications

Swiss Re's publications form a crucial
part of its business: they provide in-depth
analysis on the nature of specific risks
and make this information available to de-
cision-makers and the public. In this
way. they help Swiss Re’s clients to add
value to their business, enabling them to
better anticipate economic, legal and
societal trends.

T "Systematic Observation of Notions Associated with Risks™ is
a personalised information system {or early risk perception.

7 SPi-Finance performance indicator on bonuses fastering sus-
tainable success (see Glossary)



Stakeholder relaticns

(continued)

In 2002, several new publications on emerging sustainability issues were released,

including the one described below's:

Top Topic: water

The publication 7he water factor argues that clean drinking water has become increasingly
scarce as a result of continuing pollution, depletion of global water resources, a rapidly in-
creasing world population and growing demand for potable water. This trend has disastrous
conseguences for health and nutrition, threatening business development as much as the

natural environment.

The management of water as a natural resource thus has an immediate impact on the in-
surance sector — both as a risk and an opportunity. The risks lie primarily in the area of
liability. But, as water shifts from being a public commodity to a commercial product, the

development of new insurance concepts, and investment potential also offer new busi-

ness opportunities.

The publication advocates broad-based strategies to correct the present situation and to as-
sess the implications of different actions in water management. By providing information,
and through its activities in risk management and financial services, Swiss Re is contributing

to this process.

Spensgring: Sharing Solutions

Swiss Re places high importance on
supporting the communities in which it
operates, fostering solid relationships
with these stakeholders and raising
awareness of its commitment to sus-
tainability. [SOC 1]

Sharing Solutions is Swiss Re's way of
acting as a good corporate citizen, be it
through various philanthropic or topic-
related initiatives, corporate and employee-
matching donations or employee volun-
teerism. As Walter B. Kielholz, Vice Chair-
man of the Board of Directors, put it,
“Sharing Solutions is our way of sharing
the best of all human endeavour”. With its
sponsarship commitments, Swiss Re
strives to go beyond providing funds, by
contributing specialists and organisational
know-how to its partnerships.

The photographic section on pages 10 and
11 portrays the RiverSmart'® campaign

in the US, one of Swiss Re’s Sharing Solu-
tions initiatives.

Top Topics:
climate change and water

Several sponsorships aim to raise aware-
ness of global climate change and of
access to, and conservation of, clean
drinking water resources. They fall into the
following categories; humanitarian,
educational, research/science and culture.
During 2002, Swiss Re actively partici-
pated in more than ten climate- and water-
related initiatives, which were carefully
evaluated with the help of internal and
external specialists, in line with its spon-
soring philosophy.

Memberships

Swiss Re is an active member of several
national and international industry groups
and multi-stakeholder-based projects
which contribute to the development and
promotion of industry-specific sustainable
business practices. They include:

31

inanciai Sector Project of the World
usiness Councl! {or Sustainable De-
elopment (WRBCSD)S

“Integrating sustainable development into
our business is a prerequisite for the con-
tinuous success of our companies, as well
as for creating long-term shareholder
value.” This was one of the main conciu-
sions drawn by eleven WBCSD member
companies from the financial sector, in-
cluding Swiss Re". Together, they pre-
sented a position paper at the World Sum-
mit on Sustainable Development (WSSD)
in Johannesburg, arguing that the finan-
cial sector is a driver for sustainable devel-
opment rather than an executor of change.
This position was the result of extensive
stakeholder dialogue. Walter B. Kielholz,
then CEO of Swiss Re, was among the
chief executives and board members who
signed a corresponding statement.

@

<

1* The publications are available at www.swissre.com

14 SPI-Finance performance indicator on charitable contribu-
tions {see Glossary)

> www.riversmart.org

8 www.whbesd.org

™ Signatories include ABN-AMRO, Allianz Group, Deutsche
Bank, Gerling, ING, Monte dei Paschi di Siena, Rabobank
Group, Sompo Bank, Storebrand, Swiss Re and UBS.
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Top Topic: climate change

Climate Change Working Group of the
UNEP Finance Initiatives '; Swiss Re con-
tinued to chair this partnership involving
the United Nations Environment Pro-
gramme and 295 financial institutions.
Climate Change and the Financial Ser-
vices Industry, a report commissioned by
the working group’s members, was
launched at the Swiss Re Greenhouse Gas
Conference in Ruschlikon in October and
a few weeks later at COP-8 in Delhi. The
report contains a blueprint for action, de-
signed to galvanise the financial services
industry into addressing the problem of
climate change more directly. It also aims
to assist governments in creating frame-
work conditions that encourage the devel-
opment of new climate-related products.

National and international dialogue
Swiss Re initiated or supported several na-
tional and international symposiums and
stakeholder dialogue platforms which ad-
dressed environmental, climate and sus-
tainability management aspects by pro-
moting best practices. With its Ruschlikon
Centre for Global Dialogue'®, Swiss Re is
able to provide a platform for sharing in-
sights and developing solutions for water-
and climate-related risks (see section of
the Business Report).

Swiss Re Sustainability Report 2002

Swiss Re shares preferred in
sustainability funds

Swiss Re again received high rankings
from research and rating companies such
as Centre Info/SIRI (B+), DJSI (“sector
leader”) and Innovest (“sector leader”).
The most important rating reports

are available on Swiss Re's website?0.
The number of traceable Swiss Re shares
held in sustainability funds of ecologi-
cally and/or socially conscious in-
vestors has steadily increased over the
last three years.

Outlock

As a result of the efforts made to date,
Swiss Re's experts are increasingly being
invited to contribute to the develop-
ment of sector-specific standards and man-
agement practices with regard to sus-
tainability. To continue the mutually bene-
ficial stakeholder relations, next steps

will include:

o To establish a Group policy on societal
accountability.

o To maintain an open dialogue with
major stakeholders to learn about their
expectations and to share views and
knowledge.

o To further establish the Swiss Re Cen-
tre for Global Dialogue at Rischlikon
as a platform for stakeholder dialogue.

The business case for
sustainability: stakeholder
relations

Swiss Re's ongoing risk analysis sug-
gests that water is going to be a pivotal
issue, not only for society, but also for
the insurance industry. Global water re-
sources are being depleted and increas-
ingly polluted, creating new liabilities

in the process. Swiss Re is committed to
promoting awareness of the water issue
amongst its clients, shareholders and
employees.

Last year, it launched the International
RE-Source Award for Sustainable Water-
shed Management?' to support promis-
ing watershed management projects
from the planning and evaluation stages
through to implementation. The first
award, worth USD 100 000, attracted
105 entries from around the world,
Together with other topic-related activi-
ties, the award strengthened Swiss Re's
position as a credible and competent
provider of risk-specific know-how. Rep-
resentatives from the company are in-
creasingly being invited to join initiatives
that aim to prevent or reduce water-re-
lated risks. This gives Swiss Re the op-
portunity to shape risk-mitigating meas-
ures such as liability directives and in-
dustry safety standards, so that future
risks remain insurable, even though their

complexity is increasing.

'8 unepfi.net. Members of the working group include Andlug
Consulting, Citigroup, Corperacion Andina de Fomento,
Dresdner Bank AG, Gerling Sustainable Development Project
GmbH, Munich Reinsurance Company, Prudential, SAM
Sustainable Asset Management and Swiss Re.

1 www.ruschlikon.net

20 www.swissre comy/investorrelations

21 www.swissre.com/resource



Glossary

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)

Group Code of Conduct

Social Performance Indicators
(SPI-Finance)

Steering Committee Sustainability
(SCS)

Top Topics

20

The first global framework for sustainability reporting. Swiss Re has been observing its
development closely and, in response, has been involved in the development of the EPI-
Finance and SPI-Finance indicators, the latter of which is linked to the GRI framework.

-~ www.globalreporting.org

The core document outlining the basic legal and ethical compliance principles and poli-
cies Swiss Re applies on a global basis. It incorporates practical guidance and examples
for deciding the appropriate course of action and for salving ethical dilemmas, thus
governing its employees’ everyday business behaviour. It is embedded in the corporate
governance framework and includes the Sustainability Mission Statement.

=> “Corporate governance and sustainability” section

A set of indicators developed by a group of financial institutions, including Swiss Re, 10
describe their social performance. They have been proposed as a sector-specific sup-
plement to the Global Reporting Initiative. The current report publishes a number of the
suggested qualitative indicators. They are highlighted within its different sections.

= www.spifinance.com

The Group committee responsible for overseeing the application of Swiss Re’s commit-
ment to sustainability to management processes, business decisions and communica-
tions. It is chaired by the Group’s Chief Risk Officer and includes the Sustainability Man-
agement Officer of each division and business group.

~» “Sustainability management” section

A number of topics that Swiss Re has identified as being of particular strategic relevance

for its business. Dispersed knowledge about these topics is channelled through formal

processes that run across the whole Group. Two of the seven actively managed Top Top-

ics are climate change and water, thus directly touching on sustainability.

- Special text boxes in the Sustainability Report and “Strategic landscape” section in
the Annual Report 2002, Business Report*

* The web version of the Annual Report 2002, Business Report is available in English at www.swissre.com/annualreport.
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Information

Contact address

Group Sustainability Management
Thomas Streiff

Telephone +41 43 285 6145

Fax +41 43282 6145

E-mail Thomas_Streiff@swissre.com

Original version in English.

The Sustainability Report 2002 is also
available in German and French.

The web version of the Sustainability
Report 2002 is available in English at
WWwW.Swissre.comy/sustainabilityreport.

Swiss Re
One of the world’s leading reinsurers
and the world's largest life and health rein-
surer. The company operates through
more than 70 offices in over 30 countries,
with more than 8 000 employees world-
wide. Swiss Re is headquartered in
Zurich, Switzerland and has been operat-
ing in the reinsurance business since its
foundation in 1863.
“Profile” part of the Annual Report
2002, Business Report”

* The web version of the Annual Report 2002,
Business Report is available in Engiish at
www.swissre.com/annualreport
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News 2002

o 15% increase in premiums thanks to attractive o Property & Casualty hit combined ratio target of 104%
market conditions o Life & Health return on operating revenues over 8% for
o Net loss of CHF 91 million in adverse financial fourth consecutive year
environment 0 Administrative costs declined despite strong growth
o Proposed reduction in dividend to CHF 1.00 per share of business

Key figures

CHF millions unless otherwise stated 2001 2002 in% CHF millions unless otherwise stated 2001 2002 in%
Group | S . B Property & Casualty . )
Grosspremiumswriten 28471 32685 15  Premumseamed 13846 15089 9
Premiums earned 25219 29058 15 'Combmed ratio ) ' 124% 104%
_Netmcome/loss _ ____ —_1}65' -9 45 - excludmgchangesm - S S
Earnings/losses pershare |n CHF -057 —0 29'_' 49 equalisation reserves 128% 104%
Dividend per sharein CHF 250  1.00*  -80  Life&Health R
Sherenolders equity 22598 16686  -26  Premumseamed 8922 11275 26
Retumonnvestment  80%  47%  Operating revenues .. 2310 14781 20
Return on equity S —07% _ -0 5% _ Retum on operatmg revenues 9.5% 9.1%
Numberofemp]oyees o 8623_ 8287 -4 :Premrumseamed v ‘ ' 2451 2724 MHH
- ofwhichinSwizerland 2831 2941 4 Tolevenues 3801 3580 -§
*Subject to approval at the Annual General Meetmgof 2May2003 Return on total revenues o m245%  -117%

Share performance

Market information as of 18 March 2003 Performance 1993-19 March 2003 (pa) 2002
Share price in CHF o - 7O OO Swiss Re o 128% o m4s 9%
Markgt gapltallsation in CHF mllhon o 21 727 Swiss Performance Index v o _9,0% - ‘—26 O%
Number of shares entitled to dedend - o 310379 068 DJ Stoxx Insurance Index S 22% —51 Z%V

Share price in CHF {logarithmic scale) Annual pertormance in %
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Swiss Re at a glance

Swiss Re - a global company

Swiss Re is one of the world’s leading reinsurers and the world's
largest life and health reinsurer. The company operates through

more than 70 offices in over 30 countries. Swiss Re has been in
the reinsurance business since its foundation in Zurich, Switzer-
fand, in 1863,

Growth and diversification strategy since 1993

Premiums earned

CHF miltions
30000

25000

[ 10% |

107,
20000 10%

3% 39%
15000

0% a2 OP agw 8%

19% 1% 18%

10000

5000

'81% 85%. 82%

80% 68% 69%: 81% 52% '55% ,52%

1893 1984 1885 1996 1987 1898 1883 2000 2001 2002
. Property & Casualty Life & Health = Financial Services

Return on investment

10%

8%

6.6 5.1 638 70 74 85 88 9.7 80 4.7
0%

1993 1984 1985 1896 1897 3898 1998 2000 2001 2002

Through its three business groups Property & Casualty, Life &
Health and Financial Services, Swiss Re offers a wide variety
of products to manage capital and risk. Traditional reinsurance
products, including a broad range of property and casualty as
well as life and health covers and related services, are comple-
mented by insurance-based corporate finance solutions and
supplementary services for comprehensive risk management.

Net income/loss

CHF milfions
3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500 —

545 832 1101 1469 1777 2161 2446 2866 -165 -97

1983 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1988 2000 2001 2002

Return on equity

15%

12%

9%

6%

3%

0%

74 87 12.7 138 18 1137 108 N8 -07 -05

1883 1994 1995 1896 1997 1988 1999 2000 2001 2002

* Net income divided by average of shareholders’ equity {1936 estimated)

The figures from 1993 untit 1996 (1998 for return on investment) represent the previously applied accounting palicy and the former Group structure.
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Chairman and CEQO letter

Fellow shareholders, colieagues,
tadies and gentlemen

2002 produced a disappointing result for Swiss Re. Strong perfor-
mance improvements in our property and casualty business were more
than offset by asset impairments resulting from the decline in the world’s
equity markets, leading to an overall loss of CHF 91 million. This com-
pared to a loss of CHF 165 million in 2001, which was of course
severely impacted by the 11 September event. In view of this second
consecutive year of incurring a loss, the Board of Directors will propose
1o the Annual General Meeting on 12 May 2003 a reduced dividend

of CHF 1.00 per share.

The most significant item affecting the 2002 result was the decline in
net realised investment gains/losses of CHF 3.2 billion due primarily

10 impairments on equities. In order to dezal with the three-year decline in
equity markets, Swiss Re has reduced its exposure to equities from over
30% in 2000 to less than 10% currently, net of hedges. In June 2002,
we commenced a programme of hedging transactions which created

a gain of CHF 576 million, offsetting part of the loss from impairments.
Significantly lower interest rates also had a negative impact on current in-
come from the fixed-interest portfolio. The poor performance of equity
markets led to a charge to our life insurance portfolio of CHF 280 million
in respect of guarantees on certain life policies in the US. Notable insur-
ance losses included the summer floods in central and eastern Europe,
which cost CHF 204 million, and claims arising from credit and risk solu-
tions business written in prior years.

At the operational level, there were many pleasing developments in 2002.
Net premiums earned rose to CHF 291 billion, an increase of 15% over
the previous year. Importantly. administrative costs have declined despite
the strong growth, as we achieved further operating efficiencies.

The Property & Casualty Business Group benefited from the effect of the
hard market, delivering both strong growth and much improved earn-
ings. The headline growth rate of 9% understates the actual progress
achieved. Adjusted for currency exchange effects and business transfers
(aviation and credit) to the Financial Services Business Group, the un-
derlying increase was 19%. This growth was driven by higher premium
rates and new business. At the same time, the business group met its
target of a 104% combined ratio.

As expected, the Life & Health Business Group registered a strong in-
crease in net premiums earned, 26%, due primarly to Lincoin Re and a
continuation of robust organic growth in this sector. Despite absorbing
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provisions in respect of the Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit con-
tracts previously mentioned, it achieved a return on operating revenues
in excess of 9% for the fourth consecutive year and continued to provide
a stable earnings contribution.

The Financial Services Business Group increased its net premiums
earned to CHF 2.7 billion, which represents an 11% rise. Adjusted for
exceptional items, including the sale of NCM and the business transfers
from the Property & Casualty Business Group, the increase was 31%.
The result, a loss of CHF 633 million, is not satisfactory. Claims on con-
tracts written in prior years and the decline in equity markets were the
major factors contributing to the loss. Various measures have been un-
dertaken during the last year to improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of this business group, including the creation of a centralised credit risk
management function and the consolidation of the private equity unit
into wider asset management operations. We believe Financial Services
is now well placed to benefit from the favourable business climate for

its products.

The three-year decline in equity markets, coupled with the low inflation
and low interest rate economic environment which now exists across
the world, is having a profound effect on our business. Balance sheets
for insurers and reinsurers have become stretched. With capital in short
supply, available risk capacity is being exceeded by demand. leading

to significant price increases. In addition, the prospect of low investment
returns means that the industry no fonger has the luxury of using
investment income to offset or, as happened during the bull market of
the 1890s, even overcompensate for underwriting losses. If insurers are
to provide a proper reward to shareholders, the industry has to sustain
or further increase prices, cut costs, tighten policy conditions, intensity
its loss prevention measures, and achieve combined ratios below 100%
on a regular basis.

The 2002/2003 renewals demonstrated that the property and casualty
market is responding to this message with rate increases for Swiss Re
averaging 10% on business renewed. Policy conditions are as critical as
price in producing an attractive risk portfolio. Holding fast to our re-
quirements in terms of both price and policy conditions has led to the
cancellation or replacement of more than a quarter of the business avail-
able for renewal. However, this has been replaced by contracts with im-
proved terms and by new business accounts.

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002
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Chairman and CEOQO letter

{continued)

Capital constraints have also impacted life clients, albeit to a lesser
extent in the important US market. Swiss Re expects to continue the
profitable development of its life reinsurance book.

Swiss Re last reduced its dividend in 1906, when earnings declined by
20% following the San Francisco earthguake. In respect of business year
2002, some 96 vyears later, the Board will reluctantly recommend the
same action. Two consecutive years of loss, caused by the 11 September
tragedy in 2001, and now in 2002 by an historic three-year decline

in equity markets, have created the unsatisfactory situation whereby divi-
dends must be paid out of retained earnings rather than current income. In
these circumstances, the Board believes a reduction of the dividend is in
line with Swiss Re's tradition of prudent financial management. Paradoxi-
cally, the events giving rise to this situation have produced exceptional
opportunities for Swiss Re’s core products, and it is clear that, in today’s
business environment. we can put capital to work on attractive terms.
Although 2003 earnings may be impacted by a smaller asset impairment
charge, we are optimistic regarding future earnings prospects.

On 1 January 2003, Walter B. Kielholz was succeeded as Chief Execu-
tive Officer by John R. Coomber. Walier B. Kielholz spent six highly
successful years as CEO of Swiss Re; the Board of Directors thanks him
for all his efforts. We are pleased that he will be Vice Chairman and
Delegate of the Board of Directors, where he will continue to use his
wide knowledge and experience to serve Swiss Re.

John R. Coomber has 30 years’ experience in various management
functions in the company, mostly in Life & Health but also as Head of the
UK operations, including executive responsibility for property and ca-
sualty business. John R. Coomber was appoeinted to the Executive Board
in April 1995 with responsibility for the Group’s Life & Health Division
and, in 2001, he became Head of the newly formed Life & Health Busi-
ness Group. In June 2000, he became a member of the Executive
Board Committee.

On 1 April 2003, Ann F. Godbehere will take over as Chief Financial Offi-
cer from John H. Fitzpatrick, who will become Head of the Life & Health
Business Group on the same date. The fact that everyone involved in this
reassignment of responsibilities was already employed at Swiss Re testi-
fies to the depth of management talent available at the company.
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Swiss Re has always considered good corporate governance an essen-
tial part of managing a successful company. Our corporate governance
procedures are well established and include implementation of the rele-
vant processes, rules and regulations and the requisite control measures.
Our aim is to ensure that strong ethical and human values are central

to our corporate culture. In this Business Report, we have devoted a large
section to corporate governance: our reporting fully complies with the
guidelines of the Swiss Exchange SWX, although it is somewhat more

. comprehensive,

At the next Annual General Meeting, we will propose Raymund Breu and
John F.Smith, Jr. for election to the Board of Directors. Raymund Breu

is chief financial officer and member of the Novartis executive committee;
John F. Smith, Jr. is former chief executive officer and chairman of Gen-
eral Motors Corporation.

It is with great sadness that we inform you of the death of Ernesto Jutzi,
a long-serving member of the Executive Board and Beard of Directors,
on 4 September 2002 at the age of 70. Mr Jutzi played a defining
role in the development of our corporation; we will always remember
him fondly.

We would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our shareholders for
standing by Swiss Re during these difficult times and showing con-
fidence in us. We will do our best to reward your loyalty through more
positive results in the future. We also thank our clients for their trust
and their productive partnership with us.

Finally, we would like to thank our employees, who have again dedicated
themselves to the company over the past year; we are most sincerely
grateful for their commitment. We are confident that our endeavours will
return Swiss Re to its successful path.

Zurich, 27 March 2003

=<5 S

Peter Forstmoser John R.Coomber =
Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer
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Executive Board

This photograph was taken Overall responsibility

at the RUschlikon Centre for
Global Dialogue.

Corporate Centre

Business groups

Divisicns/units

John R. Coomber*
Chief Executive Officer

™ Bruno Porro*
Chief Risk Officer
Risk & Knowledge

Stefan Lippe*
Property & Casualty

Andreas Beerli
Americas

Miche! M. Liés
Europe

Pierre L. Ozendo
Asia
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Rudolf Kellenberger*

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

John H. Fitzpatrick*

Ann F. Godbehere*?
Chief Financial Officer
Finance

John R. Coomber*’
John H. Fitzpatrick*?
Life & Health

Jacques E. Dubois
Deputy Head Life & Health
Business Group

Chris C. Stroup

Swiss Re Life & Health America
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(8 Walter Anderau
Communications &
Human Resources

[@ Jacques Aigrain*
Financial Services

Martin Albers
Risk Solutions

Giuseppe Benelli*
Chief Investment Officer
Asset Management

Phillip Colebatch
Advisory & Capital Markets

Yury Zaytsev
Information, Processes &
Technology

* Members of the Executive Board Committee
' untl March 2003
? from April 2003




Strategic landscape

As a leading global reinsurer, Swiss Re strives to understand and anticipate market

trends and developments in the capital and risk arena. Swiss Re's strategic landscape

sets the direction for the Group and communicates its most important aspects to

all stakeholders.

Philosophy and strategy

Swiss Re's mission is to be the leading au-
thority in managing capital and risk for its
clients. This means setting high standards
in whatever the Group undertakes — from
launching innovative products and serv-
ices to disseminating specialist knowl-
edge or building close partnerships with
clients, business partners and cther stake-
holders. The company’s competitive ad-
vantages are its superior expertise in the
integrated management of capital and
risk and its overall financial strength.

Swiss Re is fully committed to integrating
sustainable development into its practices
and aims to achieve the right balance
between its economic, sccial and environ-
mental impact.

Swiss Re's core competencies are defined
by three essential business disciplines:

Risk transfer

Swiss Re identifies, evaluates, underwrites
and diversifies risk in order to minimise
the total capital cost of carrying such risk.

Risk finance

Swiss Re employs a wide array of products,
from finite reinsurance to equity, using its
knowledge and understanding of world-
wide risk markets to finance risk retention.

Asset management

Swiss Re combines its analysis of insur-
ance liabilities, its reinsurance products
and its asset management skills to opti-
mise the total return on financial assets.

Swiss Re's guiding principles direct the
implementation of its core competencies
in support of the long-term success of
the company. Swiss Re'’s guiding princi-
ples are to:

be experts on capital and risk;

offer excellence based on knowledge;
base client relations on partnerships;
foresee the nature of risks;

maintain a global yet local perspective;
communicate clearly and openly; and
support social progress.

0o a

[

o o a o

Swiss Re’s stated strategic goals are to:

o be the global market leader in
property and casualty and life and
health reinsurance;

Target Matrix

o be the premier provider of capital, risk
and asset management solutions in
business-to-business financial services,
with a specific focus on insurance and
other financial institutions;

o deliver attractive returns to share-
holders while maintaining top financial
strength and credit ratings; and

0 be a global company built on teams
with unrivalled risk and capital
expertise, professionalism and com-
mercial insight.

From strategy to action:
Target Matrix and Group
Balanced Scorecard

The implementation of the strategy is rein-
forced through clear financial targets —
expressed in the Target Matrix —and a
new Group Balanced Scorecard, which in-
cludes non-financial objectives.

Average target

Business group Key figures 2003 to 2005
Property & Casualty Combinedratio 98%
R Premium growth 8%
Life & Health Return on operating revenues ) 9%
... Operafingrevenuesgrowth %
Financial Services v Premium business: o -
Cambined ratio 95%
Premvivuvrﬁ.grbowthr 7%
Fee business: o
Return on total revenues 15%
o Totalrevenuegrowth o 10%
Group Retunon mvestment o B%
Return on saulty . U . o
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The Target Matrix, revised in March 2003,
sets financial goals for the individual busi-
ness groups and for the Swiss Re Group.
Each business group is measured against
a profitability and a growth target. These
are accompanied by a return on invest-
ment target for Asset Management and
an expected return on equity.

Swiss Re developed a Group Balanced
Scorecard during 2002 to enhance im-
plementation and communication of

its strategy. The Balanced Scorecard is a
framework to evaluate the Group's strat-
egy from four aspects: financials; clients;
internal, and people and knowledge.

By identifying and communicating shared
strategic priorities, the Balanced Score-
card ensures the alignment of individual
initiatives with Group goals. The Balanced
Scorecard also improves the under-
standing of how Swiss Re is performing
against set objectives by focusing atten-
tion on measuring the implementation of
the strategy.
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Top Topics

Building on its strategy. its commitment to sustainability and its strong research and
communication capabilities, Swiss Re has set up a formal “Top Topics” process to identify,
analyse and communicate topics that influence the company’'s business activities and
corporate values. In daing so, the company actively shapes its current and future business
and social environment.

A selection of Top Topics for 2002

On the issue of terrorism, Swiss Re has formulated and communicated a clear position on
the need for a joint effort from the (re}insurance industry and governments to address this

risk exposure. New underwriting guidelines have been implemented, threat scenarios have
been analysed and a socio-political risk research unit has been established.

In addition to publishing a sigma study devoted to property and casualty cycle manage-
ment, Swiss Re distributed an internal publication and presentation: 7he /nsurance Cycle as
an Entrepreneurial Challenge. These helped enhance internal and external awareness

of the cyclical nature of property and casualty business, as well as of the importance of
managing the cycle by anticipating cyclical turns and actively adjusting capacities.

On the subject of convergence, the Financial Services Business Group has compiled a hand-
book providing detailed suggestions for improving capital efficiency. Conference speeches,
media articles and other communication activities have confirmed Swiss Re's global leader-
shipin this area.

In the field of sustainability. stakeholder dialogue on water quality and availability has been
carried on through an international conference at the Rischlikon Centre for Global Dialogue
and through the publication of two focus reports. The publication Opportunities and Risks
of Climate Change also attracted broad public and media attention. Swiss Re continues to
evaluate systematically the business opportunities arising from implementation of the Kyoto
agreement, such as trading solutions for greenhouse gas emission rights.

Swiss Re has intensified its research efforts on mortality trends, focusing on epidemics.
Its communication efforts have been directed at short-term shocks to the general im-
provement in mortality trends (including epidemics) and the challenges these may pose
to life insurers.
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Every time an earthguake strikes, society learns how to improve construction technology. Existing buildings
can also be brought up to current standards through earthquake-resistant reinforcement and seismic isolation

retrofitting, thus preserving structures that have become familiar landmarks or have historical value.

—— chemsN Y £ AR

Bridges are particularly exposed to natural catastrophes: the Bay Bridge in San Francisco was damaged in the

1989 Loma Prieta event. Following recent advances in research and technology, California Department of
Transportation is conducting a seismic upgrade of the Bay Bridge, which involves strengthening the columns

with steel casing, increasing supports and extending hinge units.




Economic environment

As a significant institutional investor, the insurance and
reinsurance industry is affected by the financial envi-
ronment, which was unfavourable for the third year in a
row in 2002. The decline in stock market values meant
that many insurers, particularly those in Europe, suffered
losses on their equity portfolios. Cash flows from under-
writing for the industry, however, rose in 2002 and are

likely to be higher in 2003.

After the marked economic slowdown In addition, 2002 saw major turbulence

that affected the US, Japan, and the euro
zone in 2001, all three major economic
zones showed an increase in economic
activity during the first half of 2002.

in the financial markets, rising oil prices
and a series of geopolitical crises, each of
which had a lasting effect on investor and
consumer confidence.

The stock markets experienced heavy
losses stemming frem political uncer-
tainty, particularly the worldwide concern
over further terrorist attacks and the
possibility of war in Iraq. In addition, dis-
trust of certain accounting practices at
some corporations caused equity markets
to fall further, strengthening general
scepticism about future economic growth
prospects.

Difficult times for the
insurance industry

In the aftermath of 11 September 2001,
insurers in the OECD countries, particu-
larly those in Europe, continued to expe-
rience difficulties due to economic condi-
tions and the state of the financial markets
in 2002. The decline of stock market
values meant that many European insurers,

The expansive monetary and fiscal policy
adopted after 11 September 2001 pre-
vented a major slump, particularly in the
US. During the second half of 2002, how-
gver, ecanomic growth slowed across the

Real GDP growth and CPI inflation
{percentage change against previous year)
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Stock markets 1988-2002 {logarithmic scale)
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who were heavily invested in equities,
suffered losses on their asset portfolios,
whereas their US competitors suffered
from high corporate bond default rates.

European insurers weather-
ing a financial storm

Swiss Re's sigma study (10/2002) esti-
mates that non-life insurers worldwide
have lost about USD 180 billion since the
beginning of 2001, equivalent to 25-30%
of insurers’ equity. This ratio may be even
higher in Europe, where insurers tend to
hold a greater proportion of equities than
in other regions. The life insurance in-
dustry fared no better, although it is hard
to judge the exact amount of shareholder
funds lost by European life companies
due to profit-sharing schemes with policy-
hoiders. Life insurers were also hit by a
substantial decline in so-called “bonus re-
serves”. This reduced the attractiveness of
with-profits products and put a drag on
potential business expansion.
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== Japan (Nikkei 225}

== Switzeriand (SM1)

Stock market turbulence made 2002
another year of very low profitability for
insurers in both sectors, as well as for
reinsurers. This is reflected in the market
performance of their shares, which has
been extremely weak during the past
12 months. The financial distress faced
by insurers is also reflected in various
rating agency downgrades.

Bright spots

Preliminary data suggest that premium
growth in the primary non-life markets re-
mained healthy, at over 5%. Technical prof-
itability had already shown improvements
during 2001, a trend which continued

in 2002. US-reported underwriting resuits
improved across the board, although

this cyclical upswing was overshadowed
by substantial strengthening of reserves
among several larger insurers. In western
Europe, revenue growth and its related
improvement in underwriting results were
less proncunced.

== UK (FTSE 100)

== JS (DJ Industrials) Source: Datastream

In a very positive development, the life
sector seemed to pick up again in 2002,
after having suffered a decline in 2001.

In the US, demand for variable life and an-
nuity products shifted to fixed-income
products, while in Europe growth was
supported by a steady demand for private
pension products.

Reinsurance: short on capac-
ity, but profiting from improv-
ing underwriting conditions

The squeeze on reinsurance capacity
continued in 2002, due to the unfavour-
able financial market conditions, to which
were added — particularly in the US — a
strengthening of reserves and the re-
emergence of the asbestos liability crisis.
The overcapacity of the soft market phase
during the late 1990s turned into & hard
market in 2001/2002, which is expected
to remain over the coming years.




Key milestones

Year 2002

26 February

Successful 2002 renewals and solid
outiook

Swiss Re reported successful 2002
renewals, with a substantial improvement
in prices and conditions.

13 March

Man-made losses take on a new
dimension

Swiss Re's sigma study revealed that
man-made and natural catastrophes
had claimed more than 33 QOO lives
worldwide in 2001. At USD 34.4 billion,
the burden on property insurance from
catastrophe losses was extremely high —
with an estimated USD 19 billion
incurred by property and business inter-
ruption losses arising from the 11 Sep-
tember 2001 event.

10 April

Swiss Re's 20071 result

Swiss Re's 2001 result was impacted
primarily by the terrorist attack of 11 Sep-
tember 2001. The final result for 2001
was a net loss of CHF 165 million.

25 April
International conference on sustain-
able water management

International leaders in water policy, the
Swiss government and Swiss Re dis-
cussed solutions for improving the use of
water resources as well as the policy
framework and best-management prac-
tices for sustainable water management.
Swiss Re sponscred World Vision's
“Agua & Vida" and RiverSmart.

6 May

Annual General Meeting

The 138th Swiss Re Annual General
Meeting approved a dividend of

CHF 2.50 per share, unchanged from the
previous year. The shareholders also
confirmed the proposed nominees for the
Board of Directors: Oswald J. Gribel

and Bob Scott.

10 July

Phillip Colebatch joins Swiss Re's
Executive Board

Swiss Re's Board of Directors appointed
Phillip Colebatch to the company’s Execu-
tive Board, effective 10 September 2002.
Mr Colebatch also serves on the Executive
Team of Swiss Re's Financial Services
Business Group as head of its capital mar-
kets and advisory activities.

12 July

Life & Health's 2001 embedded value
Swiss Re's Life & Health Business Group
recorded a 35% increase in its embedded
value, to CHF 17.6 billion in 2001, due, in
large part, to the acquisition of Lincoln Re.

12 July

Swiss Re receives go-ahead for China
reinsurance licence

Swiss Re received regulatory authorisa-
tion to prepare for branch operation in
China. The approval by the China Insur-
ance Regulatory Commission (CIRC) cov-
ers both property and casualty and life
reinsurance; it will enable Swiss Re to ex-
tend its worldwide presence to China,
where it will establish underwriting and
related capabilities.

17 July

Publication on climate change:
learning to harness the risks and
opportunities

The climate has changed visibly, tangibly
and measurably. The Swiss Re publi-
cation Opportunities and Risks of Climate
Change shows that the focus should also
be on the non-obvious dangers of extreme
meteorological phenomena.

18 July

Swiss Re obtains risk protection of
USD 255 million through an innovative
securitisation

Swiss Re received a four-year protection
against a series of natural catastrophe
risks from PIONEER 2002 Ltd. The pro-
ceeds will serve to replenish Swiss Re's
capital should any of the specified natural
catastrophes occur. The protection has
been increased 1o USD 334 million by the
end of 2002.

14 August

Swiss Re creates US Advisory Board
Swiss Re established a US Advisory Board
to provide advisory and consultative ser-
vices to Swiss Re America Holding Corpo-
ration and its US subsidiaries.

29 August

Swiss Re's 2002 half-year result
Swiss Re’s net premium income rose 16%
in the first half of 2002 to CHF 13 836
million. Net income was CHF 118 million,
compared to CHF 1 345 million in 2001,
Due to the equity market decline in 2002
and during the first half-year, Swiss Re
recorded impairment charges of
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CHF 917 million. Firming non-life rates
and better conditions led to the Property &
Casualty Business Group's combined ratio
improving to 106%.

9 October

Swiss Re sigma study: non-life insur-
ance industry to face a time of lasting
capacity shortage

Swiss Re's sigma study outlined the
trends in the major non-life insurance mar-
kets: the need for improved underwriting
results persists in an environment of
shrinking insurance capacity and dimin-
ished investment prospects. Further price
increases were to be expected for the
coming years.

23 October

Baden-Baden Conference: Swiss Re
hosts media event focused on
insurability of floods and catastrophe
reinsurance

At this important annual reinsurance in-
dustry meeting, Swiss Re concluded that
reinsurers should enter the 2003 renewal
season with a "back-to-basics” approach
to natural catastrophe underwriting.
Among the key issues addressed were
the latest developments in the global
reinsurance market and the insurance of
flood-related risks.

30 Cctober

Resolution of dispute with Lincoln
Mational Corporation

Swiss Re resolved its dispute with Lincoin
National Corporation related to the De-
cember 2001 acquisition of Lincoln Re. In
keeping with earlier statements, Swiss Re
confirmed that the resolution had a
favourable effect on Swiss Re's financial
position and results of operations.
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11 November
Swiss Re appoints John R. Coomber as
Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors appointed John R.
Coomber as Chief Executive Officer of
Swiss Re, effective 1 January 2003. John
R. Coomber was Head of Swiss Re's Life &
Health Business Group. Walter B. Kielholz
became Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors, from 1 January 2003. John H.
Fitzpatrick, Swiss Re's current Chief Finan-
cial Officer, will succeed John R. Coomber
as Head of the Life & Health Business
Group as of 1 April 2003.

13 November

Swiss Re sigma study: robust growth
for third party asset management as
insurers seek to bolster investment
performance

Swiss Re’s sigma study predicted robust
growth for the outsourcing by insurance
companies of their asset management
operations. The study estimated that the
combined markets for third party asset
management in the US and Europe would
grow by an average of 10% per year over
the next decade.

25 November

Investors’ meeting about Financial
Services Business Group

A meeting was held in Rischlikon to dis-
cuss the Financial Services Business
Group'’s vision and the added value it de-
livers; this takes the form of complement-
ing the Group's traditional business

and diversifying its earnings base, while
sharing the same core competencies
and clients.

10/11 December
Swiss Re hosts annual Economic and
Insurance Industry Forum in London
and New York

The events offered perspectives on
economic performance in 2002 and pro-
vided forecasts for 2003. Attendees
were Swiss Re clients and members of
the international media.

18 December

Swiss Re appoints Ann F. Godbehere
as Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The Board of Directors appointed Ann F.
Godbehere as CFO of Swiss Re, effective
1 April 2003. Ann F. Godbehere is CFO of
Swiss Re’s Property & Casualty Business
Group until 31 March 2003.

Year 2003 to date

26 February

2003 renewals successful; 2002
heavily impacted by impairment
charges due to continued deterioration
of equity markets

Swiss Re reported highly successful Jan-
uary renewals, continuing the previous
year’s trend towards substantial improve-
ments in both pricing and conditions.
Swiss Re disclosed that it expected to re-
porta 2002 loss due to increased impair-
ment charges. In view of the second
consecutive year of loss, and to maintain
the company's long tradition of prudent
financial management, the Executive
Board proposed a reduced dividend to
the Board of Directors.




Group resuits

Swiss Re incurred a net loss of CHF 91 million in 2002,

compared with a net loss in the prior year of CHF 165

million. This loss was primarily due to the impact of

impairment charges caused by the decline in equity

markets, which offset improvements in property and ca-

sualty reinsurance, and the absence of an event such as

11 September 2001.

Net premiums earned increased by
15.2% to CHF 291 billicn. Excluding the
impact of the sale of NCM and the effect
of the stronger Swiss franc, the increase
was 25.7%.

The Property & Casualty Business Group
reported net premiums earned of

CHF 15.1 billion. Adjusting for currency-
exchange effects and the transfer of the
credit and aviation business to the Finan-
cial Services Business Group, the increase
over 2001 was 19.4%.

Premiums in the Life & Health Business
Group increased by 26.4% to CHF 11.3
billion, due primarily to the acquisition of
Lincoln National’s reinsurance business
and to growth in traditional life business in
North America and the United Kingdom.

The Financial Services Business Group in-
creased premiums earned to CHF 2.7 bil-
lion, up 11.1% from 2001. Excluding the
impact of the sale of NCM, the transfer of
business from the Property & Casualty
Business Group and the currency-ex-
change effects, underlying growth was
24 .3%. This was mainly due to rate in-
creases for corporate risks.

Net current investment income declined
by 4.5% from CHF 5.8 billion in 2001 to
CHF 5.5 billion in 2002, mainly as a result
of the stronger Swiss franc and a fall in in-
come from the Group's equity-accounted
investments. The return on investment
was also affected by the decrease in in-
terest rates.

Net realised investment losses were

CHF 515 million, compared with net realised
gains of CHF 2.7 billion in 2001. The
main reason for the change was the net
impairment charge of CHF 3.9 billion, due
to the decline in equity markets, fixed-in-
come securities, and private equity values.
This impairment loss was partially offset
by realised gains on investments, includ-
ing gains on the sale of parts of the
Group's holdings in NCM and Partner Re.

Other revenue decreased by 19.8% to
CHF 365 million as a result of the sale of
NCM, partially offset by a full year of rev-
enue from Conning Corporation, which
was acquired on 2 July 2001.

Claims and claim adjustment expenses
and life and health benefits decreased
from CHF 24.8 billion to CHF 24.6 billion,
a drop of 1%. The absence of an event such
as the terrorist attack of 11 September
2007 and the strengthening of the Swiss
franc were the main reasons for this de-
crease in expenses. The decreases more
than offset the impact of the growth in
non-life business, increased losses in
credit and surety business and increases
in the Life & Health Business Group fol-
lowing the Lincoln Re acquisition and the
loss on the guaranteed minimum death
benefit business.

There was no net change to equalisation
reserves in 2002, compared to a release
of CHF 1.5 billion in 2007, The equalisa-
tion charge in the first half of 2002 was
released in the second half of 2002 due to
the losses from the floods in Germany.

The Group’s non-life reserve ratio (re-
serves relative 1o premiums) at the end

of 2002 was 265%, down from a cur-
rency-adjusted 322% at the end of 2001.
The decrease was caused mainly by the
growth in premium volume and the effect
on reserves of the claims payments re-
lated to 11 September 2001.
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Acquisition costs increased to CHF 6.2
billion in 2002, from CHF 5.7 billion in
2001, anincrease of 8.3%. This is less
than the increase in net premiums earned
and is principally due 10 a reduction

in the commission rates in property and
casualty business.

Amortisation of goodwill decreased
from CHF 3868 million in 2001 to
CHF 350 million, due to changes in
currency-exchange rates.

Other operating costs and expenses de-
clined from CHF 3.4 billion to CHF 3.2 bil-
lion, due mainly to currency-exchange
effects. The increase in expenses due to
the business acquired from Lincoln
National was offset by the fall in expenses
caused by the deconsolidation of NCM.
The management expense ratio declined
for the fourth year in a row, to 2.3% in
2002, from 10.8% in 2001, as the Group
maintained its focus on strategic cost
leadership. Expense ratios declined in the
Property & Casualty Business Group from
5.1% 10 4.9%, and in the Financial Ser-

vices Business Group from 31.3% to 25.7%.

The expense ratio in the Life & Health
Business Group rose from 4.6% to 5.0%,
due to the acquisition of Lincoln Re, which
prior to Swiss Re's ownership had a
higher expense ratio.
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The tax expense in 2002 was CHF 127
million, compared to an expense of
CHF 81 million in 2001. The Group tax
rate is the result of current and deferred
taxes in a wide range of jurisdictions.

The Group recorded a net loss of

CHF 91 million, compared with a net loss
of CHF 165 million in 2001. Losses per
share were CHF —0.29, compared with
losses per share of CHF —0.57 in 2001,

Income reconciliation

Shareholders’ equity decreased from
CHF 22.6 billion to CHF 16.7 billion. The
main reasons for the decrease were the
change in unrealised gains and losses on
securities, net of deferred taxes, of

CHF 3.0 billion due to continuing weak-
ness in world stock markets in 2002, and
the foreign currency revaluation impact
of CHF 2.2 hillion due to the strength of
the Swiss franc. The 17% decline in

US dollar is the principal reason for the
decline in assets and liabilities.

The following table reconciles the income from Swiss Re's business groups and the oper-
ations of its Corporate Centre with Group consolidated net income/loss before tax.

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
Business groups’ operating income/loss SO SOTTRO
Property & Casualty o281 03808 0
Life & Health S 1682 1316 -22
R Canyieas sy
Total business group operating income 1031 882 -4
Corporate Centreexoenses ~ -450  -437 -3
‘Items excluded frovm the'b'usinm sgr&ups: v ‘ v B v o
_ Netrealised investmentgains 181 259 98
_ Amortisationofgoodeell  -368  -360 -5

Other income/expenses ' -448 -428 -4
Net income/loss before tax -104 36

Net realised investment gains/losses on certain financial instruments including own
shares; amortisation of goodwill; and other income and expenses — such as indirect
taxes, capital taxes and interest charges — have been excluded when assessing the

performance of each business group.




Investments

Swiss Re generates substantial cash flows which it invests in a well-diversified portfolio

of bonds, stocks, real estate and cash. The diversification of the portfolio is designed

in such a way that adverse movements in one market are mitigated by favourable

movements in other markets to reduce the overall risk of the portfolio. Within Swiss

Re’s overall policy of diversification, the company manages its portfolio to take into

account significant trends in the different investment markets.

2002 was characterised by two key de-
velopments: the significant decline in the
equity markets, particularly in the second
half of the year; and the positive perfor-
mance of the bond markets, where the
Group has more than two-thirds of its
portfolio invested.

In the first half of 2002, investor confi-
dence was eroded by a stream of bank-
ruptcies and accounting scandals. This led
to a first correction in equity prices. In the
second half of 2002, risk aversion, cou-
pled with geopolitical threats, prompted
institutional and private investors to re-
duce thelr equity holdings even further,
exerting renewed downward price pres-
sure. Overall, the major stock markets de-
clined between 17% and 34% in value
during 2002, with most of the losses be-
ing posted in the second half of the year.
The euro zone suffered the greatest loss,
followed by Switzerland and the US.

In relative terms, most Asian markets per-
formed significantly better.

Investments by currency
as of 31 December 2002

N
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L3¢ . BO%
[ Other 4.2%
Total CHF 86 728 million

Swiss Re's equity position, which is
marked to market in the balance sheet, was
negatively affected by this market weak-
ness. A significant portion of this market
decline negatively affected the income
statement as it was considered a non-
temporary adjustment of valuation levels.
Total impairments charged to the income
statement amounted to CHF 3.9 billion,
CHF 0.9 billion in the first half-year and
CHF 3.0 billion in the second half-year.
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Since early in 2000, when equity markets
peaked, Swiss Re has significantly re-
duced its exposure to equities from 34%
of the portfolio in December 1899 to 18%
by mid-year 2002 In June 2002, Swiss
Re hedged a considerable portion of its
remaining equity exposure by means of
buying puts and selling calls, thus partly
protecting itself from the impact of the
ensuing equity downturn. At the same
time. the equity portfolio was reduced
further to reflect Swiss Re's revised risk/
return assessment. The actions resulted in
significant net realised gains from equity
sales of CHF 1 biilion, and significant gains
on the equity hedges of CHF 0.6 billion.

The sharp decline of stock markets had a
positive impact on bond markets, as funds
were reallocated from equities to fixed-in-
come securities. The risk aversion that had
depressed equity markets also triggered

a widening of spreads on corporate bonds.
Government bonds rallied to very high
levels and yields fell to long-term lows. The
resulting increase in the value of the bond
portfolio was CHF 3.0 billion. However,
this increased value is not recognised in
Swiss Re's income statement or share-
holders’ equity, unless the bonds are sold.
Realised gains on bonds for the year
amounted to CHF 1.3 billion,
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Investments decreased from CHF 96 bil-
lion to CHF 87 billion in 2002. The signifi-
cant decline of the US dollar against the
Swiss franc and the equity downturn far
outweighed the positive cash flow and
gains on the bond portfolio. At 31 Decem-
ber 2002, equities accounted for

CHF 12.3 billion, or 14% of investments,
compared to 20% in the prior year. The
net equity risk was significantly lower at
9%. At 31 December 2002, fixed-income
investments, including fixed-income secu-
rities, mortgages and other loans as well
as short-term investments, represented
81% of the portfolio, compared to 75%

in the prior year. Other investments, com-
prising of investment real estate and other
invested assets, remained stable at 5%.

Allocation of investments
as of 31 December 2002

_.Fixed-income investments  80.8%
JEquity securities” L 140%
3 Other investments 5.1%

Total

* Net of hedges, equities are 9.1%

CHF 86 728 million

The return on investment is 4.7%, com-
pared with 8.0% in the prior period; the
difference mainly reflects the impairments
on equities and, to a lesser extent, lower
realised gains and the lower vield on fixed-
income investments.




Summary of financial statements

The following information is a summary of the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group that have been prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER and the
Swiss Company Law. For more details, please refer to the Group's financial statements.

Income statement

For the years ended 31 December
CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %

Revenues o o
Premiums earned B o ... ... 25219 29058 15

Netinvestmentincome o 5765 5507 -4

Net realised investment gains/losses ... ... 2865  -515

FO.ther revenues 455 365 —20
Total revenues 34104 34415 1

Ufeandheathbenefns . -8532 -10084 18

Acquisition costs ... ... -5p58  -6220 10

Amortisation of goodwill L -BB8B -850 -5

Other operating costs and expéﬁéeé ‘ -3384 -324¢0 -4
Total expenses -34 208 ~34379 0

Income/loss before income tax expense T4 38

Income tax expense -61 v —127 o 108
Net income/loss -165 -91 45

Earnings/losses per sharein CHF
Basic
Diluted

087 =028
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Summary balance sheet

As of 31 December

CHF millions 2001 2002 Changein %
Assets

Investménts - .

Foedincomesecurties 60527 59799 -1

‘Equlty securities

| 19013, e

12259

as

Mortgages and other Ioans 7 796” 6939mm -1
‘Short term |nvestments o _ 3 722 3356_“ . -10
Other invested assets 3569 2838 -20
Total investments 95888 86728 -10
‘Cash and cash equivalents 5018 3773 —25

Relnsurance assets

36965

37106

_Goodwnlland otherlntanglble assets‘ ) ‘ 11 961 10 037__ )
Other assets 16 562 20071 21
Total assets 170230 161 857 -5
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Liabilities SO S
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 68618 62652 -9
Liabilities for life and health policy benefits 41370 37289 10
Unearned premiums - B 6399 6754 6
Fundsheld under reinsurance reaties LAbo4a 8543 45
Reinsurance balances payable _ e 3958 8221 32
Other liabilites 15738 21069 34
Long-term debt 7045 5663 -20
Total liabilities 147 632 145171 -2
Total shareholders’ equity 22598 16 686 -26
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 170 230 161 857 -5
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Summary of financial statements

(continued)

Changes in shareholders’ equity

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
Balance asof T January o S ... 22787 22598 -1

_Netincome/loss i 75 o-e1 45

(Changeinunrealised gains//osses on securties,ret . -3455  -2874 14

Foreign currency translation acjustments o w7 -2201

Dwidends ... T’ 76 9

Equity issued e 4006 212 =95

C Cepralrepayment o SH7

__Changeinaccountingpoliey . -1e2

Additional minimum liability, net v—82
Balance as of 31 December 22598 16 686 -26

Summary cash flow statement

For the years ended 31 December
CHF miltions 200 2002 Change in %

3023 3930 .30
| vfiom investing activities 8385  -6562 22
Cash flow from financing activities 6795 1838 73
ot o foretan e e U R
Change in cash and cash equivalents 1585 -1245

Cash and cash equivalentsas of 1 January S 3433 ...5018 46
Coshand casnequualenisasof 31 December " sgi a7 s

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
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Bess client relations on partnerships

Working together to manage corporate risk

Integrated businesses face &
broad spectrum of risks:
ohysical, operational and
financial. Sharing experience
and understanding, Swiss Re
and its client, @ global leader
In agricultural processing,
structured an enterprise-wide
blended multi-line cover.







(@ Crushed and mixed with water — Permanent quality monitoring

' . corn shortly after the inlet during the production process
Cumping truck loads of corn into the (€] Monitoring the packaging and filling
“mouth” of the processing plant line for cooking oils
(8] International commodities trading Alcohol, another by-product of corn

floor — buying and selling processing, is filled into rail cars

P

= A
RN W

Handling grain always presents an explosion hazard: devastating accidents with numerous fatalities have
repeatedly underlined the dangers. Good housekeeping and the use of dust separators keep potentially explo-

sive dust under control, while silos and machines are fitted with pressure relief panels.

Advanced research improves processes and creates new products. The production of foodstuffs is sensitive
to risks such as fire, smoke contamination and water damage. Even small, localised fires can lead to a loss of all

the goods in a building and require costly clean-up of plant and machinery.

This company owns the world’s largest agricultural transportation network: thousands of trucks, railroad
cars, barges and tugboats. Sourcing, processing and shipment are managed centrally to maximise operating

efficiency and reduce operational risks.
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Property & Casualty Business Group

The significant improvement in the combined ratio of the

Property & Casualty Business Group to 104% was driven

by higher rates and tighter underwriting, leading to much

improved terms and conditions in all the major markets.

Premiums earned grew by 16% in original currency.

Primary market

The global trend towards higher insurance
rates continued with average increases of
10-20% in the major markets such as
the US, the UK, France and Germany. The
rise was stronger in the commercial and
industrial sector, which started at a much
lower level than the personal insurance
area. The increase was driven primarily by
the capital constraints experienced by
most of the industry following several
years of poor results and sharply lower in-
vestment yields. Several companies expe-
rienced an adverse development, which
fed to significant reserve increases, partic-
ularly for asbestos-related claims.

There was little merger and acquisition
activity, although a number of smaller
transactions were generated by the need
to concentrate on core strategic business
segments or geographical areas. Terror-
ism was a major topic as insurers at-
tempted to provide their clients with cov-
erage, while protecting their own balance
sheets from a risk that is difficult to model
and price. The solutions ranged from ab-
solute exclusion to full or partial coverage,
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excluding such risks as biological, chem-
ical or nuclear warfare. At the end of the
day, relatively little terrorism insurance
was actually purchased. The long-awaited
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA) was
enacted in the United States just before
year-end. The legislation authorises the
US Government to pay up to USD 100 bii-
lion per year to cover insurers’ terrorism
losses. Once specific insurer or industry-
wide retentions are reached, the US Gov-
ernment would cover 90% of an insurer’s
loss from terrorism. In 2003, the industry
retention level is set at USD 10 billion,
increasing to USD 15 billion by 2005. The
TRIA programme will require additional
legislation to continue beyond 2005.

Reinsurance market

During 2002, the reinsurance industry
as a whole demonstrated a strong focus
on risk selection and rate adequacy. The
rise in reinsurance prices seen in 2001
continued, and coverage narrowed
through, more restrictive wordings, in-
creased retentions and reduced capacity.
The shift to non-proportional coverage
continued, providing reinsurers with more
transparency and control over pricing
and exposures.

Some composite companies disposed of
reinsurance operations that were con-
sidered non-core. A few second-tier rein-
surers left the market entirely or withdrew
from selected lines of business or geo-
graphical areas. The sixth largest reinsurer
ceased writing new business and sought
buyers for several of its businesses. The
availability of capacity varied widely by
line of business, type of peril and geo-
graphical location. Recent market en-
trants, mostly located in Bermuda, were
competing mainly for property catastro-
phe business and showed little risk ap-
petite for long-tail lines of business.

An increased focus on reinsurers’ financial
strength was evident, especizlly in those
lines of business where claims take
several years to emerge. The balance sheet
strength of the top-tier reinsurers con-
tinues to attract security-conscious ceding
companies.

New pocling mechanisms for terrorism
risk have emerged in France and
Germany, combining the capacity of the
insurance and reinsurance industry
with governmental guarantees.
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Property & Casualty Business
Group

Swiss Re's Property & Casualty Business
Group continued its strategy to better
leverage its knowledge and risk manage-
ment skills operating through one global
group. Local business units took the lead
in implementing strong global guidelines.
The integration of Bavarian Re into the
brand name Swiss Re was successfully
completed with a retention rate of approxi-
mately 95% of the combined portfolic.
Latin American operations were stream-
lined into a regional organisation man-
aged from the US.

The business group continued its drive for
client focus, efficiency and effectiveness.
Claims and liability management, under-
writing and client relationship man-
agement are effectively managed locally
according to global guidelines. Technical
expertise in the local markets was en-
hanced with Chief Underwriting Office
representatives in Zurich, Munich, Hong
Kong and the US. An improved risk-clear-
ing system supports risk accumulation
control and ensures a uniform underwrit-
ing approach throughout the Group. The
Group's focus has been to promote ex-
pertise, strengthen client focus, improve
efficiency, install operational responsibil-
ity, further refine pricing methodology and
reinforce a consistent global approach.

Underwriting topics

The underwriting measures introduced
in 2001 were further pursued last year.
Swiss Re participated in the design of
the terrorism pool solutions in France
and Germany.
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In view of recent legal developments in
the US as well as Europe, and to avoid
new claims, such as asbestos, exposure
control was reinforced through tighter
exclusion clauses, the introduction of sub-
limits and other underwriting measures.
Liability capacity for large industrial risks
was further tightened according to strict
transparency and profitability targets.
These risks are written either facultatively
or are priced separately under treaty
arrangements. Swiss Re continued its strict
risk selection in its pharmaceutical prod-
uct liability portfolio, with a strong focus
on the extent of coverage and pricing.

In the natural perils area, the company
also pursued its strategy of pushing

for non-proportional solutions. This per-
mits a more refined pricing and risk man-
agement approach. Sub-limits were im-
posed for the reinsurance of contingent
business interruption.

Decades ago, unlimited coverage of motor
liability was mandated by law in a number
of countries. The insurance and reinsur-
ance industry extended the marketing

of such coverages to countries where this
legal requirement does not apply. In a
further risk management initiative, Swiss
Re ceased writing new unlimited coverage
of motor lizbilities in Germany. Switzerland
and Spain. Swiss Re will continue the dia-
logue with its ceding companies and the
national insurance authorities to further re-
duce and manage these liabilities.

Property & Casualty Business Group results

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
Revenues . e
Premiums eamed 18846 15089 @
Netinvestmentincome 71z 1838 710
Net realised investment gains/losses 1855 -611
Total revenues 17 413 15981 -8
(Claims and claim adjustment expenses Lo
Acquisitioncosts ol
Other operating costs and expenses 5
Total expenses -9
Operating income 281 309 10
Operating result, excluding net realised
investment gains/losses -1674 920
Claimsratioin% 95 T
Acquisition costratioin% 24 22
Administration expense ratioin % S-S
Combinedratioin% .. Lled 104
Combined ratio in % excluding changes
in squalisation reserves 128 s
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Property & Casualty Business Group

(continued)

Premiums earned

Premiums earned grew by 9%. The rel-
ative strength of the Swiss franc had a
negative impact on premium growth; at
constant rates of exchange the underlying
improvement was 16%. Most of the avia-
tion and credit and surety business was
transferred to the Financial Services Busi-
ness Group on 1 January 2002 and,
excluding this effect, ie on a comparable
basis, growth was 19%.

Growth was achieved despite the contin-
ued disciplined re-underwriting of the
book and the marked shift from propor-
tional to non-proportional treaty business.
This allows a greater degree of control
and transparency in the pricing process,
thereby improving the overall quality of
the portfolio, but has a dampening effect
on premium growth.

Key drivers for the increase were the wide-
spread improvement in rates, in both

the primary and reinsurance markets, and
strong new business. Large single trans-
actions alsc contributed to growth.
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An analysis by line of business shows that
property constitutes the same proportion
of the total portfolio as in 2001, ie 34%;
liability has increased its share from 21%
to 25%; motor has reduced from 22% to
18%; accident remains the same with 8%,
and other lines reduced from 16% to

15% due to the transfer of aviation and
credit and surety business to the Financial
Services Business Group.

Combined ratioc

The combined ratic declined considerably
from 124% in 2001 to 104% in 2002.
The underlying improvement in 2002
was 6%, after adjusting 2001 to exclude
11 September 2001,

The increase in primary and reinsurance
rates and the tightening in terms, condi-
tions and coverages contributed to the
significant improvement in the claims
ratio, and there was also a marked reduc-
tion of two percentage points in the aver-
age acquisition cost ratio. The expense
ratio fell from 5.1% to 4.9%, reflecting
management’s continued focus on cost
management.

The combined ratio improved, most
notably in property due to the strong rate
increases and better terms and conditions.
The liability ratio also decreased markedly.
The other lines of business have reacted
more slowly to the improved conditions but
recent renewals indicate that rates, partic-
ularly in liability, are still rising appreciably.

Combined ratio over time

in %
125

100

75
122 n7 124 104

50
1998 2000 2001 2002

Operating income

Operating income has increased from
CHF 281 million to CHF 309 million,
despite realised investment losses of
CHF 611 million, compared to gains of
CHF 1 855 miillion in the previous year.
The result, before realised gains and
losses, improved by CHF 2 434 million,
from aloss of CHF 1 574 million in 2001
to a profit of CHF 920 million in 2002.
The previous year included a loss of
CHF 1 839 million relating to 11 Septem-
ber 2001. Excluding this event, the ab-
solute improvement is CHF 655 million.

This comprises a significant improvement
in the underwriting result of CHF 834 mil-
lion, less an offsetting reduction in net
investmentincome of CHF 179 million,
reflecting both the impact of foreign ex-
change and the lower interest rate envi-
ronment.
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Lines of business

The focus on quality led to the cancella-
tion of further under-performing business
and a continuing shift from proportional to
non-proportionat solutions. Some
business was lost due to Swiss Re's firm
position on the underwriting topics men-
tioned earlier. Nevertheless, new opportu-
nities and share increases on existing
business which met Swiss Re's require-
ments led to strong premium growth.

All lines of business, except accident and

marine, contributed to the combined ratio
improvement due to increased rates and a
reduced level of natural catastrophes and
other large losses.

Property
2001 2001
incl exc!
CHF millions 11 Sep 11 Sep 2002
Premiums earned 4675 4614 5052

Combined ation% 136 109 87

Premiums earned increased by 8% at
original exchange rates. The growth em-
anated from the Asia (+41%) and Amer-
icas (+27%) divisions. where rates contin-
ued to rise and significant new business
was written, including some large single
transactions, and higher shares, which
more than compensated for the cancella-
tions. Europe Division's premiums earned
declined by 10%, reflecting more moder-
ate rate increases, the cancellation of
some large but unsatisfactory quota shares
and the weakness of the euro against the
Swiss franc.
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Including the terrorist attack which
impacted the year 2001, the combined
ratio improved from 136% to 97%. Ex-
cluding the terrorist attack, the combined
ratio improved from 109% to 97%, due
to increased insurance and reinsurance
rates and to the tower incidence and
severity of both natural catastrophes and
man-made losses.

For the industry, Swiss Re Economic
Research & Consulting estimates that
non-life insured losses from natural catas-
trophes and man-made losses, incurred
worldwide during the calendar year
2002, totalled USD 13.5 billion, which is
considerably below the previous year’s
level of USD 35 billion. The most costly
natural events were the floods in Europe
and the storms in the US. The non-life in-
sured loss arising from man-made disas-
ters, such as major fires and explosions,
amounted to USD 2.1 billion worldwide.

Liability
2001 2001
incl excl
CHF millions 11 Sep 11 Sep 2002

Premiums eamed 2840 2840 3801

Combinedratioin% 125 115 10
Solid growth in premiums earned of 34%
was recorded in this line of business. The
growth by division ranges from 26% in
Europe Division to 38% in Americas Divi-
sion and slightly over 50% in Asia Division.
While half of the rise in Americas Division
was generated by a single large transac-
tion, the balance is due to the much higher
rates noted around the world, new busi-
ness and increased participations.

The combined ratio improved by 19 per-
centage points over 2001, to 106%.
Excluding the 11 September 2001 loss,
the combined ratio improved by 9 percent-
age points, helped by a lower incidence
and severity of newly reported claims.

125 115 106

Motor
2001 2001
incl excl
CHF mitlions 11 Sep 11 Sep 2002

Premiums earned 2989 2989 2745
Combinedratioin% 108 108 107

Premiums earned for motor business de-
clined by 8% in 2002. Premium income
from the European portfolio decreased by
19%, mainly due to cancellations in some
eastern European countries. Premiums
earned in the Americas grew by 27% and
in Asia by 25%. In the US, growth was
generated by two large transactions and
in Asia by increased rates, new business
and larger shares. Although the under-
writing result improved by CHF 48 million,
the combined ratio remains unsatisfac-
tory at 107%. Further rate increases and
portfolio improvements will be imple-
mented in 2003.

Accident
2001 2001
incl excl
CHF millions 11 Sep 11 Sep 2002

Premiums earned 1077 1077 1171
Combinedratioin% 85 86 100

Growth in premiums earned was modest
at 9%. Most of the growth came from the
Asia and Americas divisions.

The combined ratio stands at 100%, an
increase of & percentage points over the
previous year, which benefited from a
non-recurring discounting change in the
US. Even in today's environment of lower
interest rates, a combined ratio of 100%
represents a profitable book due to the
long-tail nature of some of this business.
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Property & Casualty Business Group

(continued)

Other lines
2001 2001
incl excl
CHF millions 11 Sep 11 Sep 2002

Premiumsearned 2265 2262 2230
Combinedration% 131 123 115
Engineering: premiums earned grew by
6%, driven mainly by higher rates and
new business in the Americas and Asia
divisions. There is tight capacity in most
markets as some reinsurers have with-
drawn, and many others have reduced
their capacity. The combined ratio im-
proved by 22 percentage points, due to
re-underwriting the portfolio and new,
better priced business. The improvement
ranges from 3 percentage points in Asia
to 37 percentage points in Europe. In all
divisions, but especially in Europe. this is
the result of narrower scope of cover, re-
duced commissions and the absence of
major losses. However, there still remains
scope to improve the profitability of this
business further.

Marine: all three divisions increased their
income from premiums earned, resulting
in a 31% overall increase. The reinsurance
rate level continued to rise across the
board, leading ceding companies to re-
evaluate their reinsurance programmes as
the coverage available per premium dollar
became much lower. Hull rates increased
considerably, and the price for offshore
energy coverage soared due to a capacity
shortage while cargo rates stagnated.
The combined ratio worsened by 20 per-
centage points due to two large losses

in 2002: fire aboard the [uxury cruise ship
“Diamond Princess” while still under con-
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struction and a fire on the freighter "Hanjin
Pennsylvania”, which took four weeks to
extinguish. Following years of unsatisfac-
tory rates, the two large claims mentioned
above, as well as other highly publicised
shipping accidents, marine rates are set
for further substantial increases.

Aviation, credit & surety: following the
transfer to the Financial Services Business
Group, only the run-off of these two lines
of business is reflected in the figures.
Total income from premiums earned
amounted to CHF 300 million, compared
to CHF 738 million in 2001.

Premiums earned 2002
by line of business

\‘\‘

Property . 336%
. Liability . 252%
weoMotor o 18.2%
C_Accident .18 %
] Other 15.2%
Total CHF 15059 million
Cutlook

While some new capital has been raised
in the industry, it does not, by any means,
compensate for the decline in capital gen-
erated by falling investment returns, re-
serve strengthening and escalating losses.
Both the insurance and reinsurance indus-
tries are adjusting to this new environment,
boding well for the maintenance of rates
and conditions in those lines of business

where the technical level has been
achieved and for further rate increases
and the tightening of terms and conditions
in those lines of business and geographi-
cal areas which still need to improve.
Clearly, primary insurers and reinsurers
need to reduce combined ratios well
below the historic level to compensate for
low investment income. Reinsurers with
strong balance sheets will benefit most
from the hard market conditions. The war
in Irag will have little impact on insurance
and reinsurance results as the risk is
largely excluded (property and casualty)
or coverage can be cancelled at short
notice {marine).

The 1 January 2003 renewal was suc-
cessful. While property rates are still
increasing in many areas, in others they
have stabilised at a satisfactory level.
The rise in property rates started in 2000,
continued in 2001 and accelerated
sharply following 11 September 2001,
In the liability, motor, marine and engineer-
ing lines, where losses generally emerge
gradually, recovery started later and was
slower, but accelerated considerably in
2002 and was sustained at the 1 January
2003 renewal.

At Swiss Re, the focus on capital utilisa-
tion and capacity deployment, underwrit-
ing discipline and bottom-line profitabil-
ity will continue. Through the local busi-
ness units, the business group is close
to the markets and the underwriting phi-
losophy is quickly adapted to reflect
changing conditions. With its leadership
position developed over many years,
Swiss Re is well equipped to take advan-
tage of the hard market and to continue
its drive for profitability.
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Life & Health Business Group

Total operating revenues increased by 20% to

CHF 14 751 million and the operating result {(excluding

realised gains) increased by 15% to CHF 1 344 million.

The Life & Health Business Group successfully sustained

its track record for profitability, despite challenging

financial markets.

Primary insurance market

The primary market shifted from invest-
ment-linked products toward fixed-return
and protection products as consumers re-
acted to unattractive equity returns and
their awareness of personal risk height-
ened. Term life premiums grew at a rate of
13% in the US. itis anticipated that future
US growth will reduce to more historical
tevels of 3-5%. In the UK, term life new
business premiums grew by 36%, as pre-
mium rates continued to fall resulting in
significant replacement of business, sup-
plemented by the rise in the demand for
life cover, due to the booming housing
market. A predicted housing market slow-
down, together with hardening premium
rates, may curtail UK term life new busi-
ness growth going forward.

The capital base of many life insurance
companies has declined significantly. This
is particularly the case in the UK and Eu-
rope, where companies historically have
maintained a significant exposure to equi-
ties. In addition, many factors have placed
substantial pressure on the ability of life
insurers to sustain profitability: exposure
to corporate bond defaults, lower sales
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of variable annuity products and excep-
tionally low interest rates. This has accel-
erated the consolidation of new busingss
into larger companies as consumers
follow a widely predicted "flight to gual-
ity”. Primary insurers increasingly focus on
the management of their capital bases,
which has prompted reductions or with-
drawals from new business markets and
simultaneously has increased prospec-
tive volumes for the sale of in-force blocks
of business.

The ageing population is increasing de-
mand for pension protection; however, in-
creased uncertainty regarding the struc-
ture and value of pension products has
acted as a brake on growth in this area. in-
creased demand is anticipated in Ger-
many, ttaly and Spain, where pension re-
forms are being implemented or are under
discussion. Tax advantages included in the
German reforms are expected to encour-
age people to buy pension products with
occupational pension funds. However. only
some of these pension funds will be ad-
ministered by insurance companies.

The primary markets in India and China
are growing at an increasing rate, spurred
by the granting of new direct insurer li-
cences and the maturing of their regula-
tory environments. These countries repre-
sent two of the most important future
growth markets in the world. Excluding
Japan, Asia’s life insurance business is

expected to grow by close to 9% per an-
num in real terms over the next five years.
Asia’s strong economic growth, high sav-
ings rate, the region’s favourable demo-
graphics and the success of the bancas-
surance model are fuelling this growth.

Reinsurance market

The growth in the life reinsurance market
has slowed gradually from the strong pace
demonstrated during the late 1990s. New
business cession rates in the US and UK
are likely to have peaked, although in-force
cession rates of total life business are
forecast to continue to rise over the next
few years. This results from an increasing
proportion of higher cession rates on

new business compared to older business.
Accordingly, growth in the life reinsurance
market as a whole is expected to exceed
the growth in the primary market over the
next few years.

The primary market's increased focus on
capital management and cost control is
expected to provide more opportunities
for Admin ReS™ and other in-force trans-
actions and may also create further oppor-
tunities for traditional reinsurance.

Although there is evidence of a greater
awareness of capital management within
the European market, progress in this area
has been slow but is anticipated to im-
prove, especially in certain markets such
as eastern Europe.




Life & Health Business Group

(continued)

The life reinsurance market in Asia, ex-
cluding Japan, is expected to grow faster
than other OECD countries over the next
five years, mainly from the growth of the
primary markets and the removal of cer-
tain regulatory restrictions on writing rein-
surance. In particular, as assets backing
the reserves of primary insurers have
weakened, the increased focus on capital
management through risk transfer should
provide interesting opportunities for
strongly capitalised reinsurers.

The life reinsurance market is going
through significant change and consolida-
tion. As the world leader in life reinsur-
ance, Swiss Re's commitment 1o the busi-
ness and its financial strength are increas-
ingly sought after by its clients.

Develocpment and implemen-
tation of Life & Health Busi-
ness Group strategy

Swiss Re's strategy to focus on protection
products rather than investment-linked
products {(eg variable annuities}), com-
bined with an asset and liability manage-
ment strategy which requires largely dura-
tionally matched fixed-interest securities
to back its liabilities, has allowed it to cre-
ate substantial advantage in the current
volatile markets. This long-term strategy
fits all parts of the market cycle including
the challenges faced in 2002: low interest
rates, falling equity markets and an un-
certain global environment.

Swiss Re has continued to demonstrate
strong new business growth in North
America, reflecting Swiss Re's leadership
position and the growth in the under-
lying protection market. Further, Swiss Re
has demonstrated a continuing focus on
the mortality protection business and
away from less profitable accident and
health business. This has led 10 its with-
drawal of reinsurance coverage for

poor performing sectors, such as guaran-
teed critical iliness business in the UK
and its focus on new developing areas
such as AdminRe®™ business in the US.

The integration of Lincoln Re is now com-
plete, including a full systems conversion
and planned reductions in staff. New busi-
ness volumes were in line with expec-
tations, reflecting a favourable response
from clients. The dispute with Lincoln
National was resolved in October 2002.
Under the terms of the settlement, Lincoln
National paid Swiss Re USD 295 million
in cash to satisfy Swiss Re's demand

for additional assets to support the closing
balance-sheet liabilities delivered by Lin-
coln and to extinguish Lincoln’s obligation
to indemnify Swiss Re for adverse devel-
opment on Lincoln Re's exited lines of
business. The resolution had a favourable
impact on Swiss Re’s financial position as
the payment resulted in a reduction in the
effective purchase price for Lincoln Re.

Swiss Re continued to identify new
opportunities to develop its Admin ReSM
portfolio during the year by completing
three Admin ReM transactions: Conseco
Direct, Bankers Life and Northern Life.
These transactions required total invested
capital of CHF 500 million and added
CHF 1 650 million to the Group's assets.

In Asia, Swiss Re has built a strong fran-
chise by offering its clients access to its
global experience and knowledge in risk
management, product development and
pricing through its experienced and dy-
namic local teams of reinsurance experts.
In view of the region’s growth potential,
Asia’s weight in Swiss Re's overall port-
folio will increase over time. In particular,
the recent opening of the Indian market to
foreign companies and the anticipated
nationwide branch licence in China will
ensure Swiss Re's optimal positioning to
capture this growth.

Premiums earned 2002 by region

North Ame_rica ) 700%
T Rest of the world 7.4%
Total CHF 11 275 million
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Life & Health Business Group results

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
Revenues .. - e
Premiums garmed 8922 11275 26
Net investment income 3388 3476 3
Operating revenues 12310 14791 20
Net realised investment gains/losses 515 -28

Total revenues 12825 14723 15
Expenses B s

Claims and c!aim‘a'd‘jhs'tment expens‘é‘é;”

lifeand health benefits ....78b02 -10084 = 19
Acquisition costs R 207772582 LA
Other operating o expenseé AU e D S
Total expenses -11 143 -13407 20
Operating income 1682 1316 =22
Operating result, excluding

net realised investment gains/losses 1167 1344 15
Managementexpenseration% 46 80
Retur on operating revenvesin% 95 91

Premiums earned

CHF millions 2001 2002 Changein%
Lfe 6965 8968 29
Health 1957 2307 18
Total 8922 11275 26

Premiums earned increased by 26% to
CHF 11 275 million in 2002 despite an
adverse foreign exchange impact of

CHF 6086 million {7%). Lincoln Re con-
tributed CHF 2 445 million to this growth,
including CHF 266 million from the
Employer Stop Loss business that was
sold in July 2002. Excluding the impact
of Lincoin Re and foreign exchange move-
ments. premiums increased by 6% dur-
ing the year.
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Net investment income grew by 3%, as
increased investment income resulting
from the acquisition of Lincoln Re and
new business written was partially offset
by the decline in global interest rates and
in the US dollar. The decline in equities
was the primary reason for the capital
loss of CHF 28 million, compared to
CHF 515 million in gains in the prior year.

Operating result, excluding net realised
investment gains/losses

CHF millions 2001 2002 Changein%
e 1075 934  -13
Health 92 410 346
Total 1167 1344 15

The operating result (excluding realised
gains and losses) improved from

CHF 1 167 millionin 2001 to CHF 1 344
million in 2002, an increase of 16%. The
principal reason for the increase was the
inclusion of Lincoln Re and certain non-
recurring gains on the health portfolio, par-
tially offset by a charge of CHF 280 million
on Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit
contracts (GMDB) primarily related to poor
equity market performance. In addition,
higher mortality claims, lower net invest-
ment yields and adverse foreign exchange
impacts also affected the results.
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Life & Health Business Group

(continued)

The return on operating revenues
was 9.1%. the fourth consecutive year
above 9%.

Return on operating revenues
over gime

in%
1

93 92 8.5 91
1988 2000 2001 2002

QN b o ®

GMDB is a product feature contained in
many variable annuity contracts. The
product feature guarantees the benefi-
ciary the greater of account value or mini-
mum death benefit which is based on

the amount deposited. Certain GMDB
contracts provide an additional feature in
which the death benefit is reset each year
to the maximum anniversary account
value. For many of these contracts, the
death benefits are currently set at the
equity market peak achieved during the
period 1999-2000.

Swiss Re began reinsuring GMDB in
1995 and exited the market in late 1998.
Swiss Re’s exposure to these contracts

is based upon the difference between the
guaranteed death benefit.and the cur-
rent account value. The movement of the
underlying account values is approxi-
mately correlated to the movement in
the S&P 500 Index.
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Stochastic models are used to calculate
the reserve, using assumptions for mortal-
ity, lapses and investment returns in line
with the recently proposed US GAAP
accounting guidance. The reserve as at
31 December 2002 was based on an
S&P 500 Index of 880 and resulted in a
charge of approximately CHF 280 million
in 2002, This reserve will continue to
fluctuate with the S&P 500 Index.

Favourably impacting the results were
several non-recurring gains from the re-
capture or settlement of certain treaties in
the accident and health segment. Whilst
Swiss Re has withdrawn from writing new
long-term guaranteed critical illness busi-
ness in the UK, losses were experienced in
2002 on the run-off of existing business.

In addition to the above, the depreciation
of the US dollar and other currencies
against the Swiss franc had a significant
impact in 2002, reducing the result com-
pared to 2001 by CHF 74 million (6%).

The management expense ratio increased
in 2002 to 5.0%, from 4.6% in 2001.
This ratio declined from 5.3% for the first
half of the year as the full benefits of

the Lincoln Re integration were realised.

Outlook

Traditional life reinsurance premium
growth is expected to outpace the growth
in the primary market, predicted to be
approximately 3—5% per annum, which is
consistent with the growth expected in
the global economy as a whole. The rate
of life reinsurance growth, however, will
be less than experienced in recent years
due 1o the stabilisation of cession rates in
the US and UK. As a result, the Group has
reduced its target growth rate in operating
revenues to 7%. The actual growth rate
will depend on many factors, including
the growth rate of the primary market, the
Group's success in consummating Ad-
min Re®™ transactions, and the investment
income on fixed-income investments.
Consistent with the current low interest
rate environment, Swiss Re is reverting

to its historical target return on operating
revenues of 9%.

The opportunities to consummate Admin
Re®M transactions should continue as the
supply of deals increases, reflecting

the continuing capital pressures on the
primary market. Admin Re®M capital
invested to date in 2003 is approximately
CHF 235 million.
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Financial Services Business Group

The Financial Services Business Group reported a loss of CHF 633 million in 2002,

which was mainly attributable to the Lloyd’s Central Fund, US surety business, cor-

porate client-related transactions and the weak equity markets. Operating revenues

were up by 9%, driven by improvements in Corporate Risk Underwriting.

Financial Services Business Group results

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
“eremumscamed Caam 2
 Netmestmentincome s s
Net realised investment géihé/ioséés R » 218 o -338
. Tradmgrevenues : e T P S
Fees ahd commrsswons 567 ' 456 -20
Gross revenues 3801 3580 -6
Expenses | o
Acauisitioncosts | -226 7307 88
Claims and claim adjustment expenses -3241 -2898 -1
Gross margin 336 375 12
Operating costs -1267 -1008 -20
Operating income/loss -932 -633 32
Operating result, excluding net realised
investment gains/losses -11560 -294 =74

General

A CHF 633 million operating loss for 2002
reflects contrasting trends. In Corporate
Risk Underwriting, property and aviation
underwriting improved significantly lead-
ing to a totat combined ratio of 97%, and
also Financial Products had a stronger
than expected operational year. By con-
trast, Credit Solutions, due largely to provi-
sions for the Lloyd’s Central Fund cover,
claims on US surety busingss relating to
prior treaty years, and credit losses on cor-
porate defaults including Holzmann and
Kmart led to poor performance. The result
also suffered from a much lower invest-
ment return {CHF 183 million in 2002
compared to CHF 837 million in 2001).
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Return on tetal revenues over time

in%
20
244 11.9
0
~245 ~17.7
—20
1999 2000 2001 2002

Net premiums earned rose by 11%, prima-
rily due to price increases in Corporate
Risk Underwriting. Operating revenues
(gross revenues excluding net realised in-
vestment gains/losses) were up by 23%
in focal currencies. when adjusted for
NCM's 2002 deconsolidation and the

transfer of aviation and credit business
from the Property & Casualty Business
Group at the beginning of 2002.

The Financial Services Business Group

tock several steps to improve the risk pro-

file, create efficiencies and free up capital

for deployment in Swiss Re businesses

with a potentially higher return:

© The structured credit business was
shifted from capital-intensive, portfolio-
based activities to transaction-based
tradeable credit markets products. The
business group continues to be active
in offering credit risk services and prod-
ucts, including traditional credit and
surety underwriting, and financial guar-
anty {re)insurance, as well as credit
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Financial Services Business Group

(continued)

securitisation and credit trading/distri-
bution in both cash and derivative form.
Private equity investments were re-
duced and in early 2003. Capital Part-
ners was integrated into Swiss Re
Asset Management, with resulting
efficiency gains going forward.
= Structured Risk Finance operations
were restructured to focus on fewer
product categories and will concen-
trate on large insurance companies
and corporates in selected industries.

Tl

The Financial Services Business Group
serves its clients through four business
units: Risk Solutions, Credit Solutions,
Advisory & Capital Markets, and Asset
Management.

Total revenues 2002 by business unit

...-RiskSolutions  ~  581%
O GreditSolutons  21.7%
- Advisory & Capital Markets  11.2%
[ Asset Management 9.0%

Total CHF 3 580 million
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Risk Solutions

CHF millions 2001 2002 Changein %
Grossrevenues o B
Premiums earned lbes  1eso 26
Netinvestmentincome 342 3% 5
. Net realised investment gains/losses 298 -280
Fees and commissions 59 31 -47
Gross revenues 2263 2081 -8
Expenses o
| Acquisitoncosts . <125 -B6 =55
Claims and claim adjuétment expenses -2850 -2012 -29
Gross margin =712 13
Operating costs -193 -188 -3
QOperating income/loss -906 -175 81

The Risk Solutions unit includes Corpo-
rate Risk Underwriting and Structured Risk
Finance. Corporate Risk Underwriting,
the unit’s larger component, provides con-
ventional {re)insurance products to large
corporate clients, financial institutions
and the aviation market in the high-sever-
ity/ low-frequency risk segment. Struc-
tured Risk Finance is Swiss Re's centre

of competence for non-traditional insur-
ance solutions.

Risk Solutions’ overall premium volume
rose strongly in 2002 to CHF 1 980 mil-
lion due to Corporate Risk Underwriting’s
premium growth of CHF 600 million, or
more than 60% in local currencies. During
2002, Corporate Risk Underwriting was
able to raise prices and extend its market
share in property and casualty as well as
in aviation business.

Risk Solutions continued its policy of writ-
ing business at higher attachment points
and of systematically narrowing terms and
conditions. The repositioning of the port-
folio during the last year began to pay off
as overall claims frequency dropped. The
property book suffered no losses from nat-
ural catastrophes and experienced a low
frequency of man-made losses. Aviation
renewals were once again at historically
high levels, and relatively modest losses
helped the aviation business to finish the
year with & highly positive result. However,
casualty experienced increased claims

(as reported in the Interim Report), mostly
from pharmaceutical contracts written be-
tween 1998 and 2000. The overall tech-
nical result of the traditional business gen-
erated a combined ratio of around 97%.
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In 2002, the Structured Risk Finance
business was well diversified by products
and by insurance and corporate clients,
although production was below expec-
tations. The in-force portfolio of trans-
actions performed well, above original
expectations.

Disappointingly, the negative develop-
ment of some mainly corporate client
transactions written in prior years (discon-
tinued activities) and net realised invest-
ment losses produced an operating loss
of CHF 175 million.
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Credit Solutions'

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
 Premiumseamed 886 740 -6
N 'i'h\'/éét'rﬁe‘nt oo o R
N in§(e§tm§n; gans/iosses . —69 e
. Tradmgrevenues B . 8 4 N _50
Fees and commissions 39 -1
Gross revenues 990 776 -22
Expense SR e
 Acquisition costs ‘ -85 -237 9
e adjustmentexpenses e Caae T ey
Gross margin 514 -347
Operating costs -407 -87 -79
Operating income/loss 107 -434

! Credit Solutions in 2007 included the results of NCM, the credit primary insurer which the Group sold as of 31 December 2001.
The consideration included an equity share in the newly formed Gerling NCM company. In 2001, NCM, as a primary insurer,
reported premiums of CHF 543 million, fees and commissions of CHF 39 million, total investment income of CHF 37 million,
claims of CHF 266 million, acquisition costs of CHF 28 million and operating costs of CHF 338 milfion.

The Credit Solutions unit offers trade
credit and surety reinsurance as well as
structured credit solutions. Traditional
credit reinsurance constitutes more than
two-thirds of the credit risk portfolio.

In the course of 2002, the global financial
sector was exposed to significantly higher
credit losseas as insclvency rates climbed
and a record number of downgrades con-
tributed to generally lower credit quality.

In this environment, Credit Solutions re-
ported an operating loss of CHF 434 mil-
lion on revenues of CHF 776 million. Pre-
miums earned decreased from the 2001
level because of the NCM deconsolida-
tion. This deconsolidation more than off-
set the first-time inclusion of the credit
and surety business previously written

by the Property & Casualty Business
Group. the main part of which was US
surety business.

The operating loss occurred primarily in
the first half of the year. In additionto a
few claims from large corporate defaults,
there were substantial new claims from
previous underwriting years, the main
source being the Lloyd’s Central Fund
contract. The final six months of 2002
developed more favourably with no new
large losses reported in the European
credit reinsurance portfolio despite de-
pressed credit markets. The US surety
portfolio had a high claims ratio in the sec-
ond half of the year arising from previous
treaty years.
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Financial Services Business Group

(continued)

Production of structured credit business
was limited as Swiss Re proactively
lowered its level of exposure. The portfolio
credit default swap business incurred no
cash losses during the year, but marked-
to-market there was a CHF 57 million neg
ative impact on operating income.

T

Both credit reinsurance and structured
credit underwriting have demonstrated
comparatively low volatility due to a long-
established policy of conservative under-
writing measures, prudent risk manage-
ment as well as systematic risk mitigation.

Credit reinsurance continues to benefit
from clients” “flight to quality”, which
allows improving terms and conditions,
higher deductibles and other remedial
action, including more stringent collat-
eral requirements.
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Advisory & Capital Markets

CHF millions 2001 2002 Changein %
Gross revenues o
Premiumseamed . SO
* Net investment income 5 2 140
 Net realised investment gains o
Tedngreenes o
Fees and commissions 206 173 -16
Gross revenues 149 402 170
Expenses
Cheaustoncoss Ge e
Claims and claim adjustment expenses
Gross margin 134 388 180
Operating costs -280 -392 40
Operating income/loss -146 -4 97

The Advisory & Capital Markets unit com-
prises the investment bank Fox-Pitt, Kelton
and Financial Products. Fox-Pitt, Kelton
provides research and brokerage in its
core area of banks and insurance stocks,
while Financial Products concentrates on
debt capital markets origination, trading
and distribution.

Revenues increased strongly to CHF 402
miliion as Financial Products became
fully operational. In the absence of any
major credit losses (compared with
2007}, the combined operating results of
Financial Products and Fox-Pitt, Kelton
were positive prior to adjustment for start-
up costs. Including start-up costs, the unit
had an operating loss of CHF 4 million.

Financial Products achieved its revenue
target in its first year of operation. Its areas
of major activity were credit- and asset-
backed securities, with a focus on insur-
ance-linked securitisation.

Swiss Re Capital Markets Corporation,
the entity within Swiss Re Financial Prod-
ucts responsible for the underwriting

and distribution of securities, is the lead-
ing underwriter and dealer of insurance-
linked securities.

Despite a difficult equity capital market
environment, Fox-Pitt, Kelton produced
comparatively strong revenues, down only
slightly compared with 2001. Brokerage
commissions rose by 6% in its research-
driven activity.
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Asset Management

CHEF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
Gross revenues ‘
~ Premiums eaned
_Netinvestmentincome L.185 88 -43
Nt realised investment gains/losses C18. -0 -5
Trading revenues o ;
N T T
Gross revenues 399 321 -20
Expenses ‘
_ Acouisitoncosts
Claims and claim adjustfnént‘éx‘béhses‘“ -
Gross margin 389 321 -20
Operating costs -387 -341 =12
Operating income/loss 12 -20

The Asset Management unit manages
fixed-income, traded-equity and certain
private equity investments for Swiss Re
and third parties, primarily insurance
companies. In the US, Conning Asset
Management principally serves insurance
companies with asset management and
asset liability management services. Swiss
Re is among the top three US manage-
ment firms for insurance company assets.

Asset Management’s 2002 operating
results were negative to the extent of
CHF 20 million. Realised gains on the par-
tial flotation of Swiss Re's Partner Re
participation and the sale of NCM were
offset by additional write-downs in the
company’s private equity investment port-
folio and slightly lower fee revenues. Fees
for the management of Swiss Re’s pro-
prietary assets decreased due to the ad-
verse development of equity capital mar-
kets, whilst fees for third-party business
increased.
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Atyear-end 2002, total assets under man-
agement were CHF 137 billion, including
CHF 54.1 billion from third parties.
Approximately 85%, or CHF 115.3 billion,
represented fixed-income assets, with
12% or CHF 17.6 billion in equity assets,
and the remainder being real estate and
other assets.

In difficult market conditions, Swiss Re's
third-party asset management activities
generated net new money inflow of

CHF 4.9 billion. In the US, the company
was able to attract major new accounts
and had excellent client retention. Total
client funds decreased during 2002 due
10 adverse exchange rate developments
and market movements (CHF —5.7 bil-
lion), and the sale of Conning’s St. Louis-
based mortgage securitisation operation
with CHF 4.0 billion of assets under
management. In Eurcpe, the build-up of
third-party business continued, with new
operations now in place in Germany,
France and the Netherlands. These busi-
nesses aim exclusively at the institutional
segment: insurance and pension funds.

Qutlock

Having contributed 45% to operating
revenues in 2002, Corporate Risk Under-
writing will benefit from the continued
hard market in property, casualty and avia-
tion business. Credit Solutions, as the
second largest business unit, expects 10
report good results in 2003, based on the
favourable credit reinsurance renewals

in January as well as on increased price
levels of the primary credit insurance.
Overall, Corporate Risk Underwriting and
Credit Sclutions are expected to produce
a combined ratio in the range of 35% in
2003. The result however, will be mod-
erated by lower investment return expec-
tations. Advisory & Capital Markets should
benefit from the higher returns on Finan-
cial Products activities and from efficiency
gains across the two operating platforms,
Financial Products and Fox-Pitt, Kelton.
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Nanotechnology describes the real-world application of science at the
scale of individual atoms and molecules. A nanometre is a billionth of a
metre: about 1/80 000 of the diameter of a human hair.
Nanotechnology encompasses physics and chemistry, mechanical engi-
neering and electronics, serving a diverse range of applications: micro-

machinery, computing and biomedical uses such as gene therapy, drug

discovery and drug delivery.

Nanaoscale science at IBM's labs in Zurich extends the application of
scanning probe techniques used in the most sensitive microscopes.
Manipulating individual atoms and molecules with the tip of a scanning
tunnelling microscope, scientists create nanometre-sized structures with
the goal of making functional devices such as transistors and biosensors.
At this early stage, it is difficult to predict the exact course of the nano-
technology revolution and its effect on daily life. What is sure is that it
will have a profound impact on many commercial sectors — particularly
electronics, where demand for faster data processing at lower cost
shows no sign of weakening.

Swiss Re's experts are constantly watching the development of new

. technologies to recognise the risks and changes of tomorrow and to

work out how a reinsurer can cope with these exposures.

(@] Working at nanoscale: focus on the tip

of a scanning tunneiling microscope (STM)
(8] Researcher Reto Schlitter at the STM

@& A view into the vacuum chamber of an ST
Model of a designer molecule used

for experiments in moving and placing
individual molecules at room temperature
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Corporate Centre divisions

In these times of financial market turbulence and a

changing risk landscape, Swiss Re’s Corporate Centre

plays a vital role in managing the Group's resources.

Swiss Re's Corporate Centre with its

four divisions Finance, Risk & Knowledge,
information, Processes & Technology and
Communications & Human Resources
supports the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board in managing the Group's
assets and liabilities and developing Swiss
Re's role as a global company.

Financial management,
corporate governance and
transparency

Swiss Re actively promotes transparency
regarding its financial management and
governance (please refer to pages 43 and
44 on Capital management and pages
52-71 on Corporate governance for more
information). Meeting high requirements
and standards has enabled Swiss Re to
ensure sound financial strength and con-
tinued robustness in reserves.

Claims management,
risk research

Significant and rapid changes in the legal
environment and liability regime mean
that the (re)insurance industry must rely
increasingly on a global approach to com-
prehensive claims management. This situ-
ation has prompted Swiss Re to create the
position of Chief Claims Strategist, report-
ing to the Chief Risk Officer. The new posi-
tion involves developing strategies to cope
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with the changing liability regime, sup-
porting the claims organisation in manag-
ing large and complex claims and coordi-
nating claims management for Swiss Re's
three business groups.

In socio-political risk research, a new unit
will be responsible for monitoring,
analysing and assessing social and politi-
cal trends and events. This will further
enhance the Group’s risk assessment and
risk management skills.

Both initiatives are important parts of
Swiss Re’s risk management process
(please refer to pages 45 and 46 for more
information) to further improve underwrit-
ing quality, claims handling and reinsur-
ance business terms and conditions.

infermation technology,
knowledge management

Challenging times increase the need for
fast and effective information delivery:
several Group-wide solutions became
available in the area of information tech-
nology during 2002, supporting business
requirements around the world and en-
hancing the use of information for im-
proved business decisions. Some web-
based solutions, such as the enhanced
global Client Management System, facili-
tate access to knowledge within the
Group; others accelerate the exchange of
information between Swiss Re and its
business partners. An Enterprise Docu-
ment Management System was rolled out
to enable Swiss Re employses to gain
rapid access to the documents relevant
to their business function.

Human resources,
communications

The Group Human Resources (HR) data
warehouse, introduced in summer 2002,
marked an important milestone in imple-
menting the strategy of consistent man-
agement of HR data from over 70 offices
in more than 30 countries. The new
solution provides a single source of infor-
mation for managing Swiss Re's human
capital — over 8 000 employees across

a decentralised organisation — while
ensuring compliance with all data pro-
tection reguirements.

Swiss Re’s communication effort focused
on the full implementation of “Top Top-
ics”, an initiative to concentrate attention
on strategic and business-relevant
themes. These are areas in which Swiss
Re has developed a wealth of expertise
and know-how thanks to its research ca-
pabilities {please refer to pages 8 and 9
for more information). This approach,
combined with the requisite additional
communication measures, has consider-
ably increased Swiss Re's profile among
the international media.

Corporate Centre operating
expenses

Change
CHF millions 2001 2002 in%
Operating expenses —-450 -437 -3

As a result of active cost management, the
Corporate Centre’s operating expenses
were reduced by 3% to CHF 437 million.
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Capital management

Despite the decrease in its shareholders’ equity in 2002,
Swiss Re continues to be very strongly capitalised and is

committed to maintaining its financial strength.

Swiss Re's reported shareholders’ equity
was affected by the fall in the stock
markets and the decline in the value of
the US dollar in 2002,

While there has been a reduction in the
company’'s book equity, the exposures to
both stocks and US dollar underwriting
risk denominated in Swiss francs have
also declined. Swiss Re actively reduced
its risk profile during 2002. From a risk
perspective, the combination of these
factors more than compensates for the
decline in shareholders’ equity.

Despite lowering Swiss Re's ratings, the
rating agencies continue to assess
Swiss Re's capitalisation as very strong
and acknowledge the company's excel-
lent diversification and historically con-
servative reserving.

The decline in capital has affected many
{re)insurers even more significantly than
Swiss Re, and the rating agencies have
therefore reduced many of Swiss Re’s
clients’ and competitors’ ratings. These
circumstances have prompted a “flight to
quality” and are producing excellent op-
portunities for Swiss Re’s core business.

In order to take advantage of these op-
portunities, Swiss Re is committed to
continuing the prudent management of
its capital and to maintaining its superior
financial strength for the benefit of its
clients. Swiss Re believes that a strategy
of maintaining a superior balance sheet
strength will maximise value for the com-
pany’s shareholders. Two consecutive
years of loss caused by the 11 September
2001 tragedy, and now in 2002 by a
historic three-year decline in equity mar-
kets, have created the unsatisfactory situ-
ation whereby dividends must be paid
out of capital rather than income. In these
circumstances the Board believes some
reduction of dividend is in line with
Swiss Re’s tradition of prudent financial
management.

Therefore, the Board of Directors will
propose to the Annual General Meeting
a reduction in the dividend to CHF 1.00
per share.

Swiss Re’s USD 2 billion European
Medium Term Notes (EMTN) programme
was successfully renewed during 2002.
The aggregate face value of European
medium term notes outstanding

at the end of 2002 was equivalent to
USD 875 million.
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Capital management

(continued)

Syndicated loans totalling CHF 458 mil-
lion matured in March 2002. These loans
had been taken up to finance the acquisi-
tion of the former Uniorias in [taly in early
1997 and were repaid in 2002. Swiss Re
had no other maturities or issues of long-
term financia!l debt or hybrid capital.

In late summer 2002, Swiss Re success-
fully approached the market to renew an
existing USD 2.5 billion syndicated credit
line, first closed in 1999. The banks re-
affirmed their commitment to Swiss Re and
showed interest in maintaining a strong
relationship. In October 2002, Swiss Re
signed a new USD 3.5 billion syndi-
cated letter of credit facility. Swiss Re’s
ability to market these two facilities simul-
taneously — with a material oversubscrip-
tion for the syndicated letter of credit
facility — demonstrates its continued ex-
cellent creditworthiness in a difficult
environment.
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Funded business

As part of its strategic ambitions to provide risk management solutions to its clients,
Swiss Re may purchase assets with borrowed funds. This type of business generates new
revenue sources whilst enhancing value for clients. Funded structures allow Swiss Re to
access familiar risk classes at more attractive rates of return than would be available on
an unfunded basis.

Funded business is disclosed as separate line items ‘Financial services assets and liabili-
ties’ in the balance sheet. The funding is just a means of accessing a desired category of
risk without significantly affecting the financial market risk profile of the company. There-
fore ‘Financial services assets and liabilities” are structured with the intention of creating
assets and liabilities that generate offsetting foreign-exchange and interest-rate risks.
Group Capital Management coordinates funded business activities throughout the Group.
Currently, the main contributor is the Advisory & Capital Markets unit of the Financial
Services Business Group.

lLong-term debt that is strictly used for funded business is classified as operational debt.
During 2002, Swiss Re took advantage of opportunities to issue medium and long-term
operational debt, The aggregate value of European Medium Term Notes issued in 2002,
maturing &fter the fiscal year 2003, was the equivalent of EUR 34 million, with a weighted
average maturity of 3.5 years. Operational long-term debt raised under Payment Under-
taking Agreements in 2002 totalled USD 487 million, with a weighted average maturity
exceeding 12 years. All interest-rate and currency risk for operational debt is hedged to

a three-month Libor benchmark.
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Risk management

Risk is Swiss Re's business, which makes risk management the key to Swiss Re's suc-

cess. The risk landscape is in a state of constant, sometimes very rapid, change, which

necessitates the ongoing development of the methods and processes used to assess,

guantify, classify, monitor and control risk. The following interview with Bruno Porro,

Executive Board Committee member and Chief Risk Officer, provides an overview of

recent developments in risk management at Swiss Re.

Extraordinary recent events have
shown how vulnerable companies can
be without a well-established risk
management process. What does risk
management mean for Swiss Re?

Risk management means assessing,
maenitoring, steering and optimising Swiss
Re's risk landscape — making sure that
the organisation, processes and tools are
in place to implement the business strat-
egy on risk content.

Were any impertant activities in this
field implemented during 2002?

Yes, indeed. | can offer four examples: the
first is steering and optimising the risk
landscape for natural catastrophes
through insurance-linked securities. The
second is the implementation of a sub-
stantial hedge programme on the com-
pany’s equity portfolic. The third is the
completion of a central credit risk data
repository, and the fourth is the implemen-
tation of operational risk management.

And what did Swiss Re complete in
the insurance-finked securities area

in 2002?

In 2002, Swiss Re received USD 334 mil-
lion of four-year natural catastrophe pro-
tection from an innovative securitisation
structure called PIONEER 2002 Ltd. The
product is a subclass of insurance-linked
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securities called “cat bonds” covering five
peak natural catastrophe risks: hurricane
in the North Atlantic, windstorm in Europe
and earthquake in California, Japan and
central US. Each area protects Swiss Re's
balance sheet from severe but rare events
— that Is, events that would most probably
trigger an additional capital shortage in
the reinsurance industry.

But why have you chosen to use

cat bonds instead of classical retro-
cession?

Since traditional retrocession is carried out
amongst reinsurance industry players,
prices are highly cyclical, and supply is
very limited during the hard cycle. In addi-
tion, there is a substantial credit risk, espe-
cially for these rare event covers. With

cat bonds, the money is paid up-front, so
there is no credit risk for Swiss Re if one
of the events is triggered.

Cat bonds have existed for many years
now, and more than USD 5 billion of
them have been issued since 1997.
What is so special about the Pioneer
structure?

We have introduced sophisticated physi-
cal trigger mechanisms based on objec-
tively measurable data, such as wind
speeds, to determine when an event has
happened and how much needs to be
paid to Swiss Re. These indices increase
transparency for investors and, at the

same time, minimise basis risk for Swiss
Re. An additional innovative feature of the
Pioneer structure is that the protection can
be scaled up over time by issuing addi-
tional bonds. This will reduce Swiss Re's
peak exposures over time, leading to an
even more diversified risk portfolio and,
therefore, more efficient use of our capital.

You mentioned the implementation of
a substantial hedge programme on the
company’s equity portfolio. From a risk
management perspective, why did you
do it?

Between January 2000 and January 2002,
Swiss Re had reduced its equity positions
from 34% to 20% of its total investments.
We had a very good renewal in January
2002, and it was obvious that returns were
rising on the core business. On the other
hand, stocks were down approximately 10%
in the first half of 2002, and the political
and economic outlook was starting to get
cloudy. So at mid-year, we put CHF 7.2 bil-
lion of notional value of hedges on our
CHF 18.4 billion portfolio of stocks to miti-
gate the risk of a downturn in the second
half, which did in fact occur. These hedges
have performed quite well, and we con-
tinue to benefit from them as markets
have also been declining to date in 2003.
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Risk management

(continued)

You mentioned two other examples of
innovative risk management for 2002;
what is the third example?

It is the Group credit risk Exposure Report-
ing and Management Information Tool
(GERMIT). Effectively. this is Swiss Re's
central credit risk data repaository, offering
a comprehensive overview of our total
credit risk landscape. Credit risk exposures
originating from all relevant business seg-
ments are reported to this central data-
base in a standardised form that allows us
to manage the overall credit risk portfolio
in an integrated way. The tool covers all
the units and transactions that generate
credit risk.

Can you explain GERMIT in more detail?
It has three pillars. The first is the counter-
party database, containing up-to-date in-
formation on more than 100 000 groups
of companies worldwide; a sound coun-
terparty database provides the basis for
proper credit risk management. The sec-
ond pillar is the transactions database
with details of the transactions that gener-
ate credit risk exposures. These detalls are
used by the system to calculate potential
and actual credit risk exposures. The third
pillar is the credit risk exposures themselves.
The various originating units throughout
the Swiss Re Group periadically report
their gross credit exposures to GERMIT -
mainly through automatic interfaces with
the different transaction systems.

The combination of these three pillars
allows us to analyse cur credit risk land-
scape using a broad range of parameters,
naturally including breakdowns by coun-
terparty, rating class, industry and country
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— but also by transaction category, single
transaction, maturity of the exposure, and
so on. Moreover, we can perform trend
analyses on all these dimensions based on
historical data.

What are the benefits of this system
for Swiss Re?

GERMIT is a powerful tool for credit risk
management. It allows for accurate expo-
sure and credit limit management, as well
as for credit risk portfolio management,
which has served us quite well in the cur-
rent tough economic conditions. It forms
the basis for all of Swiss Re's internal credit
risk publications and serves as data input
for credit risk capital allocation models.
Apart from its central credit risk manage-
ment function, GERMIT also fulfils an impor-
tant role in credit risk underwriting support.

And what is your fourth example?
Swiss Re’s Group Operational Risk Man-
agement organisation and processes: a
very important entrepreneurial task. Swiss
Re defines operational risk as the risk of
direct or indirect loss resulting from inade-
quate or failed internal processes, systems,
or from external events. These include
risks to reputation and to the implementa-
tion of strategy. Swiss Re excludes risks
that it deliberately underwrites as its core
business, as well as strategic risks and the
risk of change in its business volume.

What are the responsibilities of Group
Operational Risk Management?

Swiss Re’s Group Operational Risk Man-
agement is responsible for the integrated
view of Swiss Re's operational risk land-
scape and works in close cooperation
with the business groups and the Corpo-
rate Centre; they are responsible for their
own operational duties, while Group Risk
Management sets standards to support

implementation and promote best prac-
tice. The goal is to minimise exposure to
operational risks as far as reasonable from
a cost/benefit perspective.

What were the main achievements for
operational risk management in 2002?
The establishment of the Group Opera-
tional Risk Management network; the or-
ganisation of the main operational risk re-
porting; the agreement on the content of
respective guidelines: and the list of top
operational risks at Swiss Re. This is a
generic list based on experts’ broad opin-
ions and was presented to the Finance
and Risk Committee of the Board of Direc-
tars; it is intended to be a first guide to
areas that will be examined in more detail.

What are your goals in the future?
Risk management is never a rigidly de-
fined process, but more of an ongoing
one. For Swiss Re, going beyond the de-
fensive approach of limiting downside
risks means actively optimising the port-
folio from a risk/return perspective and
managing the cycle using appropriate
tools. Substantial changes have been
made to strengthen contract wordings.
event limits and exclusions, which are all
a part of good risk management. Risk
management is, of course, everyone's
responsibility.
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The Ruschlikon Centre for Global Dialogue

The Centre for Global Dialogue is a place where enquiring minds look ahead to the

future of risk. One of the priorities of the Centre is to stage events around topics —

social, political, economic or environmental — that have an impact on the global risk

market. The aim is to build networks, leverage knowledge and create business

opportunities for Swiss Re.
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Client focus

Ruschlikon's long-term aim is 1o engage in
a dialogue on topics that are of particular
importance to the Group and its clients.
Sustainability has become a recurring
theme at the Centre: in 2002 it staged
several events on the subject, ranging
from peer discussions and awareness-
building to intensive workshops aimed at
developing business strategies and solu-
tions. Conferences on water usage and
the reduction of greenhouse gases con-
firmed Rischlikon’s reputation for attract-
ing experts with a strong focus on busi-
ness solutions.

Seeking knowledge

To keep event themes relevant, the Centre
continually explores new developments.
One svent in 2002 assessed the risk of
terrorism after 11 September 2001
through expert presentations and a panel.
At times the Centre collaborates with
other organisations on events. Last year
the Centre, in partnership with Harvard
University, invited 40 experts to explore
the complexities of intellectual property
ownership, copyright and the new legal
frameworks for the 21st century. A confer-
ence on intangible values, another rele-
vant topic in today’s business climate,
saw 40 cross-industry peers meet to

exchange ideas about new models for as-
sessing and valuing intangible assets such
as knowledge and human capital. By stag-
ing events of this kind, Swiss Re has the
opportunity to actively engage with its
stakeholders, present an industry view-
point and gain early insight into new and
emerging risks. RUschlikon has become
an ideal setting to explore future topics

as well as current Swiss Re Top Topics.
(Please refer to page 9 for more informa-
tion on Top Topics.)

Management development

Rischlikon is also dedicated to building
tomorrow's leaders for the Group through
its management development pro-
grammes. While providing an excellent
opportunity for management to network
with their peers and share best practices,
these programmes provide them with
access to cross-divisional representatives,
enabling them to share and discuss strat-
egy, ethics and corporate behaviour. This
fostering of a strong corporate culture un-
derscores the Swiss Re brand.

To find cut more about the Centre’s events

and initiatives, past and present, please
visit its website on www.ruschlikon.net.
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services to the fh’ea rt of the Asian markets,
joining local skills and expertise with

global resources.
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Hong Kong's MTR is one of the most modern and heavily used mass trans-

port systems in the world. Construction began in 1975 and the system con-

tinues to develop and extend to serve the transportation needs of 7.5 mil-

lion residents and visitors.
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- (4] At periodic risk inspections, operators,
insurers and reinsurers check the required
safety standards and risk management

issues to keep the system at an optimum
risk level.
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The insurance industry carries a substantial part of the operational and CEpT

A

economic risk involved in this transport system.

The operation of railroad risks includes man-made hazards such as fires,

machinery breakdown, derailments, collisions and natural hazards such

as floods or typhoons. An all-risk policy covers those risks and includes

business interruption caused by such events.
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Information on Swiss Re’'s governance

Swiss Re is committed to meeting the highest standards and actively fosters trans-

parency. Corporate governance is the way in which a company is organised,

managed and controlled. An extensive degree of disclosure is required as part of

good corporate governance.

Corporate Centre

As an internationally active company,
Swiss Re complies with the local rules and
regulations of all the countries in which it
chooses to do business. But ultimately,
Swiss Re is a Swiss company, domiciled in
Zurich and organised according to the
laws of Switzerland. lts shares are listed
on the SWX Swiss Exchange and traded
on the virt-x. In 2002, SWX Swiss

Exchange issued a corporate gover-
nance directive. The description of Swiss
Re’s corporate governance therefore
follows the suggested structure as
described in the directive’s annex. Unless
otherwise stated, the information relates
to the 2002 business year or reflects

the conditions on 31 December 2002,
as appropriate.

1. Group structure and shareholders

1.1 Group structure
a. Cperational Group sructure
Board of Directors
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Deputy CEO
Executive Board

Risk & Knowledge

Finance

Communications &
Human Resources

information, Processes
& Technology

Business groups
Property & Casualty
Americzas

Europe
Asia
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Life & Health

North America
United Kingdom
Continental Europe
Asia & rest of world

Financial Services

Risk Solutions
Credit Solutions
Advisory & Capital Markets
Asset Management
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b. Listed Group companies

Please refer to the Financial Statements,
note 16 on Subsidiaries and equity
investees, pages 48-57.

c. Non-listed Group companies
Please refer to the Financial Statements,
note 16 on Subsidiaries and equity
investees, pages 48-51.

1.2 Significant shareholders

There is only one shareholder with a par-
ticipation exceeding the 5% threshold of
Swiss Re’s share capital. The Capital
Group Companies, Inc. (“Capital Group”),
domiciled in Los Angeles, informed SWX
Swiss Exchange on 24 June 2002 that
it holds 5.06% of Swiss Re’s voting rights
on behalf of funds and clients. As these
shares have mostly not been registered
under any name of the Capital Group
companies, Swiss Re is unable to track,
on its own, changes in Capital Group's
holdings.

1.3 Cross-shareheldings

There are no cross-shareholdings
to report.
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2. Capital structure

2.1 Capital

Please refer to the statement of share-
holders’ equity on page 6 of the Financial
Statements.

2.2 Authorised and conditional capita!
At the Annual General Meeting of 31 May
2001, the creation of conditional capital
was approved as follows: a nominal
amount of CHF 900 000 for conversion
rights and warrants granted in connection
with bonds or similar financial instruments
issued by the company or by Group com-
panies; a further nominal amount of

CHF 700 000 for employee participation
purposes. of which CHF 36 948 was
issued as per 31 December 2002. No
additional authorised and/or conditional
capital was created in 2002,

2.3 Changes in capital

Please refer to the statement of
shareholders’ equity on page 6 of
the Financial Statements.

The increase in "Additional paid-in capital”
results from shares reserved for corporate
purposes {see also comments in section
2.7 below).

2.4 Shares

As of 31 December 2002, Swiss Re's
share capital amounted to

CHF 32205 787. It is fully paid-in and
divided into 322 057 870 registered
shares, each with a nominal value

of CHF 0.10. There are no other types of
shares with a higher or a limited voting
power, privileged dividend entitliement or
any other preferential rights; nor are there
any other securities representing a part
of the company's equity capital. Swiss
Re’s capital structure ensures equal treat-
ment of all shareholders in accordance
with the principle “one share one vote”.

2.5 Bonus certificates

Bonus certificates in the sense of the SWX
directive are particular types of non-voting
securities that substitute or complement
shares. These do not exist at Swiss Re.

2.6 Limitations on transferability and
nominee registrations

a. Free transferability

Swiss Re’s shares are freely transferable,
without any limitations, provided that
the buyers declare they are the beneficial
owners of the shares and comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Fed-
eral Act on Stock Exchanges and Securi-
ties Trading ("Stock Exchange Act”) of
24 March 1895.

b. Admissibility of nominee registra-
tions

Trustees or nominees who act as fiduciar-
ies of shareholders are entered without
further inquiry in Swiss Re's share register
as shareholders with voting rights up to a
maximum of 2% of the outstanding share
capital available at the time. Additional
shares held by such nominees which ex-
ceed the limit of 2% of the outstanding
share capital are entered in the share reg-
ister with voting rights only if such nomi-
nees disclose the names, addresses and
shareholdings of the beneficial owners of
the holdings amounting to or exceeding
0.5% of the outstanding share capital.
Such nominees must in addition comply
with the disclosure requirements of the
Stock Exchange Act.

¢. Procedure and conditions for can-
celling statutory privileges and limita-
tions on transferability

The point is not applicable as no
statutory privileges and limitations

on transferability exist.
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Information on Swiss Re's governance

2. Capital structure (continued)

2.7 Convertible bonds and options

2. Convertihle bonds

As stated in the notes to the Group financial statements (note 6 on Debt) an exchange-
able bond (TRIPLES), issued in 1999 and maturing in 2004, as well as a convertible
bond, issued in 2001 and maturing in 2021, are outstanding:

Maturity Instrument Issued in Currency Nominal {(m) Exchange terms
2004 Exch.Bond (TRIPLES) 1999 ~  USD LBso )
2021 Convertible Bonds 2001 usbD 1150 i)

i) Each noteholder shall have the right
to exchange all or any-of his/her notes
into
a} fully paid registered shares of

Swiss Reinsurance Company at the
price of CHF 224.661 per share
and 66.3533 Swiss Re shares for
each note;

b) Credit Suisse shares at a price of
CHF 96.538 per share and
154.4159 Credit Suisse shares
for each note;

c} Novartis shares at a price of
CHF 79.030 per share and
188.6246 Novartis shares for
each note.
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ii) Holders may convert the bonds due
2021 into registered shares, nominal
value CHF Q.10 per share, of Swiss
Reinsurance Company at any time
on and after 22 November 2001, and
prior to the close of business on
27 November 2011, at a conversion
price of CHF 207.19 per share.

b. Options

Regarding stock options granted to Swiss
Re employees, please refer to note 12 on
Stock compensation plans on page 34 of
the Financial Statements.

Swiss Re pursued an option strategy and

sold call options on shares reserved

for corporate purposes. A total amount of
1983 000 of these shares were used in

2002. The ssttlement, however, can also
be in cash.

3. Board of Directors

3.1 Members of the Board of Directors

a. Status as gt 31 December 2002
On the relevant reporting date, the Board
of Directors was composed as follows:

Peter Forstmoser
Chairman, non-executive
and independent

Mr Forstmoser, a Swiss citizen born in
1943, received his doctor juris degree
from the University of Zurichin 1870, be-
came an attorney-at-law in 1971 and
received a master's degree in law from
Harvard Law School in 1972.

Mr Forstmoser was elected to the Board
in 1990. His mandate was renewed in
1994, 1998 and 2002, each time for a
further four years. The Board of Directors
elected him Chairman on 30 June 2000.
Mr Forstmoser is a law professor at the
University of Zurich and has been a part-
ner of Niederer Kraft & Frey, Attorneys,

in Zurich, since 19756. He is also chairman
of the board of directors of Hesta AG and
Hesta Tex AG, Zug, vice-chairman of

the board of Mikron Holding AG, Biel, as
well as a board member of Bank Hofmann
AG, Zurich, and apr — AG fur Public Rela-
tions, Zurich.

Mr Forstmoser has never had a managing
position in the Swiss Re Group and has no
important business connections with
Swiss Re or any of its Group companies.
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Walter B. Kielhoiz

Vice Chairman and Delegate of the

Board of Directors from 1 January 2003,
Chief Executive Officer until 31 December
2002

Mr Kielholz, a Swiss citizen born in 1951,
studied business administration at the
University of St. Gallen, Switzerland, grad-
uating in 1976 with a master’s degree in
business finance and accounting.

Mr Kielholz joined Swiss Re in 1989. In
1993 he was appointed a member of the
Executive Board. He became Swiss Re's
Chief Executive Officer on 1 January
1997. In June 1998 he was elected to
Swiss Re’s Board of Directors, which at
the same time appointed him its Delegate.
His directorship was renewed for a further
four-year period in 2002. As Chief Exec-
utive Officer he resigned at the end of
2002 due to his election as chairman of
Credit Suisse Group.

Mr Kielholz serves on the board of direc-
tors of Credit Suisse Group, Zurich, which
elected him chairman with effect from

1 January 2003. He has further direc-
torships in “"Winterthur” Swiss Insurance
Company, Winterthur, and Partner Re,
Bermuda. In addition, Mr Kielholz is pres-
ident of the International Association for
the Study of Insurance Economics,
Geneva, “The Geneva Association”, pres-
ident of the "Avenir Suisse” foundation
and chairman of the "Zircher Kunst-
gesellschaft”.
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Thomas W. Bechtler

Vice Chairman (until 31 December
2002), non-executive and independent
director

Mr Bechtler, a Swiss citizen born in 1849,
received his doctor iuris degree from the
University of Zurich in 1973, and a
master’'s degree in law from Harvard Law
Schoolin 1875,

Mr Bechtler joined Swiss Re's Board of Di-

rectors in November 1993. His mandate
was renewed in 1997 and 2001, each
time for a further four years. In May 2002
he was appointed Vice Chairman.

Mr Bechtler has been managing director
of Hesta AG, Zug, since 1972. He also
serves on the board of directors of Credit
Suisse Group, Zurich, Bucher Industries,
Niederweningen, Robert Bosch Interna-
tionale Beteiligungen AG, Zurich, Sika AG,
Baar, and Conzzeta Holding, Zurich.

Mr Bechtler has never had a managing
position in the Swiss Re Group and has no
important business connections with
Swiss Re or any of its Group companies.

George L. Farr
Non-executive and independent director

Mr Farr, a US citizen born in 1941, re-
ceived both a bachelor's and a master's
degree in business administration from
the University of Michigan in 1963 and
1964, respectively.

Mr Farr joined Swiss Re’s Board of Direc-
tors in November 1986. His mandate was
renewed in 2000 for a further four-year
period. He has been managing partner of
Muirhead Holdings LLC., Greenwich, CT,
since 1998. Prior to that he was vice
chairman of American Express Company.,
New York, from 1995 until his retirement

in 1998. Before 1885, Mr Farr was a di-
rector of McKinsey &. Co., New York. Mr
Farr serves also as chairman of the board
of directors of Covanta Energy, New York,
and as a director of Misys plc, London.
and Meridian Rail Company, New York.

Mr Farr has never had a managing posi-
tion in the Swiss Re Group and has no
important business connections with
Swiss Re or any of its Group companies.

Rajna Gibson
Non-executive and independent director

Ms Gibson, a Swiss citizen born in 1962,
studied business and economics at the
University of Geneva, graduating with a
BA in 1982 and with a PhD in economics
and social sciences in 1987

Ms Gibson was elected to Swiss Re's
Board of Directors in June 2000 for a
four-year term of office. She has been a
professor of financial economics at the
Swiss Banking Institute of the University of
Zurich since March 2000. She was pre-
viously a professor of finance at the Uni-
versity of Lausanne. Ms Gibson is also

a member of the Swiss Federal Banking
Commission, a director of the National
Centre of Competence in Research NCCR,
responsible for the financial valuation and
risk management project, and an adviser
to scientific councils of various educa-
tional institutions.

Ms Gibson has never had e managing
position in the Swiss Re Group and has
no important business connections with
Swiss Re or any of its Group companies.
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3. Board of Directors (continued)

Bénédict G.F. Hentsch
Non-executive and independent director

Mr Hentsch, a Swiss citizen born in 1948,
studied business administraticn at the
University of St. Gallen, Switzerland, grad-
uating in 1972 with a master’s degree in
business finance and accounting.

Bénédict G. F. Hentsch was elected to
Swiss Re’s Board of Directors in 1893. His
mandate was renewed in 1997 and
2001, each time for a further four-year
term of office. He was a partner of Darier
Hentsch & Cie, Geneva, from 1985 until
October 2001 and chaired the Swiss
Private Bankers Association from 1998
until 2001. He continues tc be a member
of the board of directors of the newspaper
“Le Temps” and a member of the board

of the "Avenir Suisse” foundation.

Mr Hentsch has never had a managing
position in the Swiss Re Group and has no
important business connections with
Swiss Re or any of its Group companies.

Jorge Paulo Lemann
Non-executive and independent director

Mr Lemann, a Brazilian and Swiss citizen
born in 19389, graduated from Harvard
University, Boston, in 19671.

Mr Lemann joined Swiss Re's Board of
Directors in 1999 for a four-year term of
office. He will stand for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting of 12 May 2003.

He is an entrepreneur with controlling
stakes in AmBev, a brewery, Lojas Ameri-
canas, a discount store chain, and GP In-
vestimentos, a buy-out and restructuring
firm with interests in Brazilian railways,
supermarkets, amusement parks and
telecommunications. He also serves on
the board of directors of The Gillette Com-
pany, Boston, and of the Associates at the
Harvard Business School. In addition, he
serves on the international advisory
boards of DaimlerChrysler Corp., Auburn
Hills, Michigan and Credit Suisse Group,
Zurich (until March 2003), and as chair-
man of the Latin American Advisory Com-
mittee of the New York Stock Exchange.

Mr Lemann has never had a managing
position in the Swiss Re Group and has no
important business connections with
Swiss Re or any of its Group companies.

Bob Scott
Nen-executive and independent director

Mr Scott, a British and Australian citizen
bornin 1842, was educated at Scots Col-
lege, Wellington, New Zealand. He has
been a senior associate of the Australian
and New Zealand [nstitute of Insurance
and Finance (ANZIIF) since 1965 and was
made a Commander of the British Empire
(CBE)in 2002.

Mr Scott joined Swiss Re's Board of Direc-
tors in 2002 for a four-year term of office.
He is a retired group chief executive of
CGNU ple. In the 1990s, he was group
chief executive of General Accident and,
following the merger with Commercial
Union in 1998, was appointed group

chief executive of CGU plc. Following the
merger in 2000 with Norwich Union,

Mr Scott became group chief executive of
CGNU plg, retiring in May 2001. Mr Scott
was also chairman of the Association of
British Insurers in 2000-2001, and board
member during the previous four years.

Mr Scott is a non-executive director of the
Rovyal Bank of Scotland plc, Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Group plc, Yell Group plc and
Focus Wickes Ltd.

Mr Scott has never had a managing posi-
tion in the Swiss Re Group and has noim-
portant business connections with Swiss
Re or any of its Group companies.

b. Changes in the course of the busi-
ness year 2002

Lukas Mithiemann's mandate expired
at the Annual General Meeting of 6 May
2002.

Oswald J. Griibel, who became a director
at the Annual General Meeting of 6 May
2002, stepped down on 11 July 2002
when he resumed his earlier position on
Credit Suisse Group's executive board.

Ernesto Jutzi passed away on
4 September 2002,
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¢. Changes since 31 December 2002
The position of Vice Chairman was trans-
ferred to Walter B. Kielholz from Thomas
W. Bechtler, on 1 January 2003.

d. Nominaticns for the election to be
held at the Annual General Meeting of
12 May 2003

The Board of Directors intends to nomi-
nate the following candidates for initial
election to the Board, each with a four-
year term of office:

Raymund Breu
Non-executive and independent director

Mr Breu, a Swiss citizen born in 1945,
graduated from the Swiss Federal Institute
of Technelogy, Zurich, with a doctorate in
mathematics in 1871.

Mr Breu has been CFO and a member of
the executive committee of Novartis since
the group’s foundation in 1996. In the
preceding three years, Mr Breu was the
head of group finance and a member of
the executive board of Sandoz.

John F. Smith, Jr.
Non-executive and independent director

Mr Smith, a US and Swiss citizen born in
1938, received his Bachelor of Business
Administration from the University of
Massachusetts in 1960 and a Master of
Business Administration from Boston
University in 1965.

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

Mr Smith has been chairman of the board
of directors of General Mators Corpora-
tion, Detroit, since 1996. From 1992 1o
2000 he also served as chief executive
officer of that company.

3.2 Dther activities and functions
Please refer to the information provided
in section 3.1.

3.3 Cross-involvement
Not applicable.

3.4 Elections and term of office

a. Principles of the election procedure
and term timits

The term of office of a directorship is

four years. It begins with the date of elec-
tion by an Annual General Meeting and
ends on the fourth subsequent Annual
General Meeting. Members whose term
has expired are immediately eligible for
re-election.

Each proposed election and re-election is
substantiated by the Chairman at the
Annual General Meeting and is separately
voted upon.

The age limit is 70. Members who reach
the age of 70 during a regular term of
office shall tender their resignation at the
Annual General Meeting following the
attainment of that age.

. First election and remaining term of
each director
Please refer to the information provided
in section 3.1.

3.5 Internal organisational structure

a. Allocation of tasks within the Board
of Directors

Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Chairman of the Board of Directors
exercises ultimate supervision of the Exec-
utive Board on behalf of the Board of Direc-
tors; he supervises Group Internal Audit
and appoints its head, subject to confirma-
tion by the Audit Committee; he convenes
meetings of the Board of Directors and the
Committees of Directors; he makes prepa-
rations for, and presides at, the meetings
of the Board of Directors; he presides at the
Annual General Meeting of shareholders;
he represents the company in matters in-
volving shareholders; he makes decisions
concerning the authority of the Board of
Directors or its committees to the extent
that the Board does not make such a deci-
sion itself; he makes decisions about the
applicability and interpretation of the Cor-
porate Bylaws to the extent that the Board
does not make such a decision itself.

Delegate of the Board of Directors

Until the end of 2002, the Delegate alsc
held the function of Chief Executive
Officer. However, the Board of Directors
amended the Corporate Bylaws with ef-
fect from 1 January 2003. Accordingly,
the Delegate’s responsibilities are to liaise
between the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board with particular regard to
strategy, management development and
succession planning.
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b. Comrnittees of the Board of
Dirsctors: members, tasis and
responsibilities

General provisions for all Committees
The Board of Directors may delegate the
preparation and execution of its resolu-
tions to committees or individual mem-
bers of the Board. The Board is responsi-
ble for ensuring that the corresponding
reporting is adequate.

Audit Committee {AC)
Members

Thomas W. Bechtler, Chair
Rajna Gibson

Jorge Paulo Lemann

Bob Scott

Compensation and Appointments
Committee (CAC)

Members

George L. Farr, Chair

Thomas W. Bachtler

Peter Forstmoser

Bob Scott

The Committees conduct or authorise in-
vestigations into any matters within their
respective scope of responsibility, thereby
taking into consideration both relevant
peer group practices as well as general

The Committees seek to verify full legal
and regulatory compliance within their
respective scope of responsibilities and
consider compliance with best practice
recommendations.

best practices. They are empowered to
retain independent counsel, accountants
or other experts if deemed necessary in-
cluding for purposes of benchmarking
best practices.

Tasks and responsibilities

The central task of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities as they relate to the integrity of the company’s financial statements, the
company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the external auditor’s
gualifications, and the performance of the company’s internal audit unit and the
external auditor.

In carrying out this function, the Committee serves as an independent and objective
monitor of the performance of the company’s financial reporting process and system of
internal control and provides for ongoing communication between the external auditor,
management, Group Internal Audit and the Board with regard to the company’s finan-
cial position and affairs.

More specific duties and responsibilities of the Committee are listed in its charter of duties.

lasks and responsibilities

As regards compensation, the Committee ensures the development of a compensation
philosophy: it reviews and approves the Group’s compensation and pension plans; it rec-
ommends to the Board the amount and composition of remuneration of the members of
the Board; it determines the amount and composition of remuneration of the Chairman,
the Delegate, the CEO and the members of the Executive Board under consideration of
their performance; it approves the total amount available for performance-based com-
pensation; and it ensures compliance with any remuneration disclosure requirements.

In respect of personnel matters, the Committee makes proposals to the Board that en-
sure an adequate size and a well-balanced composition of the Board: it ensures the de-
velopment of guidelines for selecting candidates for election to the Board and the Execu-
tive Board; it evaluates Board-member candidates and makes recommendations to the
Board:; it evaluates proposals made to the Board for the appointment and removal of
members of the Executive Board; it approves employment contracts with the Chairman,
the Delegate, the CEO and the members of the Executive Board; and it reviews executive
succession and emergency plans.
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Finance and Risk Committee (FRC)
Members

Rajna Gibson, Chair

Walter B. Kietholz

Bob Scott

Governance and Shareholder Relations
Committee (GSRC)

Members

Peter Forstmoser, Chair

George L. Farr

Bénédict G. F. Hentsch

Walter B. Kielholz

Investments Committee (IC)
Members

George L. Farr, Chair
Bénédict G.F. Hentsch
Walter B. Kielholz

Jorge Paulo Lemann
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Tasks and responsibilities

As regards risk management, the Committee approves the basic reinsurance principles;
it evaluates the bases on which the Board of Directors determines the risk tolerance level
in reinsurance and capital investments; it reviews the methodology for risk measurement;
it reviews the results of risk-adjusted capital calculations; it assesses the risk reports; it
reviews the most important risk exposures categorised by business groups and products
including underwriting risk, financial market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, model risk,
operational risk and their corresponding limits; it reviews the appropriateness of the risk
management technigues employed; and it reviews the methodology of determining the
claims reserves, their development and adequacy.

In respect of balance sheet issues, the Committee reviews capital adequacy; it reviews
strategic asset allocation and its conformity with the risk tolerance level as determined by
the Board; it reviews the structure of the balance sheet; it reviews the management of
equity capital and the corresponding risk management technigues; it reviews the ratings
received from the major rating agencies, takes note of their considerations and reviews
management’s reaction and recommendations thereto.

Tasks and responsibilities

The Committee measures the Group's governance against relevant best-practice recom-
mendations and informs the Board of its findings and emerging trends; it ensures com-
pliance with corporate governance disclosure requirements; it reviews and evaluates the
Group's disclosure policy; it reviews the Group's external communications policy in the
context of best practices in the markets deemed most relevant; it monitors investor rela-
tions activities; it examines how reports are made, especially with regard to whether they
fulfil the needs and expectations of international investors; it monitors the shareholder
structure; it has initial responsibility for assessing any merger and take-over proposals
submitted to the Group; and it has initial responsibility for reviewing material transactions
with any of the Group’s significant shareholders.

Tasks and responsibilities

As regards Group assets, the Committee reviews the principles to be applied in capital
investments; it approves the guidelines regulating the use of derivative instruments; it
keeps abreast of the other guidelines relating to asset management; it reviews the tacti-
cal allocation of assets for the next financial reporting pericd; it reviews the performance
of the asset-managing units, measured against benchmarks; it receives reports on the
use of derivative instruments; and it reviews the business relationship of the asset-man-
aging units with their counterparties and the transaction fees.

In respect of Group finance, the Committee reviews cash management; it reviews the
relationships with banks; it reviews all open derivatives positions of the Group; and it com-
lies with any formalities required of the Board of Directors by applicable laws, regulations
or obligations to counterparties.
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"

c. Woris mmethods of the Board of
Directors and its Commiltees
The Board typically meets six times per
year for two consecutive days. The first
day is reserved for the Committees, while
on the second day the full Board meets
for as long as required, mostly the whole
day. The regular meetings are typically
held in February, March, April, May, Au-
gust and December. Additional meetings
are called at short notice if and when re-
quired. Each of the Board meetings has

a special focus, which is basically related
to Swiss Re's reporting schedule. Such
focuses are the financial statements, the
analysis of internal results; interim resutts,
the medium-term business plan, strategic
issues and corporate governance. The
Committees meet, on average, three to
four times per year.

In 2002, the following mestings
were held:

At the meetings of the Board Committees,
those members of the Executive Board are
normally present who have the informa-
tion and expertise required for the respec-
tive Committee to perform its duties. The
Head of Group Internal Audit and two sen-
ior representatives of the external auditor
are also regular participants in the meet-
ings of the Audit Committee.

The attendance rate was 100% at the reg-
ular meetings throughout the year. At the
extraordinary meetings, which were, by
definition, called at shorter notice, it was
slightly less; however, the excused direc-
tors expressed their opinions bilaterally.

3.6 Definition of areas of responsibility
Swiss Re's Board of Directors has dele-
gated the conduct of business operations
to an Executive Board made up of 18
senior executive officers. Members of the
Executive Board are appointed by the

Month BoD AC CAC FRC GSRC IC
January i oYY

February regular

March regular  regulr regular  regular  reguler
Aprl . .....regular  regular  regular regular | o
May o TEYAT regular . regular  regular
August .. regular  regular, | reguler
November exra | o
December  regular regular re'gulvar regular
December extra v -

Normally, either the entire Executive
Board or the Executive Board Committee
is in attendance at the meetings of the
Board of Directors.
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Board of Directors upon recommendation
of the Chief Executive Officer and after
consultation with the Compensation and
Appointments Committee. The Executive
Board is headed by the Chief Executive
Officer and comprises his deputy, the
heads of the three business groups with
the respective division and busingss unit
heads, and the heads of the four divisions
of the Corporate Centre. The Executive
Board is responsible for the operational
management of the Group as well as the

coordination and execution of the Group's
business operations. The Executive Board
has delegated authority to the Executive
Board Committee, consisting of eight
members. The Executive Board Commit-
tee is responsible for the conduct of day-
to-day operational business activities. The
Executive Board held seven meetings in
2002, mostly on two consecutive days.
Two of those meetings were extended
ones for the consideration of strategic is-
sues. The Executive Board Committee has,
as a rule, two meetings per month, except
when the full Executive Board meets and
in holiday seasons. In 2002, it met 17 times.

3.7 Information and control
instruments

The internal control system comprises a
risk management system designed for the
size, complexity and risk profile of the
company, an internal auditing procedure
and an organisation that ensures adher-
ence to certain standards (compliance).
Swiss Re is thus organised as follows:

a. Group Risk Management

The decentralisation of business activities
and the increasing complexity of the
transactions, performed in varicus units
involving many different skills, has led to
the creation of a strong Group Risk Man-
agement in parallel with the formation of
business groups and the separation of
tasks between the Corporate Centre and
the business groups. Group Risk Manage-
ment forms part of the Risk & Knowledge
Division. It reports to the Chief Risk Officer
and is responsible for creating trans-
parency in the risks assumed by the busi-
ness units, in the investment process and
in strategic asset allocation.
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There is a clear separation of tasks be-
tween the business units (with their own
risk management organisations) and
Group Risk Management. Group Risk
Management sets the guidelines and
standards, based on best practice. It is
also responsible for developing risk meas-
urement technigues, updating guidelines
and managing the risk reporting process.
The business units are responsible for im-
plementing Group guidelines in their par-
ticular areas of activity, adhering to limits
and procedures, and managing data in
the reporting process. The risks under
consideration are underwriting risks, fi-
nancial-market risks, credit risks, and op-
erational risks. Swiss Re’s risk landscape
is updated and quantified whenever
larger changes occur, such as movements
in the market values of securities, acquisi-
tion of companies, or very large transac-
tions. The results of Group Risk Manage-
ment analyses are regularly discussed by
both the Executive Board and the Finance
and Risk Committee.

b. Group Internal Audit

Within Swiss Re Group, Group Internal
Audit provides the Chairman, Board of
Directors and Executive Board of Swiss Re
with an independent, objective assurance
and consulting activity designed to as-
sess the adequacy and effectiveness

of the Group’s system of internal control,
adding value through improving the
Group's operations.

Organisationally independent of manage-
ment, the Head of Group Internal Audit
reports directly to the Chairman of the
Board of Directors and regularly reports to
the Audit Committee. Group Internal Audit
focuses its activities primarily on those
areas identified as possessing the highest
operating and control risks within the
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Group. Group Internal Audit maintains a
regular dialogue with the external auditor
to share reports and risk issues arising
from their respective audits and to coordi-
nate their activities.

Group Internal Audit discusses the reports
and issues arising from internal audits
with the responsible Executive Board
members and the Group Chief Executive
Officer. Group Internal Audit also dis-
cusses the most important audit issues
with the Audit Committee and provides it
with an annual evaluation of the Group's
system of internal control. At the specific
request of the Chairman, the Audit Com-
mittee or members of the Executive Board
of Swiss Re, Group Internal Audit also
carries out special analyses and reviews.

c. Compliance

Compliance at Swiss Re means the up-
holding of legal, regulatory and ethical
standards by staff throughout the com-
pany. Swiss Re fulfils this task based on a
Group-wide Code of Conduct that ex-
presses Swiss Re’s core principles and
values, providing guidance on their appli-
cation in all business conduct and stipulat-
ing the behavioural requirements applica-
ble 10 every Swiss Re employee. A Group
Compliance Programme defines the role
and duties of the compliance officers
employed by Swiss Re, who report to the
Group Compliance Officer and run locai
centres of competence whose remit is to
maintain Group procedures and local or
regional practices. The necessary training
of staff and compliance officers in order to
attain best practice in compliance matters
is carried out regularly at a local and
Group level. The Group Compliance Offi-
cer provides the Audit Committee with a
compliance report on a regular basis, and
also reports to the Chief Risk Officer as
part of Group Risk Management. The
Group Compliance Officer alsc conducts
periodic compliance risk assessments.
Management is advised on appropriate

control measures, with corresponding
action plans being implemented via the
Compliance Officer network, and in coop-
eration with key functions such as Group
Internal Audit, Group Risk Management
and line management.

d. External auditor

The external auditor is accountable to the
Audit Committee, the Board of Directors
and ultimately to the shareholders, Price-
waterhouseCoopers has executed this
function since 1991 (originally as Revi-
suisse Price Waterhouse).

Prior to the commencement of the exter-
nal audit, the external auditor presents

its plan and estimated fees to the Audit
Committee for approval. At the conclusion
of the external audit, the external auditor
presents and discusses its report on the
financial statements with the Audit Com-
mittee, and highlights any significant
internal control issues identified.

Each year the external auditor is required
to provide a formal written statement to
the Audit Committee defining all relation-
ships it has with the Swiss Re Group.

The Audit Committee and external auditor
discuss any disclosed relationships or
services that might affect the external au-
ditor’s objectivity and independence.

To further protect the independence of
the external auditor, the Chief Financial
Officer is required to review annually the
external auditor's non-audit services and
fees and discuss the results with the Au-
dit Committee. In addition, proposals to
employ former senior executives of the
external auditor, previously involved in the
external audit, are required to be re-
viewed and approved in advance by the
Audit Committee.
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4. Executive Board

4.1 Members of the Executive Board

John R.Coomber

Chief Executive Officer from 1 January
2003, Member of the Executive Board
Committee, and Head of the Life & Health
Business Group until 31 March 2003

Mr Coomber, a British citizen born in
1949, graduated in theoretical mechanics
from Nottingham University in 1370.

Mr Coomber started his career with the
Phoenix Insurance Company. He joined
Swiss Re in 1973. Having qualified as an
actuary in 1974, he first specialised in the
company’s life reinsurance. He was Swiss
Re (UK)'s appointed actuary from 1983 to
1990.In 1987 he assumed responsibility
for the life division and, in 1993, was
made head of the company’s UK opera-
tions. Mr Coomber was appointed Mem-
ber of the Executive Board in April 1995,
responsible for the Group's Life & Health
Division. In June 2000. he became a
member of the Executive Board Commit-
tee. In November 2002, the Board of
Directors appointed him CEO with effect
from 1 January 20083,

Jacques Aigrain

Member of the Executive Board Commit-
tee, Head of the Financial-Services Busi-
ness Group

Mr Aigrain, a Swiss and French citizen
porn in 1954, received a PhD in econom-

ics. In 1981, from the Sorbonne, in France,

after studying law at the Sorbonne and
economics at Dauphine University.

Jacques Aigrain joined Swiss Re in June

2001. to assume his current position, Pre-
viously, Mr Aigrain worked for JPMorgan
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in various positions and locations, pre-
dominantly in investment banking, capital
markets, and mergers and acquisitions.
Immediately prior 10 joining Swiss Re, he
was a managing director and a member
of JPMorgan’s investment banking man-
agement committee, where he was
co-head of client coverage, responsible
for the financial institutions and classical
economy sectors.

Martin Albers

Member of the Executive Board, Head
of the Risk Solutions Unit in the Financial
Services Business Group

Mr Albers, a Swiss citizen born in 1960,
graduated from the Swiss Federal Institute
of Technology. Zurich, in 1985 with

a degree in engineering, and in 1991
earned an MBA from the JL Kellogg Grad-
uate School of Management at North-
western University, Chicago.

Mr Albers joined Swiss Re as head of
Preduct Controlling in 1994, after having
worked for over three years with Boston
Consulting Group. In 1996 he became
head of property and casualty business in
Canada and, in 1999, in the UK. Mr Al-
bers was appointed to the Executive
Board in January 2002. He assumed his
current position in June 2002.

Walter Anderau

Member of the Executive Board, Head of
the Communications & Human Resources
Division

Mr Anderau, a Swiss citizen born in 1946,
received a degree in history from the Uni-
versity of Zurich in 1972 after studies both
in Zurich and Paris.

Walter Anderau joined Swiss Re in 1998
as head of Group Human Resources. Prior
to that, he worked for ten years at Kraft
Jacobs Suchard, where he was chairman
of the board of Swiss operations, director
on the company's European board and, as
vice president corporate atfairs, member
of the executive board of Kraft (Europe).
From 1985 to 1988, Mr Anderau headed
Switzerland's "700th anniversary celebra-
tion” (CH 81). He was appointed to the
Executive Board in July 1999 to take on
his present position.

In the cultural field, he is chairman of the
board of trustees of the Wohnmuseum
Barengasse in Zurich and a member of
the foundation committee of the Monas-
tery of St. John in MUstair (Graublnden),
a UNESCO world heritage site.

Andreas Beerli

Member of the Executive Board, Head of
the Americas Division within the Property
& Casualty Business Group

Mr Beerli, a Swiss citizen born in 1951,
graduated in law in 1976 and received a
doctor iuris degree from the University of
Basle in 1983.

Mr Beerli joined Swiss Re in 1979, serv-
ing in various marketing functions until
1984. He then worked for Credit Suisse in
private banking and the Baloise Insurance
Group where he served in the company’s
foreign operations. He rejoined Swiss Re
in 1993.In 1997, he restructured and in-
tegrated the newly acquired ltalian rein-
surance company Uniorias. In 1998, he
assumed the additiona! position as Head
of the Global Clients Unit. He was pro-
moted to his current position in January
2000.

Mr Beerli is a member of the board of the
Reinsurance Association of America.
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Giuseppe Benelli

Chief Investment Officer, Member of the
Executive Board Committee, Head of the
Asset Management Unit within the Finan-
cial Services Business Group

Mr Benelli, a Swiss citizen born in 1953,
gained his doctorate in economics from
the University of Berne in 1982. Before
graduating, he spent several semesters at
the Graduate School of Management, Uni-
versity of Rochester, New York. He went
on to complete a programme in security
analysis and portfolio management at the
international Center for Monetary and
Banking Studies in Geneva.

Mr Benelli joined Swiss Re on 1 January
2000 as a member of the Executive
Board, and was appointed to the Execu-
tive Board Committee on 1 January
2002. He first worked in research, finan-
cial analysis and fund management for
UBS in Zurich, before moving to Bank Leu
in 1388, where he headed the financial
analysis and porifolio management
service centre. He became a member of
Bank Leu's executive board in 1998.

Phillip Colebatch

Member of the Executive Board, Head
of the Advisory and Capital Markets Unit
within the Financial Services Business
Group

Mr Colebatch, an Australian citizen born in
1944, received a Master of Science from
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology
in 1969 and a doctorate in business
administration from Harvard Business
Schoolin 1973.
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Mr Colebatch joined Swiss Re in Septem-
ber 2002 to assume his current position,
which includes responsibility for Fox-Pitt,
Kelton {FPK) and Swiss Re Financial Prod-
ucts. Before joining, Mr Colebatch was
with Credit Suisse Group, where he most
recently served as a member of the group
executive board and CEO of Credit Suisse
Asset Management. Mr Colebatch began
his career with Citicorp in New York and
held a number of senior investment bank-
ing positions in Hong Kong and London.

Jacques E. Dubois

Member of the Executive Board, Deputy
Head of the Life & Health Business Group,
Chairman & CEO of Swiss Re America
Holding Corporation

Mr Dubois, a US citizen born in 1949,
graduated from the College of the Holy
Cross in Worcester, Massachusetts, in
1970 with a degree in mathematics. He
also received a master's degree in busi-
ness administration in 1972 from the
Amos Tuck School at Dartmouth Coliege.
Hanover, New Hampshire.

Mr Dubois joined Swiss Re in conjunction
with the company’s acquisition of Life Re
in 1998 In June 2000, he was ap-
pointed a member of the Executive Board
and Deputy Head of the Life & Health
Business Group.

Mr Dubois began his business career at
Philo Smith & Co.. a securities firm special-
ising in insurance stock research and the
merger and acquisition of insurance com-
panies. In 1978, he joined Insurance In-
vastment Associates, an investment bank-
ing partnership focused exclusively on
mergers and acquisitions of life insurance
companies. In 1988, Mr Dubois co-
founded Life Re Corporation in view of the
purchase of the General Reassurance
Company by way of a leveraged buy-out
from General Reinsurance Corporation. He

served as president and chief operating
officer of Life Re Corporation from 1988
to 1998. He continued as a partner of
insurance investment Associates until
December 1998, when he resigned upon
the acquisition of Life Re Corporation by
Swiss Re.

John H. Fitzpatrick

Chief Financial Officer until 31 March
2003, Member of the Executive Board
Committee, designated Head of the
Life & Health Business Group effective
1 April 2003

Mr Fitzpatrick, a US citizen born in 19586,
graduated from the Loyola University of
Chicago with a Bachelor of Business Ad-
ministration in 1879. He is a Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) (1987) and a Cer-
tified Public Accountant (CPA) (197 9).

Mr Fitzpatrick joined Swiss Re in July
1938 as Chief Financial Officer. Before
joining, he was senior managing director
and co-head of Securitas Capital. a joint
venture between Swiss Re and Credit
Suisse focusing on private equity oppor-
tunities in the insurance industry. From
1996 to 1998 he was a senior managing
director at Zurich Centre Resources Ltd.,
where he focused on start-ups of new in-
surance companies. From 1990 t0 1996
he was CFQ and a member of the board
of directors of Kemper Corporation.
Originally he had started with Kemper

as a financial analyst in 1978, rising to the
position of vice president in corporate
finance in 19886.

John H. Fitzpatrick is a member of the
Financial Services Chapter Board of the
Swiss-American Chamber of Commerce,
having been its chairman from June 1999
10 2002.
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John J. Hendrickson

Member of the Executive Board, Head
of the Capital Partners Unit within the
Financial Services Business Group until
31 March 2003

Mr Hendrickson, a US citizen born in
1960, obtained a Master of Science de-
gree in industrial engineering with empha-
sis on financial analysis and also a Bache-
lor of Arts in history, both in 1983 from
Stanford University.

John J. Hendrickson joined Swiss Re in
July 1998 to assume his current position.
He is chairman of Securitas Capital, LLC,
the management company of the Securi-
tas investment programme, a joint venture
between Swiss Re and Credit Suisse
Group. Prior to his association with Swiss
Re, Mr Hendrickson served as an invest-
ment banker with Smith Barney, Inc.

Rudolf Kellenberger
Deputy Chief Executive Officer, member
of the Executive Board Committee

Mr Kellenberger, a Swiss citizen born in
1945, studied civil engineering at the
Swiss Federal Institute of Technology in
Zurich, graduating in 1970.

Mr Kellenberger joined Swiss Re in 1978,
holding various assignments in facultative
and treaty business within the engineer-
ing department. In the early 1980s, he
was responsible for Southeast Asia, oper-
ating from Hong Kong. In 1990 he was
appointed head of the engineering de-
partment. In 1993 he was appointed to
the Executive Board, responsible for the
Northern Europe reinsurance sector and
special lines. In 1998 he was appointed
Head of Europe Division. On 1 April 2000,
he became Deputy Chief Executive Offi-
cer. Mr Kellenberger started his career as
a project engineer in kridge construction

before moving to England, where he
worked for a major Swiss construction
company.

Mr Kellenberger is also a member of the
board of the Swiss Insurance Association
and of the supervisory board of Wistenrot
& Warttembergische AG, Stuttgart, as well
as vice chairman of Gerling NCM Credit
and Finance AG, Cologne, and a member
of the international advisory board of
Fortis, Brussels,

Walter B. Kielholz

Chief Executive Officer until

31 December 2002

Please refer to section 3 above.

Michel M. Liés

Member of the Executive Board, Head of
the Europe Division within the Property &
Casualty Business Group

Mr Liés, a citizen of Luxembourg born in
1954, received a degree in mathematics
from the Swiss Federal Institute of Tech-
nology, Zurich, in 1974.

Mr Liés joined Swiss Re’s life department
in 1978. Based in Zurich, he first covered
the Latin American market. From 1983 to
1993, he was responsible for France and
the countries of the Iberian Peninsula.

In 1994 he moved to the non-life sector
of the Southern Europe/Latin America
department, which he headed from 1997.
Mr Liés became a member of the Execu-
tive Board and Head of the Latin America
Divisionin 1998. On 1 April 2000, he as-
sumed his current function. Prior to joining
Swiss Re, Mr Liés was in charge of the fi-
nance department at the Brazilian branch
of an ltalian company.

Mr Liés is also a non-executive director of
CNP Assurances, Paris.

Stefan Lippe

Member of the Executive Board Commit-
tee, Head of the Property & Casualty Busi-
ness Group

Mr Lippe, a German citizen bornin 1955,
graduated in mathematics and received a
doctorate in business administration from
the University of Mannheim in 1882,

Mr Lippe joined Bavarian Re in 1983. In
1986 he became head of the non-propor-
tional underwriting department. He was
appointed deputy member of the board of
management in 1988 and a full member
in 1991, when he assumed general re-
sponsibility for the company’s operations
in the German-speaking area. In 1993 he
became chairman of the board of man-
agement of Bavarian Re. In 1995 he was
appointed a member of Swiss Re's Execu-
tive Board, responsible for the Bavarian Re
Group. He was assigned his current posi-
tion in April 2001,

Pierre L. Ozendo

Member of the Executive Board, Head of
the Asia Division within the Property & Ca-
sualty Business Group

Mr Ozendo, a US and French citizen born
in 1950, attended the University of San
Francisco from 1968 to 1971, studied po-
litical science and earned a bachelor of
arts degree.

Pierre Ozendo joined the Swiss Re Group
in 1985, taking on an assignment as chief
executive officer of the subsidiary Union
Re, effective 1 January 1996. Mr Ozendo
was appointed to Swiss Re's Executive
Board on 1 July 1996. Following Union
Re's integration with Swiss Re, he was
named Head of the Group's Asia Division
in 1998. Before joining Swiss Re, Mr
Ozendo worked for General Reinsurance

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002




Corporation from 197510 19385.in 1986
he moved to Switzerland as general man-
ager of General Reinsurance Corporation
{(Europe) in Zurich. He was appointed
president and managing director of
General Re Europe Limited in 1994, Mr
Ozendo was previously employed as an
underwriter by the New York Life Insur-
ance Company in San Francisco.

Mr Ozendo serves as a vice chairman of
the Evian Group and is a board member of
the International Insurance Society.

Bruno Porro

Chief Risk Officer, Member of the Execu-
tive Board Committee, Head of the Risk &
Knowledge Division

Mr Porro, a Swiss citizen bornin 1845,
graduated from the Swiss Federal Institute
of Technology. Zurich, in 1869 as a civil
engineer. While in employment, he ob-
tained a doctorate in economics in 1978.

Mr Porro joined Swiss Re in 1978, where
he established a group involved with the
assessment of natural hazards. In 1887 he
became head of the development and
capacity utilisation section and assumed
responsibility for the catastrophe fund
covers of Swiss Re and its Group compa-
nigs. In 1989 he moved to the Spain/Por-
tugal marketing area, becoming Deputy
Head of the Latin America/Spain/Portugal
Department in 1894, He was appointed
to the Executive Board in 1995, with re-
sponsibility for Southern Europe and Latin
America. In 1998, he was named Chief
Risk Officer and also became a member of
the Executive Board Committee. Prior to
joining Swiss Re, Mr Porro had various
assignments at the Swiss Federal Institute
of Technology.
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Chris C. Stroup

Member of the Executive Board, in charge
of the Life & Health Business Group's
North American operations

Mr Stroup, a US citizen born in 1961,
received a BSc degree in economics from
the University of Pennsylvania in 1983,
and a Master of Business Administration
from the Columbia University, New York,
in 1990.

Mr Stroup joined Life Re Corporation in
1996, where he served as director, execu-
tive vice president and chief financial offi-
cer until Swiss Re acquired the company
in 1998. He was appointed a member of
Swiss Re's Executive Board on 1 January
2002. Before joining Life Re, Mr Stroup
worked with Ernst & Young LLP, where he
served as a partner from 1993 10 1996.

Mr Stroup, who is also a Certified Public
Accountant, has been active in profes-
sional societies for a number of years. He
has been involved in the American Insti-
tute of Certified Public Accountants as
well as the Connecticut Society of Certi-
fied Public Accountants.

Yury Zaytsev

Group Information Officer, Member of the
Executive Board, Head of the Information,
Processes & Technology Division

Mr Zaytsev, a US citizen born in 19489,
studied engineering and computer tech-
nology at the Technical University of Lvov,
Ukraine, graduating in 1971 with a mas-
ter’s degree in mechanical engineering.

Mr Zaytsev joined Swiss Re in 1992 as
head of corporate information resources
for US subsidiaries, based in New York. In
1995 he was seconded to head office in
Zurich, where he was put in charge of
Group Information and Technology and the
Group’'s Data Centre. Mr Zaytsev was ap-

pointed to the Executive Board in 1399 as
Group Information Officer. Prior to joining
Swiss Re, Mr Zaytsev developed the IT sys-
tems for the 1980 Olympic Games in Mos-
cow. He then emigrated to the US, where
he first worked as an IT project manager
for the retail group Kmart in New Jersey.
He then spent seven years working for the
American International Group, New York,
where he handled the firm’s domestic and
international IT applications.

4.2 Important changes since

31 December 2002

0On 19 December 2002, the Board of Di-
rectors appointed Ann F. Godbehere to the
position of Chief Financial Officer and
Member of the Executive Board Commit-
tee with effect from 1 April 2003. She
succeeds John H. Fitzpatrick who will be-
come Head of the Life & Health Business
Group from the same date.

Ann F. Godbehere, a Canadian citizen
bornin 1855, qualified as a Certified Gen-
eral Accountantin Canadain 1984. Ms
Godbehere joined Mercantile & General
Re in 1981, where she rose to senior vice
president and controller. When Swiss Re
acquired M&G, she became Chief Finan-
cial Officer of Swiss Re Life & Health,
North America. In 1997 she was ap-
pointed CEO of Swiss Re Life & Health
Canada. She moved to London as Chief
Financial Officer of the Swiss Re Life &
Health Division in 1998 and joined the
Property & Casualty Business Group,
based out of Zurich, as CFO in 2007,

With effect from 1 March 2003, Swiss
Re simplified its asset management
organisation. Capital Partners has been
integrated into Swiss Re Asset Manage-
ment in order to streamline processes and
achieve operational efficiencies. In this
context, John J. Hendrickson will

step down from the Executive Board as

of 31 March 2003.
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4. Executive Board (continued)

4.3 Management contracts

Swiss Re Life & Health America Inc. and
one of its direct subsidiaries, both of
which are US life insurance subsidiaries
of Swiss Reinsurance Company (such US
insurance subsidiaries are hereinafter re-
ferred to as “Swiss Re Life"), are parties

to third party administration contracts (the
“TPA Agreement”) with Computer Sci-
ences Corporation or one:or more of its af-
filiates (“CSC"), which is a Nevada-based
corporation. The TPA Agreement provides
for CSC to deliver substantially all policy-
holder administration services, including
claims services, for an aggregate of ap-
proximately 1.8 million direct life insur-
ance policies and annuities of Swiss Re
Life and its clients. Pursuant to the TPA
Agreement, CSC provides such policy-
holder administration services at a num-
ber of operational sites throughout the
United States. The TPA Agreement has
various expiration dates depending on the
various blocks of insurance business and
types of services covered by a particular
TPA Agreement. The expiration dates
range from 2003 to 2009. Swiss Re Life
and CSC are negotiating new agreements
to supersede the TPA Agreements cur-
rently in existence and expect to conclude
such negotiations in 2003 on terms sub-
stantially similar to the terms of the current
TPA Agreements.

5. Compensations, share-
holdings and loans

5.1 Content and method of determin-
ing the compensation and the share-
holding programmes

Compensation of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, the CEOQ and other
members of the Executive Board is set by
the Board of Directors’ Compensation and
Appointments Committee. This Commit-
tee convenes three to four times a year
and presents its proposals to the full Board
of Directors for approval. The Committee’s
remit also includes responsibility for the
compensation philosophy and approving
compensation plans.

The Board of Directors receives an hono-
rarium in the form of shares that are de-
ferred for four years. Only the Chairman
and the Delegate receive an additional
emolument, which includes performance-
related pay.

Swiss Re has a “pay for performance”
phitosophy. The Executive Board is paid a
base salary and variable bonus. The fixed
salary consists of a cash payment, while

the bonus can be either in cash or shares
that are deferred for four years. Further-
more, all Executive Board members are
obliged, after a period of four years, to
own a minimum of four years’ base salary
in shares. For the Chief Executive Officer,
the requirement is the equivalent of six an-
nual base salaries.

Swiss Re also grants its top management
options as a long-term performance in-
centive. The size of the option grant de-
pends on the labour market, the degree
of influence on the Group result, and the
potential and acceptability of the resulting
dilution. Swiss Re options have a total
duration of ten years with a four-year
vesting peried. In the event of resignation
during this period, entitlement to the
options is forfeited.

The Executive Board's performance as-
sessment is based on annual objectives in-
volving financial and qualitative elements.
The bonuses distributed for a year's service
are paid in April of the following year. All
amounts disclosed relate to the perform-
ance year 2002 with some elements to be
credited in April 2003.

5.2 Compensation for acting members of governing bodies

CHF millions
Executive Board (18 members) 39.8
Board of Direciors {9 members) 11
Total 40.9

The compensation figures for the Chief Executive Officer, who was simultaneously an
executive member of the Board of Directors, are included in the Executive Board amounts
in accordance with the SWX directive. This principle is also applied in the other tables
where a differentiation is made between the Executive Board and the Board of Directors.

The total shown includes all the remuneration components except for deferred shares
and options, which are shown separately. Cash payments, allowances, value of preferen-
tial rates on loans, other financial benefits as well as the amount of actuarial funding
needed for pensions are included in this figure. Swiss Re does not have a separate pen-
sion plan for members of the governing bodies.
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5.3 Compensation for former members of governing bodies

Number of shares

allocated in 2002 CHF millions
Executive Board (3 members) 12085 15
Board of Directors (1 member) 16182

Two former members of the Executive Board perform periodic services on behalf of the
firm. The shares allotted to a former member of the Board of Directors relate to services
rendered over several years prior to 2002. The shares are deferred for four years and
have a discounted taxable value of CHF 122 .40.

5.4 Share allocation

Share allocation

for 2002
Executive Board (18 members) 326647
Board of Directors (9 members) 29591
Total 355238

Executive Board members must receive between 25% and 100% of their performance-
related pay in shares. All shares awarded to the Executive Board are subject to a four-year
deferral period. The bonus plan provides that the final split between cash and shares has
to be elected by April. For the purpose of this disclosure, we assumed a take-up rate of
75% which is in line with experience from prior years. The Swiss Re share has a dis-
counted taxable value of CHF 53.60 for the performance bonus payable in April 2003.

5.5 Share ownership

Number of shares held
on 31 December 2002

Executive Board (18 members) L .....1119015
Board of Directors (7 members) 138 963
Total 1257978

In addition to those shares held by the person in question on the reporting date,
shareholdings consist of any shares held by his/her spouse, minors, and of directly
controlled companies.

5.6 Allocated number of options

. uti rd
a. Executive Board Average exercise price (CHF)
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Board of Di Tor
b. Board of reciors Average exercise price (CHF)

Grant year 68 128 144 186
2000 , e R 20000 R
2001 o ... 10000
2002 . 40000
2003 40000

All options have a four-year vesting period during which there is a risk of forfeiture
and an exercise period of six years. Each option entitles the bengficiary to purchase one
share. The taxable value of the options granted in March 2003 is CHF 9.55.

5.7 Additional honorariums and remuneration
Nothing to report.

5.8 Loans granted to members of governing bodies

CHF millions
Mortgages and loans to Executive Board members (14) 355
Mortgages and loans to members of the Board of Directors none

All credit is secured against real estate or shares. All loans, with two exceptions, have a
variable interest rate which is 1% below normal market rates. The terms and conditions
of loans and mortgages are the same as those available to all Swiss Re employees in the
respective location. The preferential interest rates have been factored into the compensa-
tion sums given to the governing body members under 5.2.

5.9 Highest total compensation
The compensation of the highest paid member of the Board of Directors (Walter B. Kiel-
holz) during the reporting year can be broken down as follows:

CHF millions
Compensation (inthe sense of para. 52) . 82
‘Number of shares (in the sense of para. 5.4) 55432
Number of options (inthe sense of para 5.68) 80000

The options have an exercise price of CHF 67.65, run for ten years and have a four-
year restriction period during which there is a forfeiture risk. The taxable value per option
was CHF 8.565, while the discounted taxable value of the shares was CHF 53.60.
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6. Shareholders’ participa-
tion rights

6.1 Voting-right restrictions and
representation

2. Yoting-right restrictions, statutory
group clauses, exception rules

There are no voting-right restrictions, no
statutory group clauses and hence no
rules on making exceptions.

bb. Reasons for making exceptions
in the year under review
No exceptions were made.

¢. Procedure and conditions for
canceliing statutory voting-right
restrictions

As there are no voting-right restrictions,
there is neither a procedure nor a condi-
tion for their cancellation.

d. Statutory rules on participating

in the Annual General Meeting

of shareholders if differing from

legai provisions

A shareholder wishing to be represented
may appoint as proxy only another share-
holder with voting rights. However, prox-
ies for deposited shares need not be
shareholders. Business firms, partnerships
and corporate bodies may be represented
by legal or authorised representatives or
other proxies, married shareholders by
their spouses, minors and wards by their
guardians, even though such representa-
tives are not shareholders.
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6.2 Statutory quorums

None. The Annual General Meeting of
shareholders passes resolutions by an ab-
solute majority of the votes validly cast,
subject to the compulsory exceptions pro-
vided by law.

6.3 Convocation of the Annual General
iVieeting of shareholders

The statutory rules on the convocation of
the Annual General Meeting of sharehold-
ers correspond with the legal provisions.
Accordingly, the Annual General Meeting
of shareholders is summoned at least

20 days before the date of the meeting by
notice publicised in the “Schweizerisches
Handelsamtsblatt”.

6.4 Agenda

The Board of Directors states the matters
on the agenda. Shareholders with voting
powers whose combined holdings repre-
sent shares with a nominal value of at
least CHF 1 million may, up to 45 days be-
fore the date of the meeting, demand that
matters be included in the agenda. Such
demands must be in writing and must
specify the items and the proposals to be
submitted.

6.5 Registrations in the share register
There is no statutory rule on the deadline
for registering shareholders in connection
with the attendance of the Annual General
Meeting. In recent years, Swiss Re has ac-
knowledged voting rights of shares which
were registered at least two working days
before the Annual General Meeting. In
2003, the qualifying date shall be Thurs-
day, 8 May, while the Annuzl General
Meeting will be held on Monday, 12 May.

7. Changes of control and
defence measures

7.1 Duty to make an offer

Swiss Re has not taken any defence meas-
ures against take-over attempts. The gov-
erning bodies believe that the best protec-
tion is a fair valuation of the shares. They
believe in the efficiency of a free market
rather than relying on defence measures
that normally have a long-term negative
effect on the share price development.
Therefore, there are no statutory rules on
“opting up” or “opting out”, meaning that
should a shareholder reach the threshold
of 33V4% of all vating rights, then, pur-
suant to the Stock Exchange Act, he/she
would be required to submit a general
take-over offer. ("Opting up” means a
statutory rule based on which the trigger-
ing threshold would be lifted to a higher
percentage, while “opting out” means a
statutory rule waiving the legal duty to
submit an offer.)

7.2 Clauses on changes of control
There are no clauses on changes

of control in existence in agreements
and plans benefiting members of the
governing bodies.
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8. Auditors

8.1 Duration of the mandate and term
of office of the head auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd were elected
as auditors of Swiss Re at the Annual
General Meeting of 25 November 1991,
known as Revisuisse Price Waterhouse
AG at the time.

Mr Michael P. Nelligan and Mr Ray J. Kunz
took up office as head auditors respon-
sible for the existing auditing mandate as
of 1 January 1997 and 1 July 2001,
respectively.

8.2 Auditing honorarium

The following table summarises fees for
professional services for the year ended
31 December 2002.

Audit fees

PricewaterhouseCoopers  CHF 18.2m
Audit-reiated fees
PricewaterhouseCoopers CHES3m

Audit-related fees comprise, among other
things, amounts for due diligence serv-
ices, comfort letters, accounting advice,
information systems reviews and reviews
of internal controls.
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8.3 Additional honorarium

In addition to the fees described above,
aggregate fees of CHF 3.3 million were
billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers during
the year ended 31 December 2002,
primarily for the following.

Income tax compliance
and related tax services

. CHF1.2m
Other fees

 CHF2Im

Other fees comprise, among other things,
amounts for accounting, actuarial and
legal advisory, benchmarking studies and
treasury advisory services.

8.4 Supervisory and control instru-
ments vis-a-vis the auditors

The Board of Directors established the
Audit Committee, which evaluates exter-
nal auditors from time to time and recom-
mends one firm to the Board for election
at the Annual General Meeting of share-
holders. The Audit Committee closely co-
operates with the elected external
auditors. In particular, it consults them in
respect of significant risks, contingencies
or other obligations of the company; it re-
views and approves the plans of audit and
discusses the audits with them; it consid-
ers and reviews with them the adequacy
and efficacy of the financial reporting
process, the system of internal controls
and quality control procedures as well as

any of their significant findings and rec-
ommendations; it discusses with them the
results of the annual audit. and in particu-
lar their report on the financial statements,
necessary changes in the audit plan, and
any serious difficulties or differences in
opinion with management encountered
during the audit; it obtains from them, at
least annuzlly, a formal written statement
delineating all refationships relevant to
auditor independence between them and
Swiss Re; it actively engages in a dialogue
with them in respect of any disclosed
relationships or services that may impact
their objectivity and independence, and
recommends to the Board of Directors
appropriate action in response to their re-
port; it obtains from them and reviews, at
least annually, a report describing the ex-
ternal auditors’ own quality control proce-
dures, and any material changes or rele-
vant issues in this regard that may have a
bearing on the auditor’s responsibilities

to the company.

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002




9. Information policy

One of the guiding principles in Swiss Re's
Corporate Philosophy is “clear and open
communication”. As a result, the Group’s
information policy goes beyond iegal re-
quirements, aiming to meet best practice
standards with global industry peers.

Swiss Re maintains a close relationship
with the financial community and the
broader public by using all available com-
munication channels. Swiss Re's website
includes full details of its corporate disclo-
sure policy. Swiss Re is strongly commit-
ted to treating all investors equally. Meet-
ings dealing with important corporate
information are held with institutional in-
vestors and analysts; they can also be
followed by private shareholders via tele-
phone conference or on the Internet.

Swiss Re prevents selective disclosure by
observing ad-hoc publicity rules and a
strict policy of restrictions for the “Close
Period”, during which the financial results
are finalised. The Close Period commen-
ces on a given date preceding the official
publication of the financial results and
lasts until such publication has been
made. No meetings are held with analysts
or investors during this Close Pericd.

In addition, members of the governing
bodies, their secretariats and employees
preparing or communicating material
non-public financial information are sub-
ject to Close Period communication and
trading prohibitions.
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Swiss Re reports semi-annually on its
financial performance and on an ad-hoc
basis for important corporate news.
Furthermore, Swiss Re organises events
with investors and analysts where specific
topics are discussed.

In addition to these events, Swiss Re holds
frequent meetings with institutional in-
vestors and participates in investors’ con-

ferences organised by investment banks.
Presentations which are used to present
Swiss Re at such conferences are made

available to the public on the company’s
website.

Contact addresses are referred to on the
last pages of the Annual Report {inside
cover).

Communications of major corporate news in 2002

Date What

Method

26 February Report on 2002 renewals

_ence and webcasting)

News release and “Investors’ Day” meeting
in Ruschlikon (telephone conference and
News release, press conference and ana-
lysts’ meeting in Zurich {telephone confer-

Meeting in Zurich and news release

News release and telephone conference

10April Annual Reporting 2001
e P
. _Meeting
12 July Disclosure of life & health
embedded value 2001
29 August  Interim Reporting 2002

Coomber as Chief Exec-

utive Officer and John H.

Fitzpatrick as Head of

the Life & Health Business
Group

Investors’ meeti'ng re—r

garding Financial

26 November

News release, press conference and
analysts’ meeting in Zurich (telephone
conference)

News release

 Mesting in Ruschlikon (telephone confer-

ence)

Services Business Group

Appoint.m.ent of A‘n‘n F
Godbehere as Chief
Financial Officer

19 December

News release
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Genes may be behind the high number of centenarians in Sardinia.

Wamd, Sver e A population study by the University of Sassari in ltaly has shown that the

(i

island’s proportion of men to women who achieve extreme life spans

is 1 to 2, compared with 1 to 5 elsewhere.

Survival rates for Sardinian males above the age of 80 are among
the highest in the world. Some scientists are convinced that genetic

factors play a role.

Other experts assume that a healthy, low-stress, agrarian lifestyle is
the main reason why Sardinians outlive most of their peers. Studies on
elderly twins suggest that only about 25% of the variance in adutt
longevity is attributable to genetic differences, the other 75% seems to
be related to lifestyle choices and environmental factors. But demogra-
phers agree that the ranks of centenarians are rising rapidly as nutrition

and health care improve.
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Glossary

Some of the following terms are explained in more detail in note 1 “Organisation and summary of significant accounting

policies” in the Financial Statements.

Accident insurance

Accumulation

Acguisition costs

Admin ReS™

Asset-liability management

Avigtion insurance

Business interruption/
loss of profits/business income
protection insurance

Capacity

Casualty insurance

Cession

Claim

Claims handling

Claims incurred and claim adjustment
expenses

74

Insurance of individuals or groups against economic risks in the event of death or tempo-
rary or permanent disability by accident. A branch of non-life insurance.

Concentration of risks which may be affected by the same loss event or concentration of
shares in the same risk or same event through reinsurance treaties.

Incremental costs to sell, underwrite, and initiate a new insurance contract.

Acceptance of a closed block of in-force tife and health insurance business either
through acquisition or reinsurance, typically assuming the responsibility to administer the
underlying policies. Admin ReSM can also extend to the acquisition of an entire life insur-
ance company.

Management of a business in a way that coordinates decisions on assets and liabilities.
Specifically, the ongoing process of formulating, implementing, menitoring. and revising
strategies related 1o assets and liabilities in an attempt to achieve financial objectives for
a given set of risk tolerances and constraints.

Insurance of accident and liability risks, as well as hull damage, in connection with the
operation of aircraft.

Insurance against the financial effects of an insured loss on a company’s income.
The insurance covers overhead costs and loss of profits.

Maximum amount of risk that can be accepted in insurance. One factor in determining
capacity is government regulations that define minimum solvency requirements. Capac-
ity also refers to the amount of insurance coverage: 1) allocated to a particular policy-
holder or 2) in the marketplace in general.

Branch of insurance — mainty comprising accident and liability business — which is
separate from property, engineering and life insurance. In the US this term is used for

non-life insurance other than fire, marine and surety business.

Insurance that is reinsured: the passing of the insurer’s risks to the reinsurer against
payment of a premium. The insurer is referred to as the ceding company or cedent.

Payment incurred under the terms of a {re)insurance contract for a loss event.

The work in connection with the investigation, settlement and payment of claims from
the time of their occurrence until settlement.

All claims payments plus the adjustment in the outstanding claims provision of a busi-
ness year and claim adjustment expenses.
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Claims ratio

Coinsurance

Combined ratio

Commission

Commutation

Convergence

Cover

Credit insurance

Disability insurance

Embedded value

Employers’ liability insurance

Engineering insurance

Equalisation reserves

Expense ratio
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Sum of claims paid, change in the provisions for unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses in relation to premiums earned.

Arrangement by which a number of insurers and/or reinsurers share a risk.

Measure of business performance in non-life reinsurance before investment returns.

It is calculated as the combination of the claims ratio {sum of claims paid, change in the
provision for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses in relation to premiums
earned) and the expense ratio {sum of acquisition costs and other operating costs and
expenses in relation to premiums earned).

Remuneration paid by the insurer to its agents, brokers or intermediaries, or by the rein-
surer to the insurer, for costs in connection with the acquisition and administration of
insurance business.

Transaction in which policyholders or insurers surrender all rights under an insurance
or reinsurance contract in exchange for a single current payment.

Creating capital efficiency for companies by combining capital market solutions and
insurance technigues.

Insurance and reinsurance protection based on a contractual agreement.

Insurance against financial losses sustained through the failure for commercial reasons
of policyholders’ clients to pay for goods or services supplied to them.

Insurance against the incapacity to exercise a profession as a result of sickness
or other infirmity.

Actuarially determined estimate of the economic value of the in-force life and health in-
surance operations of an insurance company (excluding any value attributable to future
new business). Embedded-value earnings, defined as the change in the embedded value
over the year (after adjustment for any capital movements such as dividends and capital
injections), provide a measure of the performance of the life and health insurance op-
erations of an insurance company.

Insurance by employers covering employees’ injuries arising out of their employment.

Insurance of construction and erection of objects during the construction or erection
period and the insurance of machinery in operating plants.

Reserves prescribed by local regulatory authorities for future claim fluctuations and for
large and catastrophic losses which are established and included in the unpaid claims

and claim adjustment expenses liabilities.

Sum of acquisition costs and other operating costs and expenses in relation to
premiums earned.
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Glossary

(continued)

Facultative reinsurance
Financial reinsurance
Fire insurance

Hail crop insurance

Health insurance
Impairment charge

Layer

Liability insurance

Life insurance

Marine insurance

Mortgage guarantee insurance

Motor insurance

Non-life insurance

Non-proportional reinsurance
{also excess of loss reinsurance)

Nuclear energy insurance

Operating margin

Operating revenues

Reinsurance of the insurer’s risks on an individual basis. The reinsurance company looks
at each individual risk and determines whether to accept or decline coverage.

Form of reinsurance that provides risk financing which may be combined with elements
of traditional risk transfer.

Insurance against fire, lightning or explosion; it can also embrace insurance against
windstorm, earthquake, flood and other natural hazards or political risks.

Insurance of crops in open fields and of greenhouses and their contents against hail,
storm and other natural hazards.

Insurance against sickness as a result of accident or illness.

Adjustment in the accounting value of an asset.

Section of cover in a non-proportional reinsurance programme in which total coverage
is divided into a number of consecutive layers starting at the retention or attachment
point up to the maximum limit of indempnity. Individual layers may be placed with differ-

ent (re)insurers.

Insurance of industrial, commercial, employers’, product, professional or private
liability to third parties.

Life insurance, sometimes referred to as life assurance, provides for a payment of a
sum of money upon the death of the insured. In addition, life insurance can be used as

a means of investment or savings.

Insurance against damage or loss of ships and cargoes; also includes
offshore drilling platforms.

Insurance protection of the mortgage against loss of capital and interest.

Insurance against accident and liability as well as against accidental collision damage
in connection with motor vehicles.

All classes of insurance business with the exception of life insurance.

Form of reinsurance in which the reinsurer assumes that part of the insurer’s claims
which exceed a certain amount.

Insurance against property damage, liability and accident in connection with the
operation of nuclear energy installations.

Operating income divided by premium revenues, expressed as a percentage.

Premiums earned plus net investment income plus other revenues.
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Portfolio

Premiums

Premiums earned

Premiums written

Product liability insurance

Professional and directors’

and officers’ liability

Property insurance

Proportional reinsurance

Quota-share reinsurance

Reinsurance

Reserves

Retention

Retrocession

Return on equity

Return on investment

Return on operating revenues
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Totality of risks assumed by an insurer or reinsurer; also the totality of investments
of a company.

Cost of insurance coverage.

Premiums an insurance company has recorded as revenues during a
specific accounting period.

Premiums for all policies sold during a specific accounting period.

Insurance of the liability of the manufacturer or supplier of goods for damage
caused by their products.

Insurance of liabilities arising from the performance of professional or official
company duties.

Collective term for fire and business interruption insurance as well as burglary,
fidelity guarantee and allied lines.

Form of reinsurance in which the premiums and claims of the insurer are shared
proportionally by the insurer and reinsurer.

Form of proportional reinsurance in which a defined percentage of all risks held by
the insurer in a specific line is reinsured.

Insurance for insurance companies which spreads the risk of the direct insurer, making
the risk of its portfolioc more homogeneous. Includes various forms such as facultative,
financial, non-proportional, proportional, quota-share, surplus and treaty reinsurance.

Amount required to be carried as a liability in the financial statement of an insurer or rein-
surer, to provide for future commitments under outstanding policies and contracts.

Amount of risk which the policyholder or insurer does not insure or reinsure but keeps
for its own account.

Amount of the risk accepted by the reinsurer which is then passed on to other
reinsurance companies.

Net income as a percentage of time-weighted shareholders’ equity.

Rate of return achieved on the average invested assets. Invested assets include
investments, funds held by ceding companies, net cash equivalents and net reinsurance
assets. Average invested assets are calculated as opening balance plus one half of the
net asset turnover.

Measure of profitability in the Life & Health Business Group: the operating result

(operating income excluding realised gains and losses) as a percentage of operating
revenue (premiums earned and net investment income).
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Glossary

{continued)

Return on total revenues

Risk

Risk category
Risk management
Risk of change
Securitisation

Surety insurance
Surplus reinsurance

Treaty reinsurance

Underwriting result
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Measure of profitability in the Financial Services Business Group: the operating result
(operating revenues — acquisition costs — claims and claim adjustment expenses

— operating costs) as a percentage of operating revenues (premiums earned and net
investment income and trading revenues and fees and commissions).

Possibility of an insured object, hazard or interest causing a loss, or of a loss being larger
than previously estimated.

Grouping of risks with similar characteristics.
Management tool for the comprehensive identification and assessment of risks based
on knowledge and experience in the fields of natural sciences, technology, economics

and statistics.

Fluctuation of actual from statistically anticipated claims experience as a result of
technical, social, legal, commercial or political changes.

The process of aggregating similar instruments, such as credit portfolios or catastrophe
risks, and marketing them to investors as a negotiable security.

Sureties and guarantees issued to third parties for the fulfilment of contractual liabilities.
Form of proportional reinsurance in which risks are reinsured above a specified amount.

Participation of the reinsurer in certain sections of the insurer’s business as agreed
by treaty, as opposed to single risks.

Premiums earned less sum of claims paid. change in the provision for unpaid claims

and claim adjustment expenses and expenses (acquisition costs and other operating
costs and expenses).
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Cautionary note

on forward-looking statements

Certain statements contained herein are
forward-looking. These statements pro-
vide current expectations of future events
based on certain assumptions and in-
clude any statement that does not directly
relate to a historical fact or current fact.
Forward-tooking statements typically are
identified by words or phrases such as
“anticipate”, “assume”, “believe”, “con-
tinue”, “estimate”, “expect”, "foresee”,
“intend”, “may increase” and "may fluctu-
ate” and similar expressions or by future
or conditional verbs such as “will”,
“should”, "would” and “could”. These for-
ward-looking statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors, which may cause Swiss Re’s
actual results, performance, achieve-
ments or prospects to be materially differ-
ent from any future results, performance,
achievements or prospects expressed or
implied by such statements. Such factors
include, among others:
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cyclicality of the reinsurance industry;
changes in general economic condi-
tions, particularly in our core markets;
uncertainties in estimating reserves;
risks and uncertainties relating to our
estimates of the losses arising from the
11 September 2001 terrorist attack in
the United States;

the performance of financial markets;
expected changes in our investment
results as a result of the changed com-
position of our investment assets or
changes in our investment policy;

the frequency, severity and develop-
ment of insured claim events;

acts of terrorism and acts of war;
changes in rating agency policies or
practices;

mortality and morbidity experience;
policy renewal and lapse rates;

the lowering or loss of one of the finan-
cial or claims-paying ratings of one or
more of our subsidiaries;

changes in levels of interest rates;
political risks in the countries in which
we operate or in which we insure risks;
extraordinary events affecting

our clients, such as bankruptcies and
liguidations;

risks associated with implementing
our business strategies;

changes in currency exchange rates;
changes in laws and regulations, in-
cluding changes in accounting stan-
dards and taxation requirements; and
increases in competitive pressures.

These factors are not exhaustive. We oper-
ate in a continually changing environment
and new risks emerge continually. Readers
are cautioned not to place undue reliance
on our forward-fooking statements. We
undertake no obligation to publicly revise
or update any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise.
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Income statement

For the years ended 31 December

CHF miltions Notes 2001

2002

Revenues

Premumseamed . 15 25219 29
Net investment incorme .2 5785

Netrealised investmentgains/losses 3 2665

Other revenues 455

Total revenues 34 104

Expenses
Claims and claim adjustment expenses B
Lieandhealthberefits .15 -8532
Semdtet e

Other operating costs and expvévn”seé - ‘”.—.3 384

715 -16266

e o ... 1B -56B8
Amortisation of goodwill o oA -368

-14485
_-10084
-6220
. -350
-3240

Total expenses -34208

-34379

Income/loss before income tax expense -104

Income tax expense 1'0 -61

.38
-127

Net income/loss ’ -165

-91

Diwed 8. 087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Group financial statements.
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Balance sheet

As of 31 December

Assets
CHF millions Notes 2001 2002
ﬂnVBStments . . e . 2 3
F xed-ncome securmes PR e T PSP PP PUOUPEPP P e T

Available-for-sale, at amortised cost (fair value: 2001: 60636; 2002:61514) 59905 59282

Tradmg at fa r value (amortrsed cost: 2001 636 2002: 527} 622 B 517
Equxty securities — Available-for-sale, at falrvalue - ‘ - ‘

st 200116 788 20021 13080) e s

Mortgages anc ather loans o o . 77%8 8938
Investment real estate v 1267 1537
Short -term mvestrﬁ.e‘htsma.t. amortxsed cost which approx:mates faxr value _ - o S 3 722 3356
Other invested assets 3569 2838
Total investments 95 888 85728
Covsndesheens g arp
Accrued mvestmentmcome vvvvvv ‘ ‘ ' v N 200 1010
Prem|ums o otherrecefvables ISP . PP R 167 2397
Remsurance recoverable on pa\dand unpaldclalms '''' ' o - ________ 15 7854” o 6443
Funds held by cedmg companies S o - 15 9T4 18286
oerecaceustoncoss o si e 4w
Acquwed present value offuture proﬁts - b 7 674 6668
Goodwill o ‘ D 4 4287 3389
income taxes recoverable B OO ‘ TP | | L a5 aa
Fmanma\servwces assets PPN PP TR o P s
Other aesets PR ST TP . o oass 7084
Total assets 170230 161 857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Group financial statements.

4 Swiss Re Annual Report 2002



Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

CHF mittions Notes 2001 2002
Llabllltles _ B
:Unpa|d clalms and cla\m adjustment expenses S ' ‘7 15 _ 68 618““ 62 652:
Liabilities for life and hea}!»t}h policy benefits 15” ' ‘ 41 370 37 268
Uneamed premiums - o BT ‘ 6399 6754
:Funds held under reinsurance treatves }}}}} S 4504 6 543
Remsurance balances payable __________ 3958 o 5 221 ‘
Income t taxes payable """ - - 54 N 340‘
:Deferred income taxes - . » 10 __‘1 499 1 423
Financial services Iaabllmes o 5038__ o 11 598
Short-term debt 1397 1331
‘Accrued expensss_a_nd other Ilabmtles o B ___'7 263:‘ 6376'
Long-term debt 6 7045 5663
Total liabilities 147632 145 171
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock, CHF 010 par value: e
~2001:321 868 120 and 2002; 322 057 870 shares authorised and issued 32 32
Addiionalpaic-ncapital 5757 5969
Accumulated other comprehenswe income: o o
. NefQ'r'i.ré'a'hsed"i'rvwv\'/vss-t“r‘r.{ér{fgams/losses net ofdeferred tax _ 2259 —715
' Cumulative translation adjustments 1288 -913
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 3547 -1628
“F%‘eserve for own shares - 9 218 137
Total shareholders’ equity 22598 16 686
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 170230 161 857
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Group financial statements.
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Statement of shareholders’ equity

Net Cumulative
Additional unrealised translation Reserve
Common paid-in gains/losses. adjust- Retained for own

CHF millions stock capital net of tax ments earnings shares Total
Balence as of 31 December 2000 147 1763 5714 871 14083 249 22787
Netneomeess “16s s
Change in unrealised gains/losses

onsecurities net(note 2) ~3455 S 73455
Foreign currency translation acjusiments a7 417
Dividends -713, AL
Change in own shares (note 9) — 31 L
Capital repayment TV -117
Eauiyissued 2 4004 o 4006
‘CHange in ébcbuhting bdlllicvx'/v -162 -162
Balance as of 31 December 2001 32 5757 2259 1288 13044 218 22598
Netincome/loss o -9 -9t
Change in unrealised g‘é'iﬁ's'/lvdsses .
_onsecurities,net(note2) L2974 ~2974
Foreign C‘L‘J‘rrencytranslvévtion adjustmventsv__ S 2200 N -2201
Oudends ) S
Change in own shares (note 9) .. S 81 BN .
Eouityissued 22 | 212
Additional minimum liability, net (note 11) -82 -82
Balance as of 31 December 2002 32 5969 -715 -913 12178 137 16 686

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Group financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income

For the years ended 31 December

CHF millions

2001 2002

Net incomey/loss e LLoes et
Other cé‘rﬁbrehenvsi\)‘e”\'h‘éome: S
. Foreign currency trenslation adjustments B M7 -2200
" Changs i nreslised gains/Iosses on securitos, net 3455 2078
Additional minimum liability, net -82
Comprehensive income/loss -3203 -5348

The accormpanying notes are an integral part of the Group financia! statements.
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Statement of cash flow

For the vears ended 31 December

CHF millions 2001 2002
Cash flows provided/used by operating activities S o _ ) o o
Netincome/ioss | . T1BB -8
Ad ustments to reconcule net mcome/loss to net cash provuded/used bv operat\ons o - S v - v
Deprecxanon amortisation and other non-cash items S o o 859 »__983'
Neesomesmemgonstoses s s
Change in techmcal prowsrons net v ‘ v N v ) v v - 8 506 - 1577
Change in reinsurance- recelvables ahd funds held by cadmg compames - N S ‘ ‘ —__3__012 - 617'
. Change in other assets and liabilties .. 84 123
Changeln income taxes payable/recoverable v o ) ) - S -276 76
Income from equity- acr‘ounted investees, net of d|vwdends recexved -160 130
Net cash provided/used by operating activities 3023 33830

‘Cash flows provided/used by investing activities

leed mcome securltles

Proceeds fromsale of ivestments ... 80101 76036
_Purchase of investments R ... 783593 -B4018
Netpurchase/sale of shorttermumeestiments 827 -4
Poceedsfomsaleofmestmens ... 1959 1314
. Purchase of investments e v Loners o-iz2san
Cash paid/received foracqulsmons/dlsposals and remsurancetransacnons net_ _ ‘ - -4196 1056
”(')thermvestments, net o o ' -1566  -455
Net cash provided/used by investing activities -8385 -6562

Cash flows provided/used by financing activities

issuance of long-term debt ... 2838 1855
lssuance/repayment o otherdebt e e A= 4.
Equityissued 4006 212
Capital repayment e R e, e R L L AN

Dividends paid o - -713 -776
Met cash provided/used by financing activities 6795 1838
Change in cash and cash equwvalents - - o . 1 585 _ v—'i 245
Cash and cash equwalentsasoﬂJanQary v I o o ”‘3433” 5018
Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 5018 3773

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Group financial statements.
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Notes to the Group financial statements

Nature of operations

Basis of presentation

Scope of consolidation

Use of estimates in the preparation
of financial statements

Investments

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

1. Organisation and summary of significant accounting policies

The Swiss Re Group. which is headquartered in Zurich, Switzerland, comprises Swiss
Reinsurance Company (the parent company, referred to as “Swiss Re Zurich”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Swiss Re Group” or the "Group”). The Group provides rein-
surance, alternative risk transfer products and services 10 insurance companies, clients
and others worldwide. Reinsurance and other related products and services are deliv-
ered 1o clients through a network of more than 70 offices in over 30 countries as well
as through reinsurance brokers.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accor-
dance with Swiss GAAP FER and comply with Swiss corporate legislation and include
the financial statements of Swiss Re Zurich and its subsidiaries. The presentation re-
quirements of FER 14 have been complied with except that certain financial information
has been disclosed in the notes and not in the primary financial statements. All signifi-
cant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated on consoclidation.

Companies in which Swiss Re Zurich, directly or indirectly, holds a voting majority or
otherwise controls are consolidated in the Group accounts, Companies in which Swiss Re
Zurich maintains a direct or indirect holding of between 20% and 50% and has a signifi-
cant influence, but not a controlling interest, are accounted for using the equity method
and are included in other invested assets. The Swiss Re Group's share of net profit or
loss in investees accounted for under the equity method is included in net investment in-
come. Equity and net income of these companies are adjusted as necessary to be in
line with the Group accounting policies. The results of consolidated subsidiaries and in-
vestees accounted for using the equity method are included in the financial statements
for the period commencing from the date of acquisition.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make significant esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses as well as the related disclosure including contingent assets and liabili-
ties. The Swiss Re Group's liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
and policy benefits for life and health include estimates for premium, claim and benefit
data not received from ceding companies at the date of the financial statements. In
addition, the Group uses certain financial instruments and invests in securities of certain
entities for which exchange trading does not exist. The Group determines these esti-
mates on the basis of historical information, actuarial analyses, financial modelling and
other analytical techniques. Actual results could differ significantly from the estimates
described above.

The Group's investments in fixed-income securities are classified as available-for-sale
("AFS”) or trading. Fixed-income securities AFS are reported at amortised cost. Trading
fixed-income securities are carried at fair value with unrealised gains and losses being
included in the income statement.

Equity investments AFS are carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with
the difference between original cost and fair value included in shareholders’ equity. The
cost of equity securities is reduced to fair value, with a corresponding charge to realised
loss on investments for declines in value that are other than temporary.



Notes to the Group financial statements

1. Organisation and summiary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Own shares

Derivative financial instruments

Subsequent recoveries to original cost for equity securities that are deemed to be a
reversal of the impairment are recognised in income.

Interest on fixed-income securities is recorded as income when earned and is adjusted
for the amortisation of any purchase premiumn or discount. Dividends on equity securi-
ties are recorded on the basis of the ex-dividend date. Realised gains and losses on sales
are included in the income statement and are calculated using the specific identifica-
tion method.

Mortgages and other loans are carried at amortised cost (effective yield metheod), net

of any allowance for amounts estimated to be uncollectible. Other loans consist of mort-
gage participations associated with linked investment contracts where the contract-
holders bear all investment risk.

Investment real estate that the Group intends to hold for the production of income is car-
ried at depreciated cost, net of any write-down for impairment in value. An impairment

in value is recognised if the estimated future undiscounted cash flows from the use of the
real estate asset are less than its carrying value. Impairments in value, depreciation and
other related charges or credits are included in net investment income. investment real
estate held for sale is carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated selling costs,
and is not depreciated. Reductions in the carrying value of real estate held for sale are
included in net realised investment losses.

Short-term investments are carried at amortised cost, which approximates fair value.
The Group considers highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of
one year or less, but greater than three months, to be short-term investments.

Other invested assets include affiliated companies, derivative financial instruments and
private equity investments.

The Group enters into security lending arrangements under which it loans certain secu-
rities in exchange for collateral and receives securities lending fees. The Group's policy is
to require collateral, consisting of cash or securities, equal to at least 102% of the car-
rying value of the securities loaned. In certain arrangements, the Group may accept col-
lateral of less than 102%, if the structure of the overall transaction offers an equivalent
level of security. Cash received as collateral is recognised along with an obligation to
return the cash. Securities received as collateral that can be sold or repledged are also
recognised along with an obligation to return those securities. Security lending fees

are recognised over the term of the related loans.

Swiss Re shares purchased by the Group are recorded at market value and are classi-
fied and accounted for as equity securities AFS. Unrealised gains and losses are
recorded in equity. The specific identification method is used to determine the cost of
own shares sold. Any gains or losses on the disposition of own shares are recorded
in the income statement.

The Group uses a variety of derivative financial instruments including swaps, options,

forwards and exchange-traded financial futures as part of an overall risk management
strategy. These instruments include derivative financial instruments indexed to the
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Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred acquisition costs

Acquired present vaiue of future profits

Goodwvill
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Group's own shares. Derivative financial instrument assets are included in other invested
assets and are primarily used as a means of managing exposure to price, foreign cur-
rency and/or interest rate risk on planned or anticipated investment purchases, existing
assets or liabilities and also to lock in attractive investment conditions for funds which
become available in the future.

The Group recognises all of its derivative instruments on the balance sheet at fair value.
Derivatives that are not hedges must be ad]usted to fair value through income. If the
derivative is used to hedge the fair value of assets or liabilities, changes in the fair value
of the derivative are recognised in earnings, together with changes in the fair value

of the related hedged item. If the derivative is used 10 hedge the variability in expected
future cash flow related to a particular risk, changes in the derivative’s fair value are
reported in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognised in earn-
ings. The ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised in earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, highly liquid debt instruments, and
short-term deposits purchased with an original maturity of three months or less.

Acquisition costs, which vary with, and are primarily related to, the production of new
business, are deferred to the extent they are deemed recoverable from future gross prof-
its. Deferred acquisition costs consist principally of commissions. Deferred acquisition
costs associated with property and casualty reinsurance business are amortised in pro-
portion to the property and casualty premiums earned. Future investment income is
considered in determining the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs on property
and casualty business.

Deferred acquisition costs associated with life and health reinsurance business are
amortised over the premium-paying pericd. For investment-type contracts, deferred ac-
quisition costs are amortised in relation to the present value of estimated gross profits.

The acquired present value of future profits ("PVFP”) of business in force is recorded in
connection with the acquisition of life and/or health operations. The initial value is deter-
mined actuarially by discounting estimated future gross profits as a measure of the value
of business acquired. The resulting asset is amortised on a constant yield basis over the
expected revenue recognition period of the business acquired, generally over periods
ranging up to 30 years, with the accrual of interest added to the unamortised balance at
the earned rate.

The carrying value of PVFP is reviewed periodically for indicators of impairment in value.
Adjustments to reflect impairment in value are recognised in income during the period
in which the determination of impairment is made.

The excess of the cost of acquired businesses over the fair value of net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill (purchase method). It is amortised using the straight-line
method over periods that correspond with the benefits expected to be derived from the
related acquisition. Goodwill is amortised over periods of between § and 20 years.



Notes to the Group financial statements

1. Crganisation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial services assets
and liabilities

Other assets

Capitalised software costs

Deferred income taxes

Unpaid claims and claim
adjustment expenses

The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed periodically for indicators of impairment
in value. Adjustments to reflect an impairment in value are recognised in income in the
period in which the determination of impairment is made.

Swiss Re uses long-term debt to finance general corporate purposes but also to fund
“Financial services assets and liabilities” (funded business). “Financial services assets
and liabilities” are structured with the intention of creating assets and liabilities that gen-
erate offsetting foreign exchange and interest rate risks. Long-term debt that is strictly
used for funded business is classified as operational debt. Operational debt is generally
excluded from financial leverage calculations. “Financial services assets and liabilities”
are valued according to the relevant principles for the underlying instruments.

Other assets include investments for separate-account business relating to certain types
of insurance contracts where the contract-holder bears the investment risk, deferred ex-
penses on retroactive reinsurance, prepaid reinsurance premiums, own-use real estate,
property, plant and eguipment, accrued income and prepaid assets.

Separate-account business assets and liabilities are valued at market value, and unre-
alised gains/losses are included in the income statement. Own-use real estate and
property, plant and equipment are carried at depreciated cost. Deferred expenses on
retroactive reinsurance policies are amortised intc income aver the expected
claims-paying pericd.

External direct costs of materials and services incurred to develop or obtain internal-use
software, payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated
with software development and interest cost incurred while developing internal-use
software are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of three
years through the income statement.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised based on the difference be-
tween financial statement carrying amounts and the corresponding income tax bases of
assets and liabilities using enacted income tax rates and laws. A valuation allowance
is recorded against deferred tax assets when it is deemed more likely than not that some
or all of the deferred tax asset may not be realised.

Liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses for property and casualty
reinsurance contracts are accrued when insured events occur and are based on the esti-
mated ultimate cost of settling the claims, using reports and individual case estimates
received from ceding companies. A provision is also included for claims incurred but not
reported, which is developed on the basis of past experience adjusted for current trends
and other factors that modify past experience. The establishment of the appropriate
level of reserves is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates and judgements
made by management, and therefore there can be no assurance that ultimate claims
and claim adjustment expenses will not exceed the loss reserves currently established.
These estimates are regularly reviewed, and adjustments for differences between
estimates and actual payments for claims and for changes in estimates are reflected in
income in the period in which the estimates are changed or payments are made.
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Equalisation reserves

Liabilities for life and health
policy benefits

Premiums
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Unpaid property and casualty claims provisions may only be discounted if the payment
pattern and ultimate cost are fixed and reasonably determinable.

Reserves prescribed by local regulatory authorities for future claim fluctuations and
for large and catastrophic losses are established and included in the unpaid claims and
claim adjustment expenses liabilities,

Liabilities for life and health policy benefits from reinsurance business are generally
calculated using the net level premium method, based on assumptions as to investment
yields, mortality, withdrawals and policyholder dividends. Assumptions are set at the
time the contract is issued or, in the case of contracts acquired by purchase, at the pur-
chase date. The assumptions are based on projections from past experience, making
allowance for possible adverse deviation. Interest assumptions for life and health rein-
surance benefits liabilities range from 2.5% to 12%. Assumed mortality rates are gener-
ally based on experience multiples applied to the actuarial select and ultimate tables
commonly used in the industry. Withdrawal assumptions for individual life reinsurance
contracts issued by the Group range from 1% to 20% and are based on historical expe-
rience.

Liabilities for investment-type contracts, including separate-account {unit-linked} life
reinsurance business, are based either on the contract account balance, if future benefit
payments in excess of the account balance are not guaranteed, or on the present value
of future benefit payments, if such payments are guaranteed. Liabilities for policy bene-
fits are increased if it is determined that future cash flows, including investment income,
are insufficient to cover future benefits and expenses.

The liability for accident and hezlth policy benefits consists of active life reserves and
the estimated present value of the remaining ultimate net costs of incurred claims. The
active life reserves include unearned premiums and additional reserves. The additional
reserves are computed on the net level premium method using assumptions for future
investment yield, mortality and morbidity experience. The assumptions are based on
projections of past experience and include provisions for possible adverse deviation.

Property and casualty reinsurance premiums are recorded when written and include an
estimate for written premiums receivable at period end. Premiums earned are generally
recognised in income over the contract period in proportion to the amount of reinsur-
ance provided. Unearned premiums consist of the unexpired portion of reinsurance pro-
vided.

Life reinsurance premiums are earned when due. Related policy benefits are recorded

in relation to the associated premium or gross profits so that profits are recognised over
the expected lives of the contracts. For investment-type contracts, charges assessed
against policyholders’ funds for the costs of insurance, surrender charges, actuarial mar-
gin and other fees are recorded as income.

Life and health reinsurance premiums for group coverages are generally earned over
the term of the coverage. For group contracts that allow experience adjustments to pre-
miums, such premiums are recognised as the related experience emerges.



Notes to the Group financial statements

1. Organisation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Reinsurance ceded

Pensions and other post-retirement
benefits

Stock-based employee
compensation plans

Foreign currency

The Group uses retrocession arrangements to increase its aggregate underwriting
capacity, to diversify its risk and to reduce the risk of catastrophic loss on reinsurance
assumed. The ceding of risks to retrocessionaires does not relieve the Group of its
obligations to its ceding companies. The Group regularly evaluates the financial condi-
tion of its retrocessionaires and monitors the concentration of credit risk to minimise
its exposure to financial loss from retrocessionaires’ insolvency.

Premiums and losses ceded under retrocession contracts are reported as reductions of
premiums earned and claims and claim adjustment expenses. Amounts recoverable for
ceded claims and claim adjustment expenses and ceded unearned premiums under
these retrocession agreements are reported as assets in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet.

Contracts which do not meet risk transfer requirements, defined as transferring a rea-
sonable possibility of a significant loss to the reinsurer, are accounted for as deposit
arrangements. Deposit amounts are adjusted for payments received and made, as well
as for amortisation or accretion of interest.

The Group provides reserves for uncollectible amounts on reinsurance balances ceded
and assumed, based on management’s assessment of the collectibility of the outstand-
ing balances.

The excess of estimated liabilities for claims and claim costs payable over consideration
paid in respect of retroactive property and casualty reinsurance contracts which meet
risk transfer tests is recorded as a deferred charge. The deferred charges are amortised
over the expected settlement periods of the claims liabilities.

The Group accounts for its pension and other post-retirement benefit costs using the
accrual method of accounting. Amounts charged to expense are based on periodic
actuarial determinations.

At 31 December 2002 the Group had a fixed option plan and an employee participation
plan. These stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described in more
detail in note 12, are accounted for using the intrinsic value method. In accordance with
the intrinsic value method, the fair value of options is not reflected in net income. The
pro-forma impact on net income is given in note 12.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange on the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates. Unrealised gains or losses resulting from translation of functional cur-
rencies to the reporting currency are included as a separate component of shareholders’
equity. Realised currency gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions
are included in income.
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Earnings per common share

Financial services assets
and liabilities
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Currency exchange rates in CHF per 100 units of foreign currency are as follows:

2001 2002

Closing rate Average rate Closing rate Average rate

Australian dollar AUD 84.99 8724 7786 8466
Bitshpound  GB  24164 24276 22259 23362
Canadiandoler  CAD 10401 10924 8752 3941
Ewo ... EUR 14783 15089 14510  146.73
Japeneseven . JPY. 127 140 M7 128
SouhAficanrand  ZAR 1384 2042 1612 1479
Usdoler  USD 16603 16878  138.28 15618

Basic earnings per common share are determined by dividing income/loss available to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares entitled to
dividends during the year. Diluted earnings per common share reflect the effect on earn-
ings and average common shares outstanding associated with dilutive securities.

Change in basis of presentation

The Group has adopted additional balance sheet categories for the financial services
assets and liabilities generated by the financial services business activities, principally in
the Advisory & Capital Markets Business Unit. The balance sheet and cash flow state-
ment as of 31 December 2001 have been reclassified to reflect the change. The reclas-
sification does not affect total assets, liabilities or shareholders” equity.
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Investment income

Realised gains and losses

2. Investments

Net investment income by source was as follows:

CHF millions 2001 2002
Fixed-income securities . 3320 3467
. Fauity securities e 414 358
_Mortgagesand other foans 68 651
..... Realestate ... o109 86
_ Shorttemiwestments 322 108
Othercurentinvesiments .40 66
. Eauity in earnings of equity-accounted investees . 385 68
_ Cash and cash equivalents 388
Deposits with ceding companies 817 923
Gross investment income 6113 5804
Less investment expenses -348 -297
Net investment income 5765 5507
Dividends received from investees accounted for using the equity method were
CHF 175 million and CHF 188 million in 2001 and 2002, respectively.
Realised gains and losses for fixed-income, equity securities and other investments
were as follows:
CHF millions 2001 2002
Fixed-income securities: o ‘ ‘ - o
Gross revélisedv gains ' v . 1498 2115
| Grossrealisedlosses . 7181 -844
Equity securities: e .
Gross realised gains 3011 2136
Grosremsedosses s o
Netrealised gains on other investments 238 1081
Value readjustments 7. 205
Value adjustments -670 -4078
Net realised investment gains/losses . 2665 -515

Realised gains and losses include the change in market value of trading fixed-income
securities and of derivative financial instruments except for those classified as cash

flow hedges.
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Amortised cost or cost and estimated fair values of investments in fixed-income and
equity securities classified as available-for-sale were as follows:

Gross Gross
As of 31 December 2001 Amortised unrealised unrealised Estimated
CHF millions cost or cost gains losses fair value
Debt securities issued by govern-
ments and government agencies
. Switzerland . 882 8 o.Tho...883
Germany o.....2854 386 .79 288
UnitedKingdom 3817 23 -29 381
Canada : 3708 227 710 3879
Other 6247 109 -32 6324
Total 35162 495 -241 35406
Corporate debt securites 17947 581  -269 18258
Mortgage bt by AN FA
securities 6806 200 -35 6971
Fixed-income securities
available-for-sale 59905 1276 -545 60636
Equity securities
available-for-sale 16788 3238 -1013 19013
Gross Gross
As of 31 December 2002 Amortised unrealised unrealised Estimated
CHF millions COst or cost gains losses fair value
Debt securities issued by govern-
‘ments and government agencies: e
United States ... 14464 420 7B 14879
- Swi‘tz‘ert‘an‘d . 208 B 7 TS ‘2‘1‘6”
Ceemey U sanw T sen
United Kingdom o....A4831 38 . 4369
Canada | .33 296 -2 3807
oo [ T T g 75
Total 34531 1087 -9 356089
Corporate debt securites 18974 1038 -173 14839
Mortgage and asset-backed
securities 10777 306 =17 11066
Fixed-income securities
available-for-saie 59282 2431 -199 61514
Equity securities
available-for-sale 13080 539 -1360 12259

As of 31 December 2002, fixed-income securities available-for-sale with a carrying
value of CHF 4 422 million and equity securities available-for-sale with a carrying value
of CHF 48 million were lent to third parties that have the right to sell or repledge the
borrowed securities. In addition, as of 31 December 2002, fixed-income securities
available-for-sale with a carrying value of CHF 159 million were lent to third parties that
do not have the right to sell or repledge the borrowed securities.
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2. Investments (continued)

Investments by original currency

Maturity of fixed-income securities
available-for-sale

The Group's investment portfolio at carrying value comprises concentrations in the

following major currencies:

As of 31 December 2001

CHF millions UsD EUR GBP CHF CAD Other Total
Fixed-income securites 39676 9658 4775 787 4157 1574 60527
Fouitysecurites 2833 7157 2871 3926 203 2023 19013
Morigages/otherloans 6518 1685 11 B45 21 16 7796
Other . 5414 1083 15 1136 395 409 8552
Total 53341 19683 7772 6394 4776 4022 95888
As of 31 December 2002

CHF millions usD EUR GBP CHF CAD QOther Total
Fixed-income securities 37384 11290 5037 302 3988 1798 59799
Equity securities ‘ 2033 3793 2467 2222 160 1584 12259
Mortgages/other loans 4757 1694 7 447 17 17 6939
Other - 3874 1572 538 1269 160 318 7731
Total 48048 18349 8049 4240 4325 3717 86728

The amortised cost or cost and estimated fair values of investments in fixed-income
securities by remaining maturity are shown below. Fixed-maturity investments are
assumed not to be called for redemption prior to the stated maturity date. As of 31 De-
cember 2001 and 2002, CHF 2 131 million and CHF 2 198 million, respectively, of
fixed-income securities were callable or had call options in the instruments’ structure.

2001 2002
As of 31 December Amartised Estimated Amortised Estimated
CHF millions cost or cost fair value cost or cost fair value
Dueinoneyearorless 2317 2346 1808 1922
Due after one year through five years 20876 21122 18757 20237
Due éftér fiv\:/be”yeérél‘througvh ten years » 14 643 14736 17559 18169
Duesftertenyears 16228 16443 13267 14126
Mortgage and asset-backed securities o
with no fixed maturity 5841 5990 6781 7 060
Total fixed-income securities 59 9056 60636 58282 61514
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As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, securities with a carrying value of CHF 509 mil-
lion and CHF 552 million, respectively, were on deposit with regulatory agencies in
accordance with local requirements.

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, investments with a carrying value of CHF 6 441
million and CHF 6 945 million, respectively, were placed on deposit or pledged to secure
certain reinsurance liabilities. 2001 has been adjusted to reflect a reclassification.

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002 investments in mortgage and other loans, real
estate and investment for separate-account business comprised the following:

As of 31 December 2001 2002
CHF millions Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
‘Mortgages and other loans .../796 7796 . .8939 6939
Investmentrealestate 1261 2168 1537 2406
{nvestment for separate-

accountbusiness 1943 1843 1799 1789

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, the Group’s investment in mortgages and other
loans included CHF 204 million and CHF 206 million, respectively, of loans due from
employees and CHF 342 million and CHF 364 million, respectively, due from officers.
These loans generally consist of mortgages offered at variable and fixed interest rates.

The Group's investment in mortgages and other loans included CHF 1587 million and
CHF 1 676 million of mortgage participations associated with linked investment con-
tracts as of 31 December 2001 and 2002, respectively. Contract-holders bear all in-
vestment risk related to mortgage participations. Fair value for other loans is considered
to be equal to carrying value.

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, investments in real estate included CHF 10 mil-
lion and CHF 37 million, respectively, of real estate held for sale.

Depreciation expense related to income-producing properties was CHF 28 million and
CHF 30 million for 2001 and 2002, respectively. Accumulated depreciation on invest-
ment real estate totalled CHF 593 million and CHF 5689 million as of 31 December
2001 and 2002, respectively.

Substantially all mortgages and other loans receivable are secured by buildings, land or
the underlying policies. The ultimate collectibility of the receivables is evaluated regular-
ly and an appropriate allowance for uncollectible amounts is established.
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2. Investments (continued)

Development of real estate and
investments in affiliated companies

Investment real estate

Affiliated companies

CHF miflions 2001 2002 2001 2002
Carrying value as of 1 January 1183 1261 1 422 2373
Foreign currency translation

adjustments 14 68 22 -146
Depreciation | 28 =80
Additions/sales/interest in equity 77231 893 -1182
Unrealised gains/losses - e .28
Realised gains/losses 3 270 -30 189
Transfers 336 -477
Carrying value as of 31 December 1261 1537 2373 760

The Group has constructed or is in the process of constructing buildings for both own-use
and investment purposes. This has resulted in the transfer of CHF 336 million from
own-use property to investment property. The Group has transferred the investment in
Partner Reinsurance Company from affiliated companies to equity securities following

the disposal of part of that investment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term deposits with a carrying value of

CHF 3544 million and CHF 1 334 million as of 31 December 2001 and 2002, respectively.
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3. Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses a variety of derivative financial instruments including swaps. opticns, for-
wards and exchange-traded financial futures in its trading and hedging strategies, in line
with the Group's overall risk management strategy. The objectives include managing
exposure to price, foreign currency and/or interest rate risk on planned or anticipated in-
vestment purchases, existing assets or liabilities as well as to lock in attractive invest-
ment conditions for future available funds.

The notional or contractual amounts of derivatives given below represent a standard
of measurement of the level of involvement in these types of transactions and are not a
guantification of market risk or credit risk. Notional amounts represent those amounts
used to calculate contractual cash flows to be exchanged and are not paid or received,
except for certain contracts such as currency swaps.

The fair values represent the gross carrying value amounts at the reporting date for each
class of derivative contract held or issued by the Group. The fair values below are not
an indication of credit risk as many over-the-counter transactions are contracted and
documented under ISDA master agreements or their equivalent. Management believes
that such agreements provide for legally enforceable set-off in the event of default,
which substantially reduces credit exposure.

The maximum potential loss assuming nonperformance by all counterparties and based
on the market replacement cost at 31 December 2001 and 2002 approximated
CHF 253 million and CHF 1 533 million, respectively. These values are net of amounts
offset pursuant to rights of set-off and qualifying master netting arrangements with
various counterparties.

The contract or notional amounts reported under Credit derivatives for 2001 and 2002
are largely (80% and 67%, respectively) portfolio credit default swap structures under-
written by the Credit Solutions Business Unit of the Financial Services Business Group.

[n such structures, under which the Group primarily sells credit protection, the protection
buyer in most cases retains a first-loss position {or deductible). The Group is typically ex-
posed only once the aggregate credit losses in the portfolio (net of any recovery amount)
exceed this retained first-loss position. Each portfolio credit default swap can be tranched
into layers of increasing credit quality, from “equity” (ie first-loss position) to "Super-
Senior” {ie with better than "AAA" quality). The Group has over 85% of its notional expo-
sure assigned to the "Super-Senior” category.

The remaining 33% reported under Credit derivatives are credit default swaps on the
trading book of the Advisory & Capital Markets Business Unit. This figure is reported as
the sum of outstanding positions, therefore inflating the notional values of all hedged po-
sitions. A considerable amount of credit default swaps in the trading book are hedged
with offsetting positions. However, the business unit does maintain open long and short
positions in credit default swaps and related instruments as part of its trading function.
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3. Derivative financial instruments {(continued)
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The notional amount and the fair value of derivatives outstanding at 31 December 2001

and 2002 are as follows:

Contract/ Carrying
As of 31 December 2001 notional Positive Negative value assets/
CHF millions amount fair value fair value liabilities
Interest rate contracts
Forwards and futures 12383 7 7
Swaps 11165 2078 -2 135 -57
Total 24711 2085 -213b -50
Equity and index contracts
Forwards and futures 1332 2 e w7
Options 2473 54 -49 5
Total 3805 75 -167 -92
Foreign currency
Forwards and futures B o
Swaps 312 13 -3 10
Total 317 13 -3 10
Other derivatives
Credit derivatives 52165 161 -338  -177
Weatherdemvanves ............. 59 . . 1 T _7 —6
Other 2 772 R 7 . ”_1”38v P v.._..]31v.
Total 54986 169 -483 -314
Total derivative financial instruments 83219 2342 -2788 -446
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Contract/ Carrying
As of 31 December 2002 notional Positive Negative value assets/
CHF millions amount fair value fair value liabilities
Interest rate contracts
Forwards and futures 356349 12 -55 -43

Swaps 83990 65899  -6897 8
Total 119335 691 -6946 -35

Equity and index contracts
Forwardsandfutres 186 13 =36 -23
Optors 15155 967 BB 912
Swaps 23 2 2
Total 15363 982 -91 891

Foreign currency

Forwerds and futures T -
Optons 8 3 .8
Swaps 3916 1977 -1 947 30
Total 4015 1980 -1947 33

Otherderivatives
Credit derivatves . 39202 180 -384 184
vietherdenties 2 41 o
Total 42803 257 -546 -289

Total derivative financial instruments 181 520 10130 -9530 600
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Goodwill

24

4. Acquisitions and dispositions

On 14 November 2002, the Group decreased its holding in Partner Reinsurance Com-
pany from 28% to 16% and received proceeds of CHF 434 million. The Group realised
a gain of CHF 145 million on this transaction.

During 2002, the Group sold interests in three US property and casualty insurance
companies for total proceeds of CHF 275 million.

During the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2002, goodwill of CHF 368 million
and CHF 350 million, respectively, was amortised.

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, the balance of accumulated goodwill amortisa-
tion was CHF 945 million and CHF 1131 million, respectively.

b. Deferred acquisition costs and acquired present value of future profits

2001 2002
CHF millions DAC PVFP DAC PVFP
Balance as of 1 January 3156 3917 3836 7674
Deferred o 4sE 4767
Reclassfication B 85 194
Effect of acquisitions and disposals o v 4240 - 1 -
Amortisation 3731 . 386 -38%2  -354
Effect of change in unrealised
.. gains/losses | Sl < B o
Effect of foreign currency translation -3 6 -504 -1285
Balance as of 31 December 3836 7674 4142 6668

The Group has reclassified certain amounts principally related to the finalisation of the
individual components of the Lincoln Re purchase transaction. These reclassifications
had no impact on net income or net equity.

The Group has not recognised the effect of fixed-income securities unrealised gains and
losses on PVFP in 2002 as the corresponding securities are valued at amortised cost.
If the unrealised gains and losses on fixed-income securities had been recognised, then
the adjustment to PVFP would have been a reduction of CHF 390 million. The effect of
change in unrealised gains and losses of CHF 121 million in 2002 reflects the reversal
of the effect on unrealised gains and losses on fixed-income securities from prior years.

The percentage of the PVFP which is expected to be amortised in each of the next five
years is 6%, 6%, 6%, 5% and 5%, respectively.
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6. Debt

The Group enters into long- and short-term debt arrangements to obtain funds for
general corporate use and specific transaction financing. The Group defines long-term
debt as debt having a maturity of greater than one year. The Group's long-term debt
as of 31 December 2002 was as follows:

Senior debt

Book value
Nominal Interest in CHF
Maturity  Instrument lssued in Currency  in millions rate millions

2004 Exch. Bond (TRIPLES) 1999  USD 530 2250% 699
2005 EMIN 2001 GBP 150  5.625% 334
2005 EMIN 2002 EUR 24  Index 35
2006 Private Placement N 2001 CHF 100  3.250% 100
2006 Senior Notes’ 1996 USD 200  7875% 276
2006 FixedTermPreferred Shares 2002 GBP 100 4.840% 223
2006 Insurance-linked Placement 2002  USD 209  3MLibor 289

e +601%
2007 Trustpreferred Stock (TuPs)” 1897 USD 42 8720% 73
2007 StaightBond 1997 CHF 500  3.750% 500
2008 Private Placement (step-up) 2001 CHF 100 3.600% 100
2009 EMTN 2002 EUR 10 Index 15
2013 Index Linked Notes 2001 USD 10 Index 14
2016 EMTN(StaightBond) 2001  CHF 150  4000% 150
Various Payment Undertaking Agreements 2000 USD 162 Various 268
Various Payment Undertaking Agresments ZOOIMUUS_D_W' 91 Various 150
Various Payment Undertaking Agreements 2002 USD 464  Various 695
Total senior debt as of 31 December 2002 3921

Total senior debt as of 31 December 2001 3533

' Assumed in the acquisition of Underwriters Re Group
? Assumed in the acquisition of Life Re Corparation

Senior debt as reported above is comprised of the following components:

CHF millions 2001 2002
Senior financialdebt . .....3260 2207
Senior operational debt 273 1714

Total 3533 3921
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8. Debt {continued)

Interest expense cn long-term debt
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Subordinated debt

Book

value

Nominal Interest .. tofirst in CHF

Maturity Instrument Issued in  Currency  in millions rate.. reset in millions
2021 Convertible Bond 2001 USD 1150  3.250% 2011 1562
- Subordinated Perpetual Loan 1998 DEM 340 6M Libor 2008 252

_ v e TA0BD _
-~ Subordinated Perpetual Loan 1998  DEM 400 5.710% 2008 297
- Subordinated Perpetual Loan 1998  CHF 300 6M Libor 2008 300

_— ... %3860
- Subordinated Perpetual Loan 1998 DEM 110 6MLibor 2010 82
B e TABDD
- Subordinated PerpetualLoan 1999 EUR 250 6MEuribor 2006 363
(PARCS) R e FBBbR
- vSubordinated Perpetual Bond 1999  CHF 600 3.750% 201 600
(SUPERBs)
Total subordinated financial debt as of 31 December 2002 3456
Total subordinated financial debt as of 31 December 2001 3785

Total financial debt reported in the financial statements as long-term debt is comprised
of the following components:

CHF mitlions 2001 2002
Senior financial debt - ‘ 3260 2207
‘Subordinated financial debt 3785 3456
Total 7045 5663

Swiss Re uses long-term debt to finance general corporate purposes but also to fund
“Financial services assets and liabilities” (funded business). “Financial services assets
and liabilities” are structured with the intention of creating assets and liabilities that
generate offsetting foreign exchange and interest rate risks. Long-term debt that is
strictly used for funded business is classified as operational debt and is included in finan-
cial services liabilities. Operational debt is generally excluded from financial leverage
calculations.

Interest expense on long-term debt for the years ended 31 December 20071 and 2002,
respectively, was as follows:

CHF millions 2001 2002
Senior financial debt 81 104 -
Smorpestonaicet g g
Subordinated financial debt 92 132
Total 182 278

InJuly 1997, the Group issued a straight bond with a face value of CHF 500 million,
bearing interest at 3.75%, maturing on 2 July 2007, in exchange for proceeds
of CHF 511 million. Interest is payable annually and the principal is due at maturity.
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In May 1898, the Group issued CHF 1 010 million of multi-currency subordinated debt
with a perpetual term, bearing interest at the rate of six-month Libor plus 37.5 basis
points, for the first tranche of CHF 300 million, Libor plus 40 basis points for a tranche of
DEM 340 million, Libor plus 45 basis points for a tranche of DEM 110 million, payable
semi-annually, and 5.71% for a tranche of DEM 400 million, payable annually. The loan
is subordinated in the event of liquidation to all senior creditors of Swiss Re Zurich, but
will be paid in priority to all holders of its equity.

In June 1999, the Group issued CHF 600 million in subordinated perpetual debt, with
an interest rate of 3.75% for 12 years, resetting to six-month Libor plus 100-140 basis
points thereafter, depending upon the rating of Swiss Re.

In June 1999, the Group also issued EUR 250 million of subordinated Perpetual Auction
Reset Capital Solvency bonds, with a coupon of six-month Euribor plus 55 basis points
for the first seven years. After seven years, and every five years thereafter, an auction will
be conducted to determine the re-offer vield.

In June 19889, the Group also issued USD 530 million of exchangeable notes with a
five-year term, bearing interest of 2.25% payable annually. The notes are exchangeable
at the noteholders’ option for shares of Swiss Re, Credit Suisse Group or Novartis AG.

In 2000, the Group entered into three Payment Undertaking Agreements (PUA's) which
are a form of financing transaction in which a cbunterparty deposits funds with the
Group having fixed repayment terms and interest rates on the deposited funds. In 2001
and 2002, respectively, three and seventeen additional PUA’s were taken out by the
Group. The PUA's have fixed interest rates between 1.41% and 6.77% and mature be-
tween 2010 and 2050. All interest rate risk is hedged to a one- or three-month Libor
benchmark.

During 2001, the Group issued two private placements in Switzerland. The first private
placement was issued in June in the amount of CHF 100 million and is due in 2008
with a coupon of 3.60%. In September, an additional private placement of CHF 100 mil-
lion was issued maturing in 2006 with a coupon of 3.25%.

In June 2001, the Group issued under the European Medium Term Note (EMTN) pro-
gramme a straight bond totalling CHF 150 million with a coupon of 4% and a 14-year
maturity. In August 2001, an additional GBP 150 million was issued under the EMTN
programme with a maturity of 4 years and a coupon of 5.625%.

In October 2001, the Group issued USD 10 miillion of Index Linked Notes. The notes

have a maturity of 12 years and interest payments based on the three-month Libor as
well as an index-related component.
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Notes to the Group financial statements

In November 2001, concurrent with its global equity offering, the Group issued USD

1 150 million of subordinated convertible bonds. The bonds have a maturity of 20 years
and a fixed coupon of 3.25% during the first 10 years, which will be reset to a floating
six-month Libor plus 180 basis points for the last 10 years. Up to and including 21 No-
vember 2011, the bonds can be converted into Swiss Re shares at g price of CHF 207.19
per share with a fixed USD exchange rate of 1.66471. The bonds have been issued by the
Group and are uncanditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a subordinated level.

In 2002, the Group issued under the EMTN programme index-linked notes. In April,
EUR 24 million was issued with a three-year maturity and an index-linked coupon.
In June 2002, EUR 10 million was issued with an index-linked coupon, maturing in 2009.

In April 2002, the Group privately placed GBP 100 million of preference shares in the
United Kingdom. These shares are redeemable, non-voting and were issued with a cu-
mulative fixed rate dividend of 4.84% (payable semi-annually) and have a final redemp-
tion date in 2006.

In June 2002, the Group issued USD 255 million of insurance-linked securities which
provide for Swiss Re to receive payments if specified large natural catastrophe events
occur. USD 209 million of these securities was placed with institutional investors at
31 December 2002 with an average interest rate of three-month Libor + 5.01% matur-
ing in 20086.

At 31 December 2002, the Group reclassified USD 200 million and USD 70 million of
Insurance-linked Placements.
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7. Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses

The Group's obligation for claims payments and claims settlement charges also includes
obligations for long-latent injury claims arising out of policies written prior to 1985, in
particular in the area of US asbestos and environmental liability.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserve balances for asbestos, enviran-
mental and other long-latent liability claims and claim adjustment expenses for the
periods presented is as follows:

CHF millions 2001 2002
Balance as of 1 January 3280 3077
S S B e e
Net claims reserve 2861 2757
R ‘ o e S BT
Clamspaid o ....7298 =213
‘Effect of foreign currency translation - 78 ) -436
i ofacqwsmons DY RS s S
Net claims reserve SR L2757 2118
F{'e'i'hé'ur'ance”re‘coverablé o - ‘ - 320 260
Balance as of 31 December 3077 2378

The Group maintains an active commutation strategy to reduce exposure, although the
number and amount of commutations was tower in 2002 compared to 2001. Paid
claims have declined in 2002 versus 2001 due to the effect of this reduction. When
commutation payments are made, the traditional “survival ratio” is artificially reduced by
premature payments, which does not necessarily imply a reduction in reserve adequacy.

The Group provisions are the undiscounted value of potential ultimate claims payments
and claims settlement charges, less amounts paid to date.

Provisions for long-latent injury claims outstanding on 31 December 2002 reflect the esti-
mated future trend of claims payments and claims settlement charges. Due to the inherent
uncertainties and assumptions on which these estimates are based, however, the Group
cannot exclude the need to make further additions to these provisions in the future.

8. Personnel expenses

CHF millions 2001 2002
Wagesand salaries et 0 20T 1508
Employee benefits 28T 228

The Group had 8 287 employees at 31 December 2002, compared to 8 623 at
31 December 2001. The decrease is mainly due to disposals and to reorganisation in
the Americas.
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Share data

Own shares
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9. Shareholders’ equity

All of the Group's reinsurance companies prepare statutory financial statements based
on local laws and regulations. Most jurisdictions require reinsurers to maintain a mini-
mum amount of capital in excess of a statutory definition of net assets or maintain cer-
tain minimum capital and surplus levels. in addition. some jurisdictions place certain
restrictions on amounts that may be loaned or transferred to the parent company. The
Group'’s ability to pay dividends may be restricted by these requirements.

CHF millions (except share data) 2001 2002
Basic earnings/losses per share

InQYQ_r_ne/wlvo.és available to common shares vvvvv . —165» ‘ S —91”
Weighted average common shares outstandmg - 288 236 AN 319 335 ?‘72
Netincome/loss per shareinCHF 067 -0.29

Dnﬂuted eammgs/ﬂosses per shalre
Income/loss available to common shares assummg

~debt conversion and exercise of options - —-18 -8
Welghted average cornmon shares outstandmg - 288 236 721 310335772
Netincome/loss per sharein CHF 705 . . .-Cz28

The effects of debt conversion have not been included in the 2001 and 2002 earnings/
losses per share. The effect, in both years, of converting the debt to 9 236 800 shares,
was anti-dilutive, In addition, 585 886 and 313 766 employee options have not been
included in the 2001 and 2002 earnings/losses per share, respectively, as they were
anti-dilutive.

The following own shares of Swiss Re Zurich are held by the Group:

Number
of registered CHF
2001 shares millions
Ownsharesheldas of T Januaryatcost 1499080 249
Purchases 654832 98
Sales I . TR ..._842140“.,”‘ 7136
Realised gains 7
Own shares held as of 31 December at cost 1311772 218
Own shares held as of 31 December at market value 1311772 220
Number
of registered CHF
2002 shares millions
Own shares held as of 1 January atcost e MsmTTZ 218
Purchases 512733 76
Sales T ... T999BAT -7
Reahsed \osses -81
Own shares held as of 31 December at cost 824 664 75
Own shares held as of 31 December at market value 824 664 75
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10. Income taxes

The Group is generally subject to corporate income taxes based on the taxable net
income in various jurisdictions in which the Group operates. The components of the

income tax charge were:

CHF millions 200 2002
Currenttaxes L3 e
Deferred taxes 58 -35
Income tax expense 61 127
The components of deferred income taxes were as follows:

CHF miliions 2001 2002
Deferred tax assets .

Tech prov‘i‘sions” BTOOPROS s ey
Uneaisediossesonmesrens U seaem
CGeftonossceryowecs ius 1

Other 1693 1872
Gross deferred tax assets 5449 5562

Valuation allowance -3M -434
Total 5138 5128
Deferred tax liabilities
. Presentvalue of future profis o 2633 2115

Deferredscguisitioncosts o 778 415
. Technicalprovisions ....1088 1558
 Unrealised gains on investments . 378 527

Other ' 1790 1935
Total 6637 6 551
Deferred income taxes 1499 1423

As of 31 Dacember 2002, the Group had CHF 3 732 million of domestic and

CHF 2 641 million of foreign net operating tax loss carryforwards, expiring as follows:

CHF 34 million in 2003, CHF 2 million in 2004, CHF 417 million in 2007 and
CHF 5 920 million after 2008. The Group also had capital loss carryforwards of

CHF 7 million, expiring as follows: CHF 3 million in 2004, CHF 2 million in 2005 and

CHF 2 million in 2006.

Income taxes paid in 2001 and 2002 were CHF 338 million and CHF 23 million,

respectively.
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Defined benefit pension plans and
post-retirement benefits

11. Benefit plans

The Group sponsors various funded defined benefit pension plans covering the
majority of its worldwide operations. Employer contributions to the plans are charged to
income on a basis which recognises the costs of pensions over the expectedservice
lives of employees covered by the plans. The Group's funding policy for these plans is to
contribute annually at a rate that is intended to maintain a level percentage of compen-
sation for the employees covered. A full valuation is prepared at least every three years.

The Group also provides certain health-care and life insurance benefits for retired
employees and their dependants. Employees become eligible for these benefits when
they become eligible for pension benefits.

Pension benefits

Other benefits

CHF miltions 2001 2002 2001 2002
Benefit obligation as of 1 January 2782 2753 425 480
Service cost N 122138 37 40
Interest cost 139 133 20 23
Amendments -5 ~3b -4
Actuaral gains/losses Cse 8s G777 e
Benefitspaid -2 -e8 -8 -13
Acquisitions/disposals ~257 N 59 |
Reclassification 137 - -4
'Foreign currévn'cytranslati'br.w adjustmenfé . —4 ' -118 =1 -28
Benefit obligation as of 31 December 27863 3034 480 523
Fair value of plan assets as of 1 January 3474 2843
Actual return on plan assets ~231 283 S
Company contributio 37w 8 13
devertspus I B
Acquisitions/disposals -323 e
Reclassification o 98
Foreign éurrencvtrahslation adjustrhems -2 —99
Fair value of plan assets as

of 31 December 2843 2610
Reconciliation of balance sheet B ,
Funded status ‘ 80 -424 -480 -523
Unvecoanised osses/gans 20 mo e s
Unrecognised prior service cost B3 48 60 -56
Unrecognised transition obligation/asset -87 -62 )
‘Additional minimum liability, gross ~~~ -106
MNet amount recognised 176 166 -480 -491
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consist of ‘
Prepaid benefitcost 389 436
Accrued benefit liability =213 =270 ~480 -491
Net amount recognised 176 166 -480 -491

32

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002




Defined contribution pension plans

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

Pension benefits

Other benefits

CHF millions 2001 2002 2001 2002
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost

_{net of participant contributions) 122 i 37 40
nerestcost ;891820 23
Expected return on assets =197 -174
rmortiation of. L . -
 Netgain/loss e 2

Prior service cost 6 4 =1 -5

‘ T“ra‘hé‘i‘tio‘nvdbl'i'gation/assetv U B 2.
Total 34 70 57 60
Effect of settlement, curtailment and

termination -2 -4

Net periodic benefit cost 34 68 57 56
Weighted average assumptions atyearend S
Discount rate in % .50 48 81 A7
Expected retur on plan assets n % 5.6 58 ...
e compensatlomncreasem% e 30 e
‘f\:/lr‘a‘d‘i‘c‘a‘l tr‘eh'd »—‘ivnitial rate i‘n%' v - 75 74
Medical trend — ultimate rate in % 4.7 45

Assumed health-care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported
for the health-care plans. A cne-percentage-point change in assumed health-care cost
trend rates would have had the following effects for 2002:

CHF millions

1 percentage

point increase

1 percentage
point decrease

E_ffept on total of service and interest cost components o
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligetion

84

12
~66

The Group sponsors a number of defined contribution plans to which employees and
the Group make contributions. The accumulated balances are paid as a lump sum at
the earlier of retirement, termination, disability or death. The amount expensed in 2001
and in 2002 was CHF 20 million and CHF 20 million, respectively. One of the defined
contribution plans was reclassified as a defined benefit plan in 2002.
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Fixed option plans
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12. Stock compensation plans

As of 31 December 20071 and 2002, the Group had the stock-based compensation
plans described below.

Under the fixed option plan, the Group may grant options for a certain number of
Swiss Re shares to members of the Executive Board and to certain members of
management each year. Under the plan, the exercise price of each option equals the
market price of the shares on the date of the grant. Options issued vest at the end

of the fourth year and have a maximum life of ten years.

A summary of the activity of the Group's fixed stock option plan is as follows:

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise 2001 exercise 2002
price in CHF shares price in CHF shares
Outstanding. T Janvery 129 3936100 155 5158310
Optionsgranted 185 1937660 144 1885513
Optionsexercised 78  -534310 76  -186450
Options forfeited 160 -181 140 160 -180 115
QOutstanding, 31 December 155 5158 310 154 6777 258
Exercsable, 31 December 307280 637140

Weighted average fair value of options

granted during the yearpershare 43 36 .

The following table summarises the status of fixed stock options outstanding as
of 31 December 2002:

Range of Weighted average Weighted average

exercise remammg contrac- exercise

price in CHF Number of options tual life in years price in CHF
...B0-74 125040 38 69

..... 128-140 ... 1450860 T3 e
144-187 5201 358 8.0 163
60-187 6777258 7.8 154

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using & binomial
option-pricing model, with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants
in 2001 and 2002, respectively: dividend yield of 2.0% and 2.3%; expected volatility of
231% and 25.1%; risk-free interest rate of 3.4% and 3.4%; expected life of 5.75 years
and 6.0 years.

From the annual option plans 1985-2002, an aggregate of 1 547 600 options to

purchase the same number of shares were held by members of the Executive Board, as
of 31 December 2002.
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The Group does not recognise compensation expense for these options. If compensation
expense for the options had been recognised, the Group's net income/loss and earnings/
losses per share would approximate the pro-forma amounts in the following table:

CHF millions 2001 2002
Netincome/loss asreported o...T18s e

Less: total stock-based employee compensation expenses S

... determined under the fair value method, net of refated tax effects =29 =37

Proformanetincome/foss . 7194 =128

.E..a.r.”mgs/'(??sespef‘Sha‘fe‘v ) SO _ e

. Besic ~ as reported v e 0BT 7029
Besc—proforma o 067 -041
. Diluted ~ as reported .. 0BT =029
Divted—proforma o -067 -0

The employee compensation expense reflects the four-year vesting period of options.
Previously the cost of options was recognised in full in the year of grant.

Swiss Re's employee participation plan consists of a savings scheme lasting two or three
years. Employees combine regular savings with the purchase of either actual or tracking
options. Swiss Re contributes to the employee savings.

At maturity, the employee either receives shares or cash equal to the accumulated
savings balance, or the employee may elect to exercise the options.

In 2001 and 2002, 452 660 and 361 758 options, respectively, were issued to
employees and the Group contributed CHF 6 million and CHF 14 million, respectively,
to the plan.

13. Commitments and contingent liabilities

As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, the Group had outstanding guarantees of
CHF 5 792 million and CHF 4 994 million, respectively.

At 31 December 2002, CHF 3 215 million related to guarantees on all present and
future obligations in respect of Repurchase Agreements or Global Master Securities
Lending Agreements. CHF 1 779 million related to guarantees that have been issued
to third parties in respect of obligations of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

As a participant in limited investment partnerships, the Group commits itself to making
available certain amounts of investment funding, callable by the partnerships for periods
of up 10 10 years. The total commitments remaining uncalled as of 31 December 2001
and 2002 were CHF 1 176 million and CHF 1 104 million, respectively.

As part of its regular business, the Group makes capital (equity, debt) available to
clients, contingent on the occurrence of a defined event.
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13. Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

11 September 2001
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The Group had five and four guarantees as of 31 December 2001 and 2002, respec-
tively, which primarily indemnify the purchasers of former Group entities for possible run-
off losses or claims for pending litigation.

The Group enters into a number of guarantees, limited by the underlying business, with
purchasers of former Group entities, regulators and cothers in the ordinary course of business.

As part of its normal business operations, the Group enters into a number of agreements
for the leasing of premises. Such agreements, which are operating leases, total the fol-
lowing obligations for the next five years and thereafter:

As of 31 December 2002 CHF millions
2008 _ | 45
2004 e . 41
27005 | . o o - TP TP PP P 37
2006 | | R
2007 B 2
After 2007 132
Total 312

The corresponding lease expenses incurred in 2001 and 2002 were CHF 45 million
and CHF 43 million, respectively.

In the normal course of business operations, the Group is involved in various claims,
lawsuits and regulatory matters. In the opinion of management, the disposition of
these or any other legal matters, except as disclosed in this note, is not expected to have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

The Group directly underwrote approximately 25% of the excess coverage for the USD
3.5 billion in first party insurance obtained by the lessees of the World Trade Center
complex.

Following the 11 September terrorist attack, the Group initiated litigation against the
lessees, its tenders and the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York to obtain a judicial declaration
of its rights and obligations with respect to all parties in interest. That action is captioned
SR international Business Insurance Ltd. v. World Trade Center Properties, LLC, Case No.
071 CV 39297 (/SM). The defendants have filed counterclaims and joined other insurers
1o the lawsuit.

The lessees contend that the destruction of the World Trade Center constitutes more
than one occurrence under the coverage that the Group agreed to provide. A trial is likely
to be held in the autumn of 2003. If judgement is granted in favour of the insured,
then this could have a material impact on the Group’s results of operations or statement
of financial position.
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In 2002, a dispute arose between the Group and Lincoln National Corporation {Lincoln)
regarding amounts due resulting from the preparation of closing financial statements for
the business acquired from Lincoln. The Group initiated legal action to compel arbitration
of the disputes. In October 2002, the parties agreed to settle the dispute.

Under the terms of the settlement, Lincoln paid the Group USD 295 million in cash.
The payment satisfied the Group’s demand for additional assets to support the closing
balance-sheet liabilities delivered by Lincoln and extinguished Lincoln’s obligation to
indemnify the Group for adverse development on certain exited lines of business. The
payment resulted in a reduction in the effective purchase price of Lincoln Re.

14. Assets under management

The Group acts as manager for certain pooled funds that operate similarly to mutual
funds. As of 31 December 2001 and 2002, net third-party assets under management
at market value were CHF 60 040 million and CHF 54 084 million, respectively.




Notes to the Group financial statements

15. Information on business segments

The Group provides reinsurance and financial services throughout the world, through
three business groups, which are determined by the organisational structure. These are
the Property & Casualty Business Group; the Life & Health Business Group, which in-
cludes life, health and disability reinsurance; and the Financial Services Business Group,
which includes the Asset Management, Advisory & Capital Markets, Credit Solutions and
Risk Solutions business units. The Carporate Centre provides direction and Group-wide
support to the business groups.

The main expenses excluded from the measurement of segments are goodwill
amortisation, interest expenses, indirect taxes and income taxes.

Net investment income and realised gains/losses are allocated to the business groups
based on the net investment income and realised gains of the legal entities that are oper-
ated by these business groups. Where one entity is utilised by two or more business
groups, the investment income and realised gains are allocated to these business groups
using technical reserves and other information as a key for the allocation. The Financial
Services Business Group provides investment management services to the other busi-
ness groups, and includes the fees charged in investment income. The fees are based on
service contracts.

The Property & Casualty Business Group ceased underwriting credit, surety and avia-
tion business during 2001. The Financia! Services Business Group is now solely respon-
sible for underwriting these lines of business. Contracts written before this change will
continue to be managed by the business group that underwrote them until expiry, as
will the run-off from the related claims liabilities. Accordingly, the prior periods have not
been restated.

The Financial Services Business Group presents certain income statement itemsin a
different format to the Group. These items are reclassified to the Group income state-
ment format in the reconciliation column. The main reclassifications are to allocate cer-
tain fee income from fees and commissions and trading revenues to net investment
income and certain investment expenseas from other operating costs and expenses to net
investment income. Certain trading revenues have also been allocated to net realised
investment gains. The reclassifications do not affect operating income. 2001 has been
restated accordingly.
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a) Business group results

2001
CHF miltions

Property &
Casualty

Life &
Health

Financial
Services

Corporate
Centre

Other

Reconcili-
ation

Total

Revenues
Premnums earned

Net mvestment income
Net reallsed mvestment gams

ing revenues

Fees commissions and other revenues

13846  -

1712

3388

8922

515

24
o1

218

L

4

567

54

48
—54

25219
5765
2665

456

Total revenues

Expenses

Claims and claim adjustment expenses;

life and health benefits o
_Acqwsmon costs o
Amortisation of goodwnl

Other operating costs and expenses

17 413

- -3371

12825

- —8502

2077

3801

-3241
-225

-450

3656

-300

o3
-682

34104

Total expenses

-17132

=11 143

-4 733

-450

-10560

Operating income/loss

281

1682

-932

-450

-685

2002
CHF millions

Property &
Casualty

Life &
Health

Financial
Services

Corporate
Centre

Other

Reconcili-
ation

Total

Revenues

Premmms earned
Net investment income
Net reallsed investment galns/losses

Tradmg revenues

Fees, commissions and other revenues

15058
1533
e

ns
3476
28 .

522

68
288

20

456

2724
-93

204

29058
5507
-515.

car

-188

365

Total revenues

Expenses

Claims and claim adjustment expenses:

life and health beneflts

Acqunsmon costs

Amort«sat\on of goodw;ll
Other operating costs and expenses

156981

~115687

-3345

-740

14723

oleosa

72582

3580

—2898

_307.v“““...‘...‘

-437

425

730

~594

-294

34415

Total expenses

-16672

-13407

-4213

-437

-944

294

Operating income/loss

308

1316

-633

~-437

-519
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15. Information on business segments (continued)
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b} Supplementary income statement information

Premiums, claims and claim adjustment expenses and acquisition costs are reported net
of retrocession in the Group’s income statement. Gross, retroceded and net amounts for

these items were as follows:

2001 Property & Life & Financial
CHF millicns Casualty Health Services Total
Premiums |

Premivums written, gross 15795 9657 v 3019 ”‘28'4‘71'

Premiums written, retro -1378 -728 -549 -2655
Premiums written net 14417 8929 2470 25818

Change in unearned premiums, gross e79 7. 89 BT

Change in unearned premiums, retro 8 -88 -80
'Chvangévih' unéérned pvre'miumvs,'net o v v;éﬂ o —”7' » —W9 o —597
Premiums earned 13846 8922 2451 25219
Claims »

Claims paid, gross -9506  -7537 1840 -18683
. Claimspaidretro 1296 6786 69 2042
Claims paid, net -8211 -6859 —1571 -168641

Clai'ms and claim adestmenf expénses; v v . .

_life and health benefits, gross ~-5846 -1634 -2568 -10048

Claims and claim adjustment expenses;

life and health benefits, retro 380 -9 69 440
Claifﬁs aﬁd. c\éim admstmentve‘xpenvées: - o h o »

life and health benefits, net -5466 —-1643 -2499 -9608
Chénge in equalisation reserves 622 h - 829 1 451...
Claims and claim adjustment expenses;

life and health benefits -130566 -8b602 -3241 -24798
Acquisition costs B

Acqqiswtion costs, gross v —_3 632_ "2 216 —338 —6 186

Acquisition costs, retro 261 139 128 528
Acquisition costs, net -3371 -2077 -210 -5658
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2002 Property & Life & Financial
CHF millions Casualty Heaith Services Total
Premiums written, gross 17310 12314 3061 32685
Premiums written, retro - 486 -1 O7O 189 —2 715‘
Premiums written, net 15824 11244 2902 29970
Change in unearned premlums gross - —643»__ 32‘ —54‘““‘ —665_
Change in unearned premiums, retro =122 -1 —124 —247
Change in unearned premiums, net -765 31 - -178 -912
Premiums earned 15059 11275 2724 29058
Claxms pawd gross ) ) _—11 533‘_ —8918 ~2 247 v—22 698”
- Claims paid, retro » 911 964 132” 2007
Claims paid. net ...710622 7934 -2115 20691
Claims and cla|m adJustrnent expenses
_lfe and health benefits, aross . -831 -2088 =797 -3716
Clalms and claim adjustment expenses ‘ ‘ ‘
... ife and health benefits, retro 134 42 14 =182
Clalms and claim adjustment expenses
life and health benefits, net -965 -2130  -783 -3878
Change in equahsatlon reserves S
Claims and claim adjustment expenses;
life and health benefits -11587 -10084 -2898 -24569
Acquisition costs e
. Acquisition costs, gross 3599 2782 310 -6691
Acquisition costs, retro 254 200 17 471
Acquisition costs, net -3345 -2582 -293 -6220
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15. Information on business segments (continued)

¢) Supplementary balance sheet information

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses, liabilities for life and health policy bene-
fits and unearned premiums are reported gross in the Group’s balance sheet. Gross and
retroceded amounts for these and other items were as follows:

2001 Property & Life & Financial
CHF millions Casualty Health Services Total
Assets SOOI
Reinsurance recoverable

Reinsurance recoverable on

paid and unpaid claims . 3655 1298 584 5537

Reinsurance recoverable on life

and health policy benefits 2317 2317
Total 3655 3615 584 7854
Deferred acquisition costs 958 2674 204 3836
Prepaid reinsurance premiums? 224 2 446 672
Deferred expense on retroactive reinsurance’ 1246 1136 2382
Liabilities
Provisions for profit commissions? 611 229 23 863
Unpaid claims and dlaim adjustment expenses

Unpaid claims and claim

adjustmentexpenses 46011 10825 10397 67233

Equalisation reserves 1385
Total 68618
Life and health policy benefits 41083 287 41370
Separate-account liabilities® 1943 1943
Unearned premiums 4300 247 18562 6389

* These balances are included in other assets
2 These balances are included in reinsurance balances payable.
3 These balances are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities,
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2002 Property & Life & Financial
CHF miltions Casualty Health Services Total
ASSetS
Reinsurance recoverable
Reinsurance recoverable on
. paidand unpaidclaims 3104 1075 529 4708
Reinsurance recoverable on life
and health policy benefits 1735 1735
Total 3104 2810 529 6443
Deferred acquisition costs 987 2996 159 4142
Prepaid reinsurance premiums' 96 300 396
Deferred expense on retroactive reinsurance’ 574 867 1441
Liabilities OSSOSO
Provisions for profit commissions? 528 207 760 1495
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
Unpaid claims and claim
.. adjustmentexpenses 89826 11975 9495 61296
Equalisation reserves 1356
Total 62652
Life and health policy benefits 37 269 37268
Separate-account liabilities® 1799 1798
Unearned premiums 4521 197 2036 6754
! These balances are included in other assets.
2 These balances are included in reinsurance balances payable
3 These balances are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities.
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15. Information on business segments (continued)

Notes to the Group financial statements

d) Property & Casuaity Business Group — by line of business

2001
CHF millions Property Liability Mator Accident Cther lines Total
Revenues R B e O
Premiums earned 4675 2840 2989 1077 ..22685 13846
Expenses e e e
Claims and claim adjustment expenses -5013 -2685 -2 406 - —690 -2261 -13065
Acquisitioncosts R i AT -702 7287 =578 —3371
Other operating costs and expenses m233 . ~156 ~129 68 .7120 708
Underwriting result -1688 -713 -248 58 -695 -3286
Claims ratioin % 107, 94 80 64 100 95
Expenseratioin% 29 sl . 28 L 1) .29
Combined ratio in % 136 126 108 95 13 124
2002

CHF millions Praperty Liabitity Motor Accident Other lines Tota!
Revenues e
Premiums earned 5062 3801 2745 ‘i 2290 15089
Expenses e . I . e
Claims and claim adjustment expenses —3576 -2987 -2266 —845 -1913  -11587
Acquisitioncosts -1022 . 887 Tb81 7266 7609 73345
(Other operating costs and expenses 7290 . Tes T8 762 715 7740
Underwriting result 164 -238 -200 -2 -337 -613
Claims ratioin % 71 78 82 72 84 77
Expenseratioin% 26 28 25 28 s 27
Combined ratio in % 97 106 107 100 15 104
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e) Life & Health Business Group

2001
CHF millions Life Health Total
Pemumsearned 6965 1957 8922
N . B
Operating revenues ... .%708 2602 12310
Net realised mvestment ganns 292 223 515
Total revenues 10000 2825 12825
Expenses )
Claims and elalm ad;ustment expenses‘; T
~lifeand health benefts ~ -6bb4  -1948  -85H02
Acqu_|_s|t|on costs ‘ 1852 4256 —2 O77.
Oth”er operating costs and expenses o o o —427 o —137. ‘ —564‘
Total expenses -8633 -2510 -11143
Operating income 1367 315 1682
Operating result, excluding

net realised investment gains 1075 92 1167
Management expense ratio in % o - 44 53 4.8
2002
CHF millions Life Health Total
Revenues B N . e e P N . N . .
Premiums eamed ' - 8968 2307 11275
N o Seos B Ve
Operating revenues ‘ o n77e 2975 14751
Net realised investment galns/losses . o - 41 o —69 —28
Total revenues 11 817 2906 14723
Expenses » )
Claims and c\alm adjustment expenses; “““““

ifeand health benefits . =8334 1750  -10084
Acquisition costs N -1933 -649  -2582
Other operating costs and expenses S —576 ''''''' —166 —741 »
Total expenses -10842 -2565 -13407
Operating income 975 341 1316
Operating result, excluding

net realised investment gains/losses 934 410 1344
Management expense ratio in % N o 49 5 6‘ 50

Certain business which provides principally critical iliness benefits has been reclassified
from Life to Health. Prior period amounts have been restated to reflect this change.
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15. Information on business segments (continued)

f) Financial Services Business Group — by business unit

2001
CHF miliions

Risk
Solutions

Credit
Solutions’

Advisory &

Capital Markets

Asset
Management

Total

Gross revenues
Premiums earned
Net investment income

Net realised investment gains/losses

Trading revenues ‘
Fees and commissions

342

62

206

185 6
ol

Total gross revenues

Expenses

Claims and claim adjustment expenses

Acquisition costs

149

399

;1.5.. s

Grossmargin
Operating costs

184

- -280

-387

399

Operating income/loss

-146

2002
CHF millions

Risk
Solutions

Credit
Solutions’

Advisory &
Capital Markets

Asset
Management

Total

Gross revenues

Premiums earned

Netinvestmentincome R
Net realised investment gains/losses .

Trading revenues

Fees and commissions

.380

7290

740

62

4

e

173

253

Total gross revenues
Expenses

Acquisition costs

2081

-56

Claims and claim adjustmentexpenses 72012

776

402

-14

321

~237

o289

-307

Gross margin

Operating costs

13

Clieg

-347

e

388

321

.. 318
-1008

Operating income/loss

-175

~-434

-4

-20

-633

" Creditin 2001 included the results of NCM, the credit insurer which the Group sold as of 31 December 2001. The consideration included an equity share in the newly formed Gerling NCM company.

The Advisory & Capital Markets Business Unit provides marketing services to the Risk Solutions and Credit Solutions business units, and
includes the fees charged in fees and commissions. The Asset Management Business Unit provides investment management services
to other business units, and includes the fees charged in fees and commissions.

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002




g) Geographic gross premiums written

CHF millions 2001 2002
United States ; ‘ ] 11278 16422
UntedKingdom 3682 3643
Germany 1 889 1795
Switzerland ' . h 1321 1701
Cemada 770 906
Al ... %97 866
e N N Tt S 1
Netherlands 1559 675
Other 6161 5942
Total 28 471 32685

h) Gross premiums written by line of business

CHF millions 2001 2002
Property 6260 6866
N T S 1
Accident 1248 1266
0 S F
- o
o o e O
. . S ]
Other lines ‘ N ‘ h . 136 34

Total non-life 18783 20371

Total life/health 9688 12314

Total 28471 32685
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Notes to the Group financial statements

Method of consolidation:

full

e equity

Joint venture from accounting view

16. Subsidiaries and equity investees

Share capital Affiliation in % Method of
{CHF millions)  as 0f 31.12.2002  consolidation

Europe

Switzerland

Diax Holding

European Reinsurance Company of Zurich
Schweiz Versicherung

Swiss Re Asset Management (Switzerland) AG
Swiss Re Partnership Holding AG

Xenum Finance AG

Germany

Gerling NCM Credit and Finance AG
Swiss Re Asset Management KAG mbH
Swiss Re Germany AG

Swiss Re Germany Holding AG

United Kingdom

Banian Investments UK Ltd

Cyreniac Investments (UK} Ltd

Dex Hold Ltd

European Credit and Guarantee Insurance PCC Ltd
Fox-Pitt, Kelton Group Ltd and group companies
Palatine Insurance Company Ltd

Princess Management & Insurance Ltd

SR Delta Investments (UK) Ltd

SR International Business Insurance Company Ltd
Swiss Re (UK) House Ltd

Swiss Re Capital Markets Ltd

Swiss Re Financial Services Ltd

Swiss Re GB Plc

Swiss Re Investment Management Ltd

Swiss Re Life & Health UK Ltd

Swiss Re Services Ltd

Swiss Re Specialised Investments Holdings (UK) Ltd
Swiss Reinsurance Company UK Ltd

The Mercantile & General Re Insurance Company Ltd

Ireland

Pegasus Strategic Investment Company Plc
Swiss Re International Treasury (Ireland) Ltd
Swiss Re Ireland Ltd

Swiss Re Life & Health (Ireland) Ltd

Italy
Swiss Re Italia SpA

286 2550 e
312 100 f
7 100 f
15 100 f
0 100 f

1 4250 e
73 25 e
4 100 f
65 100 f
73 100 f
668 100 f
1336 100 f
0 100 f

9 100 f

0 100 f
17 100 f
3 48.99 e
14 100 f
274 100 f
0 100 f
83 100 f
16 100 f
1422 100 f
0 100 f
423 100 f
0 100 f

2 100 f
933 100 f
31 100 f
299 100 f
0 100 f
122 100 f
1 100 f
145 100 f
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Share capital Affiliation in % Method of
(CHF millions)  asof 31.12.2002  consolidation
Luxembourg
Special Risk Insurance and Reinsurance Luxembourg SA 109 18.18> e
Swiss Re Management (Luxembourg) SA 12 100 f
Swiss Re Treasury (Luxembourg) SA 12 100 f
Netherlands
Algemene Levensherverzekering Maatschappij NV 7 100 f
Pension Factory NV 1 80 f
Swiss Re Life & Health Nederland NV 5 100 f
Swiss Re Nederland Holding BV 1 100 i
Norway
Swiss Re Norway 12 100 f
France
Frasecur Société d'Investissement & Capital Variable 0 99.83 f
Hungary
Swiss Re Treasury {(Hungary) Ltd 0 100 f
North America
Barbados
Atlantic International Reinsurance Company Ltd 6 100 f
European Finance Reinsurance Company Ltd 7 100 f
European International Holding Company Ltd 226 100 f
European International Reinsurance Company Ltd 220 100 f
Gasper Funding Corporation 0 100 f
Joneswood Reinsurance Company Ltd 43 100 f
Stockwood Reinsurance Company, Ltd 1 100 f
Bermuda
znglewood Ltd 0 100 f
FFields Holding Company Ltd 14 100 f
Life Re International, Ltd 0 100 f
Parkwood Reinsurance Company Ltd 27 100 f
Swiss Re Capital Management (Bermuda) Ltd 0 100 f
SwissRe Finance (Bermuda) Ltd 0 100 f
SwissRe Investments (Bermuda) Ltd 0 100 f
Canada
Swiss Re Life & Health Canada 99 100 f
Swiss Reinsurance Company Canada 9 100 f
SwissRe Holdings {Canada) Inc 98 100 f
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16. Subsidiaries and equity investees (continued)

Viethod of consoclidation:

full

e equity

Joint venture from accounting view

Share capital

Affitiation in %

Method of

(CHF millions}  asof 31.12.2002  consolidation
Grand Cayman
Ampersand Investments (UK) Ltd 1336 100 f
Argonaut Ltd 0 100 f
Dunstanburgh Finance (Cayman) Ltd 0 100 f
Swiss Re Funding (UK) Ltd o] 100 f
Swiss Re Strategic Investments (UK) Ltd 6] 100 f
United States
Conning Corpoeration and group companies 0 100 f
Facility Insurance Corporation 7 100 f
Facility insurance Holding Corporation 0 100 f
Fort Wayne Health & Casualty Insurance Company 10 100 f
Life Re Capital Trust | 4 100 f
Life Re Capital Trust Il 6 100 f
Lincoln National Reassurance Company 4 100 f
North American Capacity Insurance Company 6 100 f
North American Elite Insurance Company 5 100 f
North American Specialty Insurance Company 17 100 f
Old Fort Insurance Company, Ltd 1 100 f
Reassure America Life Insurance Company 3 100 f
Southwestern Life Insurance Company 4 100 f
Swiss Re America Holding Corporation 0 100 f
Swiss Re Asset Management (Americas) Inc bl 100 f
Swiss Re Atrium Corporation 1 100 f
Swiss Re Capital Markets Corporation 7 100 f
Swiss Re Capital Partners (US) Inc 0 100 f
Swiss Re Financial Products Corporation 0 100 f
Swiss Re Financial Services Corporation 0 100 f
Swiss Re Life & Health America Holding Company 0 100 f
Swiss Re Life & Health America Inc 6 100 f
Swiss Re Management Corporation 0 100 f
Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation 8 100 f
Underwriters Re Group, Inc 0 100 f
Washington International Insurance Company 8] 100 f
Latin America
Mexico
Swiss Re México SA 132 100 f
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Share capital
{CHF millions}

Affiliation in %
asof 31.12.2002

Method of
cansolidation

Australia

Swiss Re Asset Management (Australia) Ltd 0 100 f
Swiss Re Australia Ltd 16 100 f
Swiss Re Life & Health Australia Ltd 1 100 f
The Mercantile and General Reinsurance

Company of Australia Ltd 10 100 f
Africa
South Africa
Swiss Re Asset Management (SA) Ltd 0 100 f
Swiss Re Life & Health Southern Africa Ltd 0 100 f
Swiss Re Southern Africa Ltd 2 100 f
Asia
Hong Kong, China
Swiss Re Asset Management {Asia) Ltd 0 100 f
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Notes to the Group financial statements

17. Restructuring provision

The Property & Casualty Business Group paid CHF 17 million in redundancy benefits
to employees. These costs related to the termination of certain functions in Italy
following the conversion of the operating company into a branch office. Other charges
of CHF 3 million were incurred in connection with this change. Both amounts were
charged against the liability held for this purpose at 31 December 2001.

During 2007 the Group established a restructuring provision of CHF 70 million as part
of the purchase of the reinsurance operations of Lincoln National Corporation. This
did not result in a charge to net income. During 2002 CHF 32 million of this provision
was utilised reflecting severance and other personnel-related costs.

Following the creation of the Financial Services Business Group, a restructuring provision
of CHF 75 million was established in 2001 in respect of redundancy costs and lease
abandonment. During 2002 it was determined that the provision for lease abandonment
was not sufficient and this was increased by CHF 38 million. Also during 2002 expenses
of CHF 60 million in respect of the lease abandonment were incurred, as were redun-
dancy costs of CHF 14 million, which were charged against the restructuring provision.

During December 2002 the Financial Services Business Group announced that Swiss
Re Capital Partner’s business activities would be restructured. The business group estab-
lished a provision of CHF 23 million. The provision was established to provide for sever-
ance and other personnel-related costs, and related asset charges.

2002 Property & Life & Financial

CHF millions Casualty Health Services Total
Restructuring provision . B R
Balance as of 1 Ja”QaTY .v , A Y A S AC I 181
Increase in provision . B 62 ...82
Costs incurred ) - -20 =32 =74 -126
Effect of foreign curréncy translation N . -8 -1 -19
Balance as of 31 December 16 30 52 g8
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Report of the Group auditors

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

To the Annual General Meeting of
Swiss Reinsurance Company
Zurich

As auditors of the Group, we have audited the consolidated financial statements
(income statement, balance sheet, statement of shareholders” equity, statement of com-
prehensive income, statement of cash flow and notes to the Group financial state-
ments/ pages 3 to 52} of Swiss Re Group for the year ended 31 December 2002,

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consoclidated financial statements
based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning profes-
sional qualification and independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the
Swiss profession and with the International Standards on Auditing, which require that an
audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the con-
solidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. We have examined
on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant
estimates made and the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We be-
lieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with the
Swiss GAAP FER and comply with Swiss law.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you
be approved.
PricewaterhouseCoopers AG
2
ML NS ' 2

Michael P. Nelligan Ray J.Kunz

Zurich, 26 March 2003
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Annual report
Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Reinsurance and holding company

Financial year 2002

Accounting policy

Result from technical and
deposit account

Investments

Liabilities from technical account

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich, performs a dual role within the Swiss Re Group
as both a reinsurance company and a holding company. The assessment of the market
position, profitability and financial strength of Swiss Re’s worldwide organisation must
focus primarily on the consolidated financial statements.

The following commentary on the 2002 financial year of the parent company therefore
complements the review of the financial year of the Swiss Re Group and is intentionally
kept short.

The business year was characterised by the continuing adverse trends of world stock
markets with a considerable negative impact on the investment result. The negative de-
velopment of the investment result was partly offset by the release of a valuation provi-
sion. After-tax profit for the financial year based on the Swiss legal accounting regula-
tions amounted to CHF 106 million, compared to CHF 930 million in the previous year.

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich, modified its accounting policy in 2002 to adapt
more to the Group's valuation principles, mainly with respect to the use of average
exchange rates in the income statement, accounting for property and casualty, life and
health and derivative transactions. The prior-year comparative figures have not been
restated. The valuation principles are described on pages 60 t0 62,

Net premiums written, which under the new accounting policy includes pipeline premi-
ums, increased to CHF 15 751 million. A sizeable share is related to intra-Group busi-
ness. The net result was improved by CHF 704 million to a loss of CHF 1 504 million. In
2001 an amount of CHF 1 262 million was released from the equalisation reserve,
compared to a release of CHF 22 million in the current year.

The negative result from the deposit account was due largely to the implementation of
the new accounting policy and the relating transition impact. This charge was offset by
the release of technical provisions included in the technical account.

The investment result decreased by CHF 3 834 million to a loss of CHF 733 million.
[nvestment income, consisting of current income and realised gains, decreased by
CHF 2 446 million to CHF 3 144 miilion.

Investment expenses increased by CHF 1 623 million to CHF 3 272 million, due to
depreciation on securities, which was substantially higher than in the previous year.

l_iabilities from technical account rose by 14% to CHF 35 422 million. Part of this
increase is related to the change in accounting palicy, since all positions are reported
on a gross basis for 2002. More than 90% of the liabilities are technical provisions;
the remainder refers to accounts payable and cash deposits. The equalisation reserve
as at 31 December 2002 amounted to CHF 412 million.
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Annual report
Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Subordinated liabilities As of 31 December 2002, the company held four perpetual subordinated liabilities
totalling CHF 1 893 million. These liabilities combine elements of debt and equity, and
may be included in solvency calculations.

Shareholders’ equity Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2001 amounted to CHF 10 945 million before
allocation of profit. After deduction of the dividend payment of CHF 776 million and the
inclusion of the profit for the financial year 2002, shareholders’ equity equalled
CHF 10 287 million at year-end 2002.

The nominal share capital of the company amounted to CHF 32 million
on 31 December 2002.
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Income statement

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

For the years ended 31 December

CHF millions Notes 2001 2002
Technical account . . T .
Pré'r‘n'i‘ums”éé‘r‘nedv o N . . o 10950 e 14 189
Clalmsmcurred S o 163 _9 900
Cﬁénge in vaLv:'t‘u‘r‘e pohcy reserves” N S -757 -1 ‘67‘1_
Change in equalisation resorve 1262 22
Commlssnons incurred S —2322 -3 747
Other technical result 198 410
Operating expenses -1116 —1 140
Allocated mvestment return 740 600
Result from technical account -2208 -1237
Result from deposit account 1 - -267
Result from technical and deposit account -2208 -1504
Investments 2

esmentneome T sso s
lovestmentexpenses -1649  -3272
vAHocated investment return - =740 -605
Investment result 3201 -733
Otherincome and expenses B
:Other interest income %22
Other interest expenses ‘ —221 o -158
Other income and expenses 137 2 603
Result from other income and expenses -47 2467
Income before tax 946 230
e e
Net income 930 106
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance sheet

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

As of 31 December

Assets

CHF millicns 2001 2002
Investments IO
landandbuildings _ 9 278 1185
Investments \n ‘éubs;dlanes and afflll‘ated compameg ‘ 1 9 406» o 099
Loans 0 subs:d\anes and afﬂhated cérﬁpames - 3 421 3 007
Morgagesandloans 652 685
Equity securities S 6 868 6 391,
Fixed-income securmes » y 6 699 6380
Short term |nves¢_ments _ 1600 819
Assets in derivative financial instruments 0 681

Total investments 39914 36 257
Assets from technlcal and depospt account S

Debtors from technicel account 3021 6062
Deposits from technical accvdvunt _____________ 4928 6748
Other assets from techmcal é'c'(':oum 660 1054
Debtors fromge_posn account - 652
Deposits from depaosit account 331

Total assets from technical and deposit account 8609 14 847
Otherdebtors ) 1200 750
Cosnasancanaitend o2 am

Intangibleassets 94 m7
Tangible assets v - S o 947 843
Other sssms and acaroals. 196 131

Total other assets 3070 2182
Total assets 51583 53286
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Liabilities

CHF miilions

Notes

2001

Liabilities

Liabilities from technical and depositaccount

Otherprovisions

Debts.

Liabilities from derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Accruals and deferred income

31022

3966

4220 3

610

1269

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

CHF millions

Notes

40648

2001

2002

Shareholders’equity

Share capital

Reserve for own shares

Othe

al reserves
Other reserves

Reteined camings brovghtlorverd

Profit for the financial year

L2
28

650

L8102

930

32
37
650

8346

18
106

Total shareholders’ equity

10945

10287

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

51583

53286

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Valuation principles

Basis of presentation

Change of accounting policy

Time period

Valuation methods:
Income statement

Balance sheet/Assets

60

The income statement and the balance sheet are presented in a format which foliows
Swiss GAAP FER. The financial statements and the notes are prepared in accordance
with the regulations of the Swiss Company Law.

Accounting policies were modified in 2002 to be more in line with the presentation of
the Group financial statements. The transition impact from the change in accounting
policy is included in the 2002 income statement. Most notably, income statement items
are newly reported at average exchange rates for the year. Also, reporting of property
and casualty business is now congruent with Group accounting policies as is the account-
ing for contracts not meeting risk transfer requirements which are considered as deposit
arrangements. Derivative financial instruments which are embedded in reinsurance
contracts are split out and classified as investments.

The 2002 financial year comprises the accounting period from 1 January to
31 December 2002.

The result of property and casualty business is based on actuarial estimates over the
contract life. In addition to the recognition of the technical accounts as reported by the
ceding companies, empirical experience is taken into consideration. The allocation to
the business year is in relation to the amount of reinsurance coverage provided.

The result of life and health reinsurance is the amount that has been earned over the
coverage period. Provisions for life and health business are determined by actuarial
rmethods.

Contracts which do not meet risk transfer requirements, defined as transferring a rea-
sonable possibility of a significant loss to the reinsurer, are accounted for as deposit
arrangements. Deposit amounts are adjusted for payments received and made. as well
as for amortisation or accretion of interest.

The allocated investment return includes the actual investment income which can be
directly attributed to the reinsurance business. In addition, it contains the investment
return generated on the investments covering the technical provisions. The interest rate
reflects the currency-weighted, five-year average vield on five-year government bonds.

The overall management expenses are allocated to the reinsurance business and the
investment business on an imputed basis.

The taxes relate to the financial year and include taxes on income and capital as well as
indirect taxes. Value-added taxes are included in the respective expense lines in the
income statement. The taxes attributable to foreign branches are included on the basis
of local financial statements.

The following assets are stated at cost, less necessary and legally permissible depreciation:
— Land and buildings/own-use property {purchase or construction cost)

— Investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies

— Equity securities and fixed-income securities

— Derivative financial instruments
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Balance sheet/Liabilities

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

These assets are not subject to revaluation. Discounted securities are valued at
their amortised cost. The valuation rules prescribed by the Swiss insurance supervisory
authority are observed.

With the exception of own-use property, tangible assets are stated at cost, less individu-
ally scheduled straight-line depreciation over their useful lives. Items of minor value are
not capitalised. The same principles apply to the capitalisation of intangible assets which
refer entirely to software development expenses.

The following items are stated at nominal value in the balance sheet, after deduction of
known credit risks if applicable:

— Loans to subsidiaries and affiliated companies

— Mortgages and loans

= Short-term investments

— Debtors and deposits from technical and deposit account

— Cash at bank and in hand

The technical provisions are valued in accordance with the following principles:

Premiums written relating to future periods are stated as unearned premium reserves
and are normally calculated by statistical methods. The accrual of commissions is deter-
mined analogously and is reported in the position “Other assets from technical account'.

Future policy reserves are determined on the basis of actuarially calculated present
values taking experience into account.

Provisions for claims outstanding are based on information provided by clients and own
estimates of expected claims experience which are drawn from empirical statistics.
These include provisions for claims incurred but not reported. Unpaid insurance obliga-
tions are set aside at the full expected amount of future payment.

Provisions for profit commissions are based on contractual agreements with clients and
depend on the results of reinsurance treaties.

At the direction of the Swiss insurance supervisory authority, an equalisation reserve
has been established.

Other provisions are formed according to business principles and are based on esti-
mated needs and in accordance with tax regulations. Provisions for taxation contain
prospective taxes on the basis of the financial year just ended.

Cash deposits withheld from retrocession as well as debts and other liabilities are stated at
redemption value. The liabilities from derivative financial instruments are valued using the
same principles applied for the derivative financial instruments included under investments.




Notes
Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Valuation principles

Foreign currency translation All items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Swiss francs. Balance
sheet figures are translated at the currency exchange rates applicable on the balance
sheet date and, in the income statement, figures are stated at the average exchange
rates of the year under report.

All currency differences arising either from the revaluation of the opening balance
sheet, the adjustments from application of year-end and average rates or from foreign-

exchange transactions are booked via a corresponding provision.

The currency exchange rates applicable for key currencies are shown on page 15.
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Notes

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Additional information on the financial statements

1. Result from technical and deposit account

2001 2002
CHF millions Gross Retro Net Gross Retro Net
Premiumswritten 2367 7852 114l5 17198 | -1447 15781
Change in unearned premium reserves -463 -2 -465 -1571 9 -1562
Premiums earned 11804 -954 10950 15627 -1438 14188
Claimspaid . c6ve1 .. 687 -6094  -4851 636 -4215
Change in provisions for claims outstanding -6025 956 -5069 -6 091 406 -5685
Claims incurred -12806 1643 -11163 -10942 1042 -3900
Change of future policy reserves -487 =270 =757 -1491 -180 -1671
Change in equalisation reserve 1262 - 1262 22 - 22
Fixed commissions . -2%13 %47 727166 -3465 203 -3262
Profit commissions -170 14 ~156 -497 12 -485
Commissions incurred -2683 361 -2322 -3962 215 -3747
(Othertechnical income and expenses -1 Vo721 7B3 T34
Result from cash deposits 221 -21 200 457 -13 444
Other technical resuit 220 =22 198 476 -66 410
Operating expenses -1116 -1140
Allocated investment return 740 600
Result from technical account -2208 -1237
Result from deposit account - -267
Result from technical and deposit account’ -2208 -1504
+ 2002 including transition impact of CHF ~40 million
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Notes

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Additional information on the financial statements {continued)

2. Result from investments

CHF millions 2001 2002
income from land and buidings e %6 .8
ncome from subsidaies and affiates comparies -
(ncome from flxed -income secur»u»tlle‘s mortgages and Ioans o . ‘ » ‘389_‘ N ) 354
Income from short-term investrents B S 27
lncome fromlnvestment services S v ‘ - - - 1
S gains on T ST ey e
Investment income 55690 3144
Investment management expenses T . Tie2
Valuation adjustments on investments e TYT . T2248
Realised losses on sale of investments S ' ”—464 : - -842
Investment expenses -1649 -3272
Allocated investment return -740 -605
Investment result? 3201 =733

22002 including transition impact of CHF —163 million

3. Other income and expenses

CHF millions 2001 2002
Other interestincome o
Other e 3458
Otherexpenses SO DTS TE PP e Ca56
Total other income and expenses -47 2 467
4. Liabilities
Liabilities from technical account

2001 2002
CHF millions Gross Retro Net Gross Retro Net
Payables from technical account 1717 219 193 1397 330 1727
Cash deposits withheld from retrocession .. 302 302 - 226 226
Unearned premium reserves o S 2797” o ”—'1'5v 2782 3955 ) -22 - 3933
e s amo s 1ea aa
Provmons for clalms outstandmvgv_‘ S 2‘3434 -1303 22131 26282 -1678 24 604
Provisions for profit commissions 88 ‘ o 41 - 87 o 114-6 ' v | 145
Eqvualisétion e S PR O R L
Liabilities from technical account 31765 -743 31022 36373 -951 35422
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Liabilities from deposit account

CHF millions 2001 2002
Payables from depositaccount . 1147
Deposits from deposit account - 68
Total liabilities from deposit account - 1215
Debts

CHF millions 2001 2002
Amounts owed tobanks 2 B
Debentures o 2412 ... .239%3
toans 1806 781

Total debts 4220 3175
b. Shareholders’ equity

Change in shareholders’ equity

CHF millions 2001 2002
Shareholders’ equity on 31 December (previous year) 6839 10945
Dividend paid for the previous year o -713, 778

Corairegmmere ) -
Capital increase including premium 4006 12
Profitfor the financial year 930 106
Shareholders’ equity on 31 December before allocation of profit 10945 10287

Dividend payment e - - 776 -310’
Shareholders’ equity on 31 December after allocation of profit 101869 8977

' Board of Directors’ proposal to the Annual General Meeting of 12 May 2003

Source of shareholders’ equity (after allocation of profit)

CHF millions 2001 2002
From nominai capital, less capital repayment 82 L 32

fomstrepremon e
From profitallocation e 4081 3877

From other allocations 299 299

Shareholders’ equity on 31 December after allocation of profit 10169 9377
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Notes

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich

Additional information on the financial statements (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Leasing commitments

Security deposits

Fire insurance value of tangible assets

Obligations towards
employee pension funds

Bonds

Investments in subsidiaries
Own shares Swiss Re Group

Claims on and obligations
towards Group companies

Other provisions

o8

Contingent liabilities, mainly towards Group companies, amounted on 31 December
2002 to CHF 3 181 million (2001: CHF 2 272 million). In addition there were 24 unlim-
ited guarantees; 20 of these are for obligations of Group companies. No payments are
expected under these guarantees.

CHF millions 2001 2002
Remaining contractterm up to 1 year I 1
Remaining contract term up 10 6 years 4 3
Remaining contract term more than 5 vears """"""" 4 2

These off-balance sheet commitments pertain primarily to office and apartment
space rented by the company. The amounts are shown for the non-cancellable contract
period only.

To secure the technical provisions on the 2002 balance shest date, securities
in the amount of CHF 4 752 million were deposited in favour of ceding companies
(2001: CHF 2 579 million).

The insurance value of tangible assets, comprising the real estate portfolio
and other tangible assets, amounted on 31 December 2002 to CHF 2 554 million
(2001: CHF 2 644 million).

The current account obligations towards employee pension funds amounted to
CHF 220 million on the 2002 balance sheet date (2001: CHF 49 million).

The company has the following outstanding bonds:

3%1% interest, CHF 500 million, 2 July 1987-2007

3%4% interest, CHF 600 miliion, perpetual from 15 June 1299 but no less than 12 years.
These bonds are included in the item debis.

Details on the Swiss Re Group's subsidiaries are to be found on pages 48 to b1.

Own shares held by the Swiss Re Group are stated on page 30.

CHF millions 2001 2002
Deposits from technical and depositeccount 2676 4261
Devors ... A1 2937
Dgposifs retéined from ceded vrevinsurva‘nce”t')usinegs ) - B 287 167
Other liabllities 2433 1160

This item contains provisions for taxation in the amount of CHF 81 miilion (2001: CHF
84 million} and other provisions totalling CHF 667 million {(20071: CHF 3 872 million).
Other provisions include a pravision for currency fluctuations of CHF 450 million.

A financial provision of CHF 3 165 million was released in 2002. This provision was
established in 1999 in connection with a realised gain on group internal restructuring
of participations.
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Debts, liabilities from derivative
financial instruments and
other liabilities

Conditional capital

Change in undisclosed
reserves

Major shareholders

Personnel information

Swiss Re Annual Report 2002

These commitments contain long-term ligbilities in the amount of CHF 3 838 miillion
(20071: CHF 4 609 million) which include subordinated liabilities of CHF 1 893 million
{2001: CHF 1 812 million), and short-term liabilities amounting to CHF 1 594 million
(2001: CHF 782 million).

The Annual General Meeting on 31 May 2001 approved the creation of conditional
capital as follows: an amount of CHF 300 000 for conversion rights and warrants granted
in connection with bonds and similar financial instruments issued by the company or by
Group companies; and an amount of CHF 700 000 for employee participation purposes
of which, as per 31 December 2002, CHF 36 848 was issued (2001: CHF 17 973).

The undisclosed reserves on investments in securities and participations, as the differ-
ence between cost or lower market valuation and the book values. and other financial
provisions decreased by a net amount of CHF 3 654 million in the year under report.

Capital Group Companies Inc., Los Angeles, informed the SWX Swiss Exchange on
24 June 2002 that it holds 5.06% of Swiss Re’s voting rights on behalf of funds and
clients. As no more information about these shareholders is available, Swiss Re is
unable to track, on its own, changes in Capital Group’s holdings.

Swiss Reinsurance Company, Zurich, employed a staff of 2 941 on the balance sheet

date (2001: 2 831). Personnel expenses for the 2002 financial year amounted to
CHF 870 million (2001: CHF 775 million).
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Proposal for allocation of profit

The Annual General Meeting to be held in Zurich on 12 May 2003 has at its disposal the
following profit:

in CHF 2001 2002
Retained earnings brought forward

from previous year .. 12738328 16405444

Profit for the financial year 929594286 105502459

Disposable profit 8423328614 121907 903

Number of Nominal

registered shares capital in CHF

Share structure ) v
For‘t‘hevﬂnancia\ year 2002

— eligible for dividend - 310379068 31037907
— not eligible for dividend 11678802 1167 880
Total shares issued 322057 870 32205787

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting to allocate this profit as

follows:

in CHF 2001 2002
Dividnd 775827170 31037906
Windrawsl fomreserves - -185000000
Allocation 10 reserves | 150000000 -
Balance carried forward 16405444 6528835
Disposable profit 8942332614 121907 303
Dividend

If the Board of Directors’ proposal for allocation of profit is accepted, a dividend of
CHF 1.00 per share will be paid.

After deduction of the Federal Withholding Tax of 35%, the dividend will be paid
from 15 May 2003 by means of a dividend order to shareholders recorded in the

Share Register or to their deposit banks.

Zurich, 26 March 2003
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Report of the statutory auditors

To the Annual General Meeting of
Swiss Reinsurance Company
Zurich

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial state-
ments {income statement, balance sheet and notes/ pages 57 to 67) of Swiss Reinsur-
ance Company for the year ended 31 December 2002.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our responsi-
hility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional gualification and
independence.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the
Swiss profession, which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material mis-
statement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles
used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accounting records and financial statements and the proposed
appropriaticn of available earnings comply with Swiss law and the company'’s Articles
of Association.

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

ML /\Jﬂ( //'7%— z

Michael P. Nelligan Ray J. Kunz

Zurich, 26 March 2003
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Financial years 199/7/-2002

* Adjusted by 20-for-1 share split

70

CHF millions 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Income statement

Premlums earned ‘ 16862 16727 18 051 22081 25 219 29 053
Net investment income .. ... 2995 3131 3846 4802 5766 5507
Net realised investment gams/losses S 1281 2509 3588 4275 2685 —515
Other revenues 143 286 246 395 455 365
Total revenues 20281 22653 25731 315653 34104 34415
Expeﬂses . F F P . . RIS F P I
Claims and claim adjustmentexpenses 8067 8514  -9333 12753 -16266  -14485
Life and health benefts -4185 -4 881 -6200  -7478  -8532 -10084
Acqmsmon costs o -3767 —-3661 3973 -4883  -5658  -6220
Amortrsanon of goodwwll =75 ~97 =211 =310 —368 » —350
Othe( operating costs and expenses -1940 ~-2698 -2785 -3074 —3 384 —3 240
Total expenses -18024 -19 845 -22502 -27898 ~-34208 -34379
Income/loss before income tax expense 2257 2808 3229 3695 ~104 36
Income tax expense -480 -647 -783 -689 -61 -127
Net income/loss on ordinary activities 1777 2161 2446 2966 -165 -91
Extraordinaryincome 480

Extraordinary charges ~460

Net income/loss 1777 2161 2448 2966 -1656 -91
Balance sheet

Investments - 62725 69589 85684 89584 95 888 - 86 728
Other assets 286567 38748 44516 530566 74342 75129
Total assets 91382 108 337 130200 142 640 170230 161 857
Llabnlltles . e e . . . F . .

Unpald clalms and clarm adjustment expenses o 41 8}»76 45 866 54 072 5‘9 600 68 618 o 62 652
Lwabllltles for l|fe and hea‘l‘th_polblbc‘y benefits 9 963 156143 23 279 29 300 _ 41 370__M 37 269
Uneemedpremiums 3691 3174 4251 6131 6399 8754
Other liabilites 137567 ‘ 19 142 W8 819 189764 24 200 32 833
Long-term debt 3921 5049 4947 50568 7045 5663
Total liabilities 73208 88374 105 368 119863 147632 145171
Shareholders’ equity 18174 19963 24832 22787 22598 16686
anngs/ossesporshaen ChE ss0 736 ess 03 057 -0z
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Share statistics

Key share data

1997 1998 1899 2000 2001 2002

20032

MNumberof sharesissued . 300866020 294619020 294619020 293166020 321868120 322057870

~ of which reserved for

.corporate purposes ... 8462800 8462800 8462800 8293580 7942280 7942280

— of which reserved to underlle

.Ine convertile bond ... 37138522 3736522
Number of shares entiled todividend 262403220 286156220 286156220 284872460 310189318 310379068

DvendpadpershrenCHE 180 220 240 280 280 280 1

Net income per share (EPS) in CHF 5. 90 7.35 8.55 10 39 -0 57 -0.29
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Stock exchange listing
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Swiss Re shares are listed on the main board of the SWX Swiss Exchange and traded on the virt-x under the symbol "RUKN". In addition,
on 1 February 19886, an American Depositary Receipts programme (ADR level I, over-the-counter) was launched together with Morgan Guar-

anty Trust Company of New York. One ADR corresponds to one Swiss Re share.

Ticker symbols Bioomberg Telekurs Reuters
Share o RUKNVX  RURN o RUKZnS
ADR Level | SWCEYUS  SWCEY
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Swiss Re at a glance

Swiss Re — a global company

Swiss Re is one of the world’s leading reinsurers and the world’s
largest life and health reinsurer. The company operates through

more than 70 offices in over 30 countries. Swiss Re has been in
the reinsurance business since its foundation in Zurich, Switzer-

land, in 1863.

Growth and diversification strategy since 1993

Premiums earned

CHF millions
30000
i
9% |
25000 ;
10% |
| 104
20000 L10% )
15000 35%  39%

9% 5% 18%

38%

10000

5000

81% 85% 82%

52% 55%  52%

1993 1984 1995
 Property & Casualty

Return on investment

10%

2000 2001 2002

T Financial Services

8%

6%

4%

2% —

o 66 ' 61 6.8
b

9.7 3.0 4.7

1993 1994 1985

2000 2001 2002

Through its three business groups Property & Casualty, Life &
Health and Financial Services, Swiss Re offers a wide variety
of products to manage capital and risk. Traditional reinsurance
products, including a broad range of property and casualty as
well as life and health covers and related services, are comple-
mented by insurance-based corporate finance solutions and
supplementary services for comprehensive risk management.

Net income/loss
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Return on equity
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* Net income divided by average of shareholders’ equity (1996 estimated)

The figures from 1983 until 19886 (1998 for return on investment) represent the previousty applied accounting policy and the former Group structure.
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News 2002

15% increase in premiums thanks to attractive
market conditions

Net loss of CHF 91 million in adverse financial
environment

Proposed reduction in dividend to CHF 1.00 per share

Key figures

Property & Casualty hit combined ratio target of 104%
Life & Health return on operating revenues over 9% for
fourth consecutive year

Administrative costs declined despite strong growth
of business

Change Change
CHF miflions unless otherwise stated 2001 2002 in% CHF millions unless otherwise stated 2001 2002 in%
Group S . Property & Casualty - R -
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*Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeung of 12 May 2003 vReturn on total revenues ‘ —24 B% -17.7%
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Chairman and CEQ letter

Fellow shareholders, colieagues,
ladies and gentlemen

2002 produced a disappointing result for Swiss Re. Strong perfor-
mance improvements in our property and casualty business were more
than offset by asset impairments resulting from the decline in the world’s
equity markets, leading to an overall loss of CHF 91 million. This com-
pared to a loss of CHF 165 million in 2001, which was of course se-
verely impacted by the 11 September event. In view of this second con-
secutive year of incurring a loss, the Board of Directors will propose

to the Annual General Meeting on 12 May 2003 a reduced dividend

of CHF 1.00 per share.

The most significant item affecting the 2002 result was the decline

in net realised investment gains/losses of CHF 3.2 billion due primarily
to impairments on equities. In order to deal with the three-year decline in
equity markets, Swiss Re has reduced its exposure to equities from over
30% in 2000 to less than 10% currently, net of hedges. In June 2002,
we commenced a programme of hedging transactions which created a
gain of CHF 576 million, offsetting part of the loss from impairments.
Significantly lower interest rates also had a negative impact on current
income from the fixed-interest portfolio. The poor performance of equity
markets led to a charge to our life insurance portfolio of CHF 280 million
in respect of guarantees on certain life policies in the US. Notable insur-
ance losses included the summer floods in central and eastern Europe,
which cost CHF 204 million, and claims arising from credit and risk solu-
tions business written in prior years.

At the operational level, there were many pleasing developments in
2002. Net premiums earned rose to CHF 29.1 billion, an increase of
15% over the previous year. Importantly, administrative costs have
declined despite the strong growth, as we achieved further operating
efficiencies.

The Property & Casualty Business Group benefited from the effect of

the hard market, delivering both strong growth and much improved
earnings. The headline growth rate of 9% understates the actual
progress achieved. Adjusted for currency exchange effects and business
transfers (aviation and credit) to the Financial Services Business Group,
the underlying increase was 19%. This growth was driven by higher
premium rates and new business. At the same time, the business group
met its target of a 104% combined ratio.

As expected, the Life & Health Business Group registered a strong in-
crease in net premiums earned, 26%, due primarly to Lincoin Re and a
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continuation of robust organic growth in this sector. Despite absorbing
provisions in respect of the Guaranteed Minimum Death Benefit con-
tracts previously mentioned, it achieved a return on operating revenues
in excess of 9% for the fourth consecutive year and continued to provide
a stable earnings contribution.

The Financial Services Business Group increased its net premiums
earned to CHF 2.7 billion, which represents an 11% rise. Adjusted for
exceptional items, including the sale of NCM and the business transfers
from the Property & Casualty Business Group, the increase was 31%.
The result, a loss of CHF 633 million, is not satisfactory. Claims on con-
tracts written in prior years and the decline in equity markets were the
major factors contributing to the loss. Various measures have been un-
dertaken during the last year to improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of this business group, including the creation of a centralised credit risk
management function and the consolidation of the private equity unit
into wider asset management operations. We believe Financial Services
is now well placed to benefit from the favourable business climate for

its products.

The three-year decline in equity markets, coupled with the low inflation
and, low interest rate economic environment which now exists across
the world, is having a profound effect on our business. Balance sheets
for insurers and reinsurers have becceme stretched. With capital in short
supply, available risk capacity is being exceeded by demand, leading to
significant price increases. In addition, the prospect of low investment
returns means that the industry no longer has the luxury of using
investment income to offset or, as happened during the bull market of
the 1980s, even overcompensate for underwriting losses. If insurers are
10 provide a proper reward to shareholders, the industry has to sustain
or further increase prices, cut costs, tighten policy conditions, intensify
its loss prevention measures, and achieve combined ratios below 100%
on a regular basis.

The 2002/2003 renewals demonstrated that the property and casualty
market is responding to this message with rate increases for Swiss Re
averaging 10% on business renewed. Policy conditions are as critical as
price in producing an attractive risk portfolic. Holding fast to our require-
ments in terms of both price and policy conditions has led to the cancel-
lation or replacement of more than a quarter of the business available
for renewal. However, this has been replaced by contracts with im-
proved terms and by new business accounts.
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Chairman and CEQO letter

{continued)

Capital constraints have also impacted life clients, albeit to a lesser ex-
tent in the important US market. Swiss Re expects to continue the prof-
itable development of its life reinsurance book.

Swiss Re last reduced its dividend in 1906, when earnings declined by
20% following the San Francisco earthquake. In respect of business year
2002, some 96 years later, the Board will reluctantly recommend the
same action. Two consecutive years of loss, caused by the 11 September
tragedy in 2001, and now in 2002 by an historic three-year decline in
equity markets, have created the unsatisfactory situation whereby divi-
dends must be paid out of retained earnings rather than current income.
In these circumstances, the Board believes a reduction of the dividend is
in line with Swiss Re's tradition of prudent financial management. Para-
doxically, the events giving rise to this situation have produced excep-
tional opportunities for Swiss Re’s core products, and it is clear that, in to-
day’s business environment, we can put capital to work on attractive
terms. Although 2003 earnings may be impacted by a smaller asset im-
pairment charge, we are optimistic regarding future earnings prospects.

On 1 January 2003, Walter B. Kielholz was succeeded as Chief Execu-
tive Officer by John R. Coomber. Walter B. Kielholz spent six highly suc-
cessful years as CEQ of Swiss Re; the Board of Directors thanks him for
all his efforts. We are pleased that he will be Vice Chairman and
Delegate of the Board of Directors, where he will continue to use his
wide knowledge and experience to serve Swiss Re.

John R.Coomber has 30 years’ experience in varicus management
functions in the company, mostly in Life & Health but also as Head of the
UK operations, including executive responsibility for property and casu-
alty business. John R. Coomber was appointed to the Executive Board in
April 1995 with responsibility for the Group’s Life & Health Division and,
in 2001, he became Head of the newly formed Life & Health Business
Group. In June 2000, he became a member of the Executive Board
Committee.

On 1 April 2003, Ann F. Godbehere will take over as Chief Financial Offi-
cer from John H. Fitzpatrick, who will become Head of the Life & Health
Business Group on the same date. The fact that everyone involved in this
reassignment of responsibilities was already employed at Swiss Re testi-
fies to the depth of management talent available at the company.
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Swiss Re has always considered good corporate governance an essen-
tial part of managing a successful company. Our corporate governance
procedures are well established and include implementation of the rele-
vant processes, rules and regulations and the requisite control measures.
Our aim is to ensure that strong ethical and human values are central

10 our corporate culture. In this Business Report, we have devoted a large
section to corporate governance: our reporting fully complies with the
guidelines of the Swiss Exchange SWX, although it is somewhat more
comprehensive.

At the next Annual General Meeting, we will propose Raymund Breu and
John F. Smith, Jr. for election to the Board of Directors. Raymund Breu is
chief financial officer and member of the Novartis executive committee;
John F.Smith, Jr. is former chief executive officer and chairman of Gen-
eral Motors Corporation.

It is with great sadness that we inform you of the death of Ernesto Jutzi,
a long-serving member of the Executive Board and Board of Directors,
on 4 September 2002 at the age of 70. Mr Jutzi played a defining role
in the development of our corparation; we will always remember him
fondly.

We would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our shareholders for
standing by Swiss Re during these difficult times and showing confi-
dence in us. We will do our best to reward your loyalty through more
positive results in the future. We also thank our clients for their trust and
their productive partnership with us.

Finally, we would like to thank our employees, who have again dedicated
themselves to the company over the past year; we are most sincerely
grateful for their commitment. We are confident that our endeavours will
return Swiss Re 1o its successful path.

Zurich, 27 March 2003

Peter Forstmoser John R. Coomber
Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer
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Group results

Swiss Re incurred a net loss of CHF 91 million in 2002,

compared with a net loss in the prior year of CHF 165

million. This loss was primarily due to the impact of im-

pairment charges caused by the decline in equity mar-

kets, which offset improvements in property and casualty

reinsurance, and the absence of an event such as 11 Sep-

tember 2001.

Net premiums earned increased by
15.2% to CHF 29.1 billion. Excluding the
impact of the sale of NCM and the effect
of the stronger Swiss franc, the increase
was 25.7%.

The Property & Casualty Business Group
reported net premiums earned of

CHF 15.1 billion. Adjusting for currency-
exchange effects and the transfer of the
credit and aviation business to the Finan-
cial Services Business Group, the increase
over 2001 was 19.4%.

Premiums in the Life & Health Business
Group increased by 26.4% to CHF 11.3
billion, due primarily to the acquisition of
Lincoln National's reinsurance business
and to growth in traditional life business in
North America and the United Kingdom.

The Financial Services Business Group in-
creased premiums earned to CHF 2.7 bil-
lion, up 11.1% from 2001. Excluding the
impact of the sale of NCM, the transfer of
business from the Property & Casualty
Business Group and the currency-ex-
change effects, underlying growth was
24.3%. This was mainly due 1o rate in-
creases for corporate risks.

Net current investment income declined
by 4.5% from CHF 5.8 billicn in 2001 to
CHF 5.5 billion in 2002, mainly as a result
of the stronger Swiss franc and a fall in in-
come from the Group’s equity-accounted
investments. The return on investment
was also affected by the decrease in in-
terest rates.

Net realised investment losses were

CHF 515 million, compared with net realised
gains of CHF 2.7 billionin 2001. The
main reason for the change was the net
Impairment charge of CHF 3.9 billion, due
to the decline in equity markets, fixed-in-
come securities, and private equity values.
This impairment loss was partially offset
by realised gains on investments, includ-
ing gains on the sale of parts of the
Group's holdings in NCM and Partner Re.

Other revenue decreased by 19.8% to
CHF 365 million as a result of the sale of
NCM, partially offset by a full year of rev-
enue from Conning Corporation, which
was acquired on 2 July 2001.

Claims and claim adjustment expenses
and life and health benefits decreased
from CHF 24.8 billion to CHF 24.6 billion,
a drop of 1%. The absence of an event such
as the terrorist attack of 11 September
2001 and the strengthening of the Swiss
franc were the main reasaons for this de-
crease in expenses. The decreases more
than offset the impact of the growth in
non-life business, increased losses in
credit and surety business and increases
in the Life & Health Business Group follow-
ing the Lincoln Re acquisition and the loss
on the guaranteed minimum death benefit
business.

There was no net change to equalisation
reserves in 2002, compared to a release
of CHF 1.5 billion in 2001. The equalisa-
tion charge in the first half of 2002 was

released in the second half of 2002 due
to the losses from the floods in Germany.

The Group's non-life reserve ratio (re-
serves relative to premiums) at the end of
2002 was 265%. down from & currency-
adjusted 322% at the end of 2001. The
decrease was caused mainly by the
growth in premium volume and the effect
on reserves of the claims payments
related to 11 September 2001.
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Acquisition costs increased to CHF 6.2
billion in 2002, from CHF 5.7 billion in
2001, an increase of 8.9%. This is less
than the increase in net premiums earned
and is principally due to a reduction in the
commission rates in property and casualty
business.

Amortisation of goodwill decreased from
CHF 368 million in 2001 to CHF 350 mil-
lion, due to changes in currency-exchange
rates,

Other operating costs and expenses de-
clined from CHF 3.4 billion to CHF 3.2 hil-
lion, due mainly to currency-exchange ef-
fects. The increase in expenses dug to the
business acquired from Lincoln National
was offset by the fall in expenses caused
by the deconsolidation of NCM. The man-
agement expense ratio declined for the
fourth year in a row, to 9.3% in 2002, from
10.8% in 2001, as the Group maintained
its focus on strategic cost leadership. Ex-
pense ratios declined in the Property &
Casualty Business Group from 5.1% to
4.9%. and in the Financial Services Busi-
ness Group from 31.3% t0 25.7%. The ex-
pense ratio in the Life & Health Business
Group rose from 4.6% to 5.0%, due to the
acquisition of Lincoln Re, which prior to
Swiss Re’s ownership had a higher ex-
pense ratio.
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The tax expense in 2002 was CHF 127
million, compared to an expense of
CHF 61 million in 2001. The Group tax
rate is the result of current and deferred
taxes in a wide range of jurisdictions.

The Group recorded a net loss of

CHF 91 million, compared with a net loss
of CHF 165 million in 2001. Losses per
share were CHF —0.29, compared with
losses per share of CHF —0.57 in 2001.

Shareholders’ equity decreased from
CHF 22.6 billion to CHF 16.7 billion. The
main reasons for the decrease were the
change in unrealised gains and losses on
securities, net of deferred taxes, of

CHF 3.0 billion due to continuing weak-
ness in world stock markets in 2002, and
the foreign currency revaluation impact of
CHF 2.2 hillion due to the strength of the
Swiss franc. The 17% decline in US dollar
is the principal reason for the decline in
assets and liabilities.

income reconciliation

The following table reconciles the income from Swiss Re’s business groups and the oper-
ations of its Corporate Centre with Group consolidated net income/loss before tax.

CHF millions 2001 2002 Change in %
Business groups’ operating income/loss S
Property & Casualty 281 309 10
LfegHealth 1882 1318 -22
Financial Services -932 -633 32
Total business group operating income 1031 @992 4
Coporte Comesvpanses es0 e
ltems excluded from the business groups: e

Net realised investment gains » 13 259 98

Amortisation of goodwil  -368  -350 -5
_ Other income/expenses -448 -428 -4
Net income/loss before tax -104 36

Net realised investment gains/losses on certain financial instruments including own
shares; amortisation of goodwill; and other income and expenses — such as indirect
taxes, capital taxes and interest charges — have been excluded when assessing the

performance of each business group.




Investments

Swiss Re generates substantial cash flows which it invests in a well-diversified portfolio
of bonds, stocks, real estate and cash. The diversification of the portfolio is designed

in such a way that adverse movements in one market are mitigated by favourable
movements in other markets to reduce the overall risk of the portfolio. Within Swiss
Re’s overall policy of diversification, the company manages its portfolio to take into

account significant trends in the different investment markets.

2002 was characterised by two key de- Investments by currency
velopments: the significant decline in the as of 31 December 2002
equity markets, particularly in the second
half of the year; and the positive perfor-
mance of the bond markets, where the
Group has more than two-thirds of its ///

ol [N
portfolio invested. L
In the first half of 2002, investor confi- i
dence was eroded by a stream of bank-

ruptcies and accounting scandals. This led \

10 a first correction in equity prices. In the

second half of 2002, risk aversion, cou- usb 55.4%
pled with geopolitical threats, prompted wwEUR v ‘ o - o 212%
institutional and private investors to re- :GBP ' S o 93%
duce their equity holdings even further, [JCHF o v - 49%
exerting renewed downward price pres- — CAD ) - S B 50%
sure. Overall, the major stock markets de- [ Other . o 42%
clined between 17% and 34% in value Total CHF 86 728 million
during 2002, with most of the losses be-

ing posted in the second half of the year. Swiss Re's equity position, which is

The euro zone suffered the greatest loss, marked to market in the balance sheet,
followed by Switzerland and the US. was negatively affected by this market

In relative terms, most Asian markets per- weakness. A significant portion of this
formed significantly better. market decline negatively affected the

income statement as it was considered a
non-tempaerary adjustment of valuation
levels. Total impairments charged to the
income statement amounted to CHF 3.9
billion, CHF 0.9 billion in the first half-
vear and CHF 3.0 billion in the second
half-year.
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Since early in 2000, when equity markets
peaked, Swiss Re has significantly re-
duced its exposure to equities from 34%
of the portfolio in December 1399 to 18%
by mid-year 2002. In June 2002, Swiss
Re hedged a considerable portion of its
remaining equity exposure by means of
buying puts and selling calls, thus partly
protecting itself from the impact of the
ensuing equity downturn. At the same
time, the equity portfolio was reduced
further to reflect Swiss Re’s revised risk/
return assessment. The actions resulted in
significant net realised gains from equity
sales of CHF 1 billion, and significant gains
on the equity hedges of CHF 0.8 billion.

The sharp decline of stock markets had a
positive impact on bond markets, as funds
were reallocated from equities to fixed-
income securities. The risk aversion that
had depressed equity markets also triggered
a widening of spreads on corporate bonds.
Government bonds rallied to very high
levels and yields fell to long-term lows.
The resulting increase in the value of the
bond portfolioc was CHF 3.0 billion. How-
ever, this increased value is not recognised
in Swiss Re’s income statement or share-
holders’ equity, unless the bonds are sold.
Realised gains on bonds for the year
amounted to CHF 1.3 billion.
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Investments decreased from CHF 96 bil-
lion to CHF 87 billion in 2002. The signifi-
cant decline of the US dollar against the
Swiiss franc and the equity downturn far
outweighed the positive cash flow and
gains on the bond portfolio. At 31 Decem-
bher 2002, equities accounted for

CHF 12.3 billion, or 14% of investments,
compared to 20% in the prior year. The
net equity risk was significantly lower at
9%. At 31 December 2002, fixed-income
investments, including fixed-income secu-
rities, mortgages and other loans as well
as short-term investments, represented
31% of the portfolio. compared to 76%

in the prior year. Other investments, com-
prising of investment real estate and other
invested assets, remained stable at 5%.

Allocation of investments
as of 31 December 2002

....Fixed-income investments  80.8%
(1 Equity securities” 141%
T G
Total CHF 86 728 million

* Net of hedges, equities are 9.1%

The return on investment is 4.7%, com-
pared with 8.0% in the prior period: the
difference mainly reflects the impairments
on equities and, to a lesser extent, lower
realised gains and the lower yield on fixed-
income investments.




Capital management

Despite the decrease in its shareholders’ equity in 2002,
Swiss Re continues to be very strongly capitalised and is

committed to maintaining its financial strength.

Swiss Re's reported shareholders’ equity
was affected by the fall in the stock
markets and the decline in the value of
the US dollar in 2002.

While there has been a reduction in the
company's book equity, the exposures to
both stocks and US dollar underwriting
risk denominated in Swiss francs have
also declined. Swiss Re actively reduced
its risk profile during 2002. From a risk
perspective, the combination of these
factors more than compensates for the
decline in shareholders’ equity.

Despite lowering Swiss Re’s ratings, the
rating agencies continue to assess Swiss
Re's capitalisation as very strong and
acknowledge the company’s excellent
diversification and historically conservative
reserving.

The decline in capital has affected many
(re)insurers even more significantly than
Swiss Re, and the rating agencies have
therefore reduced many of Swiss Re's
clients’ and competitors’ ratings. These
circumstances have prompted a “flight to
guality” and are producing excellent
opportunities for Swiss Re’s core business.

In order to take advantage of these
opportunities, Swiss Re is committed to
continuing the prudent management of
its capital and to maintaining its superior
financial strength for the benefit of its
clients. Swiss Re believes that a strategy
of maintaining a superior balance sheet
strength will maximise value for the com-
pany’s shareholders. Two consecutive
years of loss caused by the 11 September
2001 tragedy, and now in 2002 by a
historic three-year decline in equity mar-
kets, have created the unsatisfactory
situation whereby dividends must be paid
out of capital rather than income. In these
circumstances the Board believes some
reduction of dividend is in line with Swiss
Re’s tradition of prudent financial
management,

Therefore, the Board of Directors will
propose to the Annual General Meeting
a reduction in the dividend to CHF 1.00
per share.

Swiss Re's USD 2 billion European
Medium Term Notes (EMTN) programme
was successfully renewed during 2002.
The aggregate face value of European
medium term notes outstanding at the
end of 2002 was equivalent to USD 9756
million.
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Syndicated loans totalling CHF 458 mil-
lion matured in March 2002. These loans
had been taken up to finance the acquisi-
tion of the former Uniorias in Italy in early
1997, and were repaid in 2002. Swiss Re
had no other maturities or issues of long-
term financial debt or hybrid capital.

In late summer 2002, Swiss Re success-
fully approached the market to renew an
existing USD 2.5 billion syndicated credit
line. first closed in 1998, The banks re-
affirmed their commitment to Swiss Re and
showed interest in maintaining a strong
relationship. In October 2002, Swiss Re
signed a new USD 3.5 billion syndicated
letter of credit facility. Swiss Re's ability

to market these two facilities simultane-
ously — with a material oversubscription for
the syndicated letter of credit facility —
demonstrates its continued excellent credit-
worthiness in a difficult environment.
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Funded business

As part of its strategic ambitions to provide risk management solutions to its clients, Swiss
Re may purchase assets with borrowed funds. This type of business generates new
revenue sources whilst enhancing value for clients. Funded structures allow Swiss Re to
access familiar risk classes at more attractive rates of return than would be available on

an unfunded basis.

Funded business is disclosed as separate line items ‘Financial services assets and liabili-
ties” in the balance sheet. The funding is just a means of accessing a desired category of
risk without significantly affecting the financial market risk profile of the company. There-
fore ‘Financial services assets and liabilities” are structured with the intention of creating
assets and liabllities that generate offsetting foreign-exchange and interest-rate risks.
Group Capital Management coordinates funded business activities throughout the Group.
Currently, the main contributor is the Advisory & Capital Markets unit of the Financial
Services Business Group.

Long-term debt that is strictly used for funded business is classified as operational debt.
During 2002, Swiss Re took advantage of opportunities to issue medium and long-term
operational debt. The aggregate value of European Medium Term Notes issued in 2002,
maturing after the fiscal year 2003, was the equivalent of EUR 34 million, with a weighted
average maturity of 3.5 years. Operational long-term debt raised under Payment Under-
taking Agreements in 2002 totalled USD 487 million, with a weighted average maturity
exceeding 12 vears. All interest-rate and currency risk for operational debt is hedged to a
three-month Libor benchmark.



Financial years 1997-2002

* Adjusted by 20-for-1 share split

CHF millions 1997 1998 1998 2000 2001 2002
MMM B O Ot e
Revenues o . S
Premumscarmed 15862 16727 18081 22081 25219 29058
Netinvestmentincome 2995 3131 3846 4802 5765 5507
Net realised investment gains/losses 1281 2508 3688 4275 2665  -515
Other revenues 143 286 246 3956 455 385
Total revenues 20281 22653 25731 3156563 34104 34415
Expenses S . e
Claims and claim agjustment expenses -8057 8514  -9333  -12153  -16266  -14485
Life 2nd health benefts ~4185 4881 6200  -7478  -8532 -10084
Acquisition costs -3767  -3661  -3973  -4g83  -5668  -6220
Amortisation of gooawill L o1 -2n =310 -368  -350
Other operating costs and expenses -1840 -2698 -278b -3074 -3384 -3240
Total expenses -18024 -19 845 -22502 ~27898 -34208 -34379
Income/loss before income tax expense . 2257 2808 3229 3695 -4 . 38
income tax expense -480 -647 -783 -689 -61 -127
Net income/loss on ordinary activities 1777 2161 2446 2966 -165 -91
Extraordinary income 450

Exwsordinarycharges 480

Net income/loss 1777 2181 2446 2966 -165 -91
Balancesheet

Investments 62725 69589 85684 89584 95888 86728
Other assets 28657 38748 44516 53056 74342 75129
Total assets 91382 108 337 130200 142640 170230 161 857
Lisbiliies S SR
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 41876 45866 54072 69600 68618 62652
Liablities or Ife and healin policy benefs 9963 15143 23279 29300 41370 37269
Uneamedpremiums 3691 3174 4251 6131 6399 6754
Other liabiltes 13767 19142 18819 19764 24200 32833
Long-term debt 3921 5049 4947 50568 7045 5663
Total liabilities 73208 88374 105368 119853 147632 145171
Shareholders’ equity 18174 19963 24 832 22787 22598 16686
Earmings/osses er share 1 CHF s 735 sss 03 087 oz
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Cautionary note

Certain statements contained herein are
forward-looking. These statements pro-
vide current expectations of future events
based on certain assumptions and include
any statement that does not directly relate
to a historical fact or current fact. Forward-
looking statements typically are identified
by words or phrases such as “anticipate”,
“assume”, “believe”, “continue”, “esti-
mate”, “expect”, “foresee”, “intend”, "may
increase” and "may fluctuate” and similar
expressions or by future or conditional
verbs such as "will", “should”, “"would” and
“could”. These forward-looking state-
ments involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors, which
may cause Swiss Re's actual results,
performance, achievements or prospects
to be materially different from any future
results, performance, achievements or
prospects expressed or implied by such
statements. Such factors include, among
others:
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E-mail investor_relations@swissre.com

o 0

on forward-looking statements

cyclicality of the reinsurance industry;
changes in general economic condi-
tions, particularly in our core markets;
uncertainties in estimating reserves;
risks and uncertainties relating to our
estimates of the losses arising from the
11 September 2001 terrorist attack in
the United States;

the performance of financial markets;
expected changes in our investment
results as a result of the changed com-
position of our investment assets or
changes in our investment policy:

the frequency. severity and develop-
ment of insured claim events;

acts of terrorism and acts of war;
changes in rating agency policies or
practices;

mortality and morbidity experience;
policy renewal and lapse rates;

the lowering or loss of one of the finan-
cial or claims-paying ratings of one or
more of our subsidiaries;

changes in levels of interest rates;

Important dates

12 May 2003
139th Annual General Meeting

15 May 2003
Payment of dividend

29 August 2003
Interim Report

14 May 2004
140th Annual General Meeting

0 political risks in the countries in which
we operate or in which we insure risks;

o extraordinary events affecting our
clients, such as bankruptcies and liqui-
dations;

o risks associated with implementing our
business strategies;

o changes in currency exchange rates;

o changes in laws and regulations, in-
cluding changes in accounting stan-
dards and taxation requirements; and

O increases in competitive pressures.

These factors are not exhaustive. We op-
erate in a continually changing environ-
ment and new risks emerge continually.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on our forward-looking state-
ments. We undertake no obligation to
publicly revise or update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or other-
wise.

Original version in English.

The Annual Report 2002 summary
is also available in German, French, Italian,
Spanish and Portuguese.

The Annual Report 2002 is available in
English. German and French.

The web version of the Annual Report
2002 is available in English at
Www.swissre.com/annualreport.
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